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March 3, 2010
Session

THE COURT REGISTRAR:  Order, all rise.  
Court is in session, please be seated.  
MR. TAY:  Good morning, Your Honour.  I've 
handed up pieces of paper.  That is, to the 
best of our knowledge, the complete list of 
material that should be before you today.  
It's a lot to read, and I am sure it will be 
provided.  
THE COURT:  I have what is here.  My law clerk 
was of great help.  A couple of housekeeping 
announcements at the opening.  I have been 
informed we have America Sign Language 
available.  Is there anyone in the courtroom 
that requires America Sign Language and 
interpretation?  If so, the interpreter will 
remain.  If not, he will be excused.  All 
right.  I don't see anyone who requires this.  
THE INTERPRETER:  Your Honour, I will remain 
for awhile yet, even if I don't continue.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  We are on real-time 
reporting, and the reporter has requested that 
because of translation issues that if anyone 
is speaking that they do so in an elevated 
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voice, so there is an accurate transcript of 
what is transpiring.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  A housekeeping issue.  There 
is a translator behind me, and I have a stereo 
vibe here.  There is French interpreter behind 
me, and I am having a problem hearing.  I 
wonder if she may sit somewhere else.  I am 
sure other counsel are having the same problem 
hearing.  It's hearing two different languages 
at once.  
THE COURT:  Where is she?  Behind you?  
THE FRENCH INTERPRETER:  Good morning, I am 
the French interpreter.  There is another one 
as well.  
THE COURT:  The difficulty, I gather, is it's 
a distraction as to where you are located?  
MR. MACFARLANE:  Yes, Your Honour.  
MR. TAY:  Perhaps she could sit over there, 
and it may be easier for her as well.  
THE COURT:  We usually put jurors there, but 
we have no jury today.  So, if that is okay, 
it's fine with me.  
MR. TAY:  You can see everyone if you sit 
there.  
THE FRENCH INTERPRETER:  I have to be able to 
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see the screen.  There will be a lot of 
information on the screen, and I would like to 
be able to see it.  Okay.  Thank you.  Thank 
you, Your Honour.  
THE COURT:  Now, Mr. Tay, let's get some idea 
and make sure I have the right documents up 
here.  Is there an order that has been 
established?  
MR. TAY:  I have a suggestion, and I will go 
through it.  So, basically we have our motion 
today.  There is also a motion from Genova.  
They indicate they represent a small group of 
employees on long-term disability and propose 
a settlement.  They have a motion seeking 
adjournment and have counsel status, which 
I -- and I think almost everyone else opposes 
this, and I propose to deal with those reasons 
for why it shouldn't be granted, as far as my 
main submission.  
So, I would start and following counsel for 
the employees will then follow.  We then have 
CAW, the directors, to the extent they want to 
say anything, and then we would hear from 
opposing employees.  And after that, we deal 
with the other issues that the UCC has, and 
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the committee and the other housekeeping 
matter with Nortel Trust.  
So, that makes sense, given the fact that 
there are a lot of people here that are more 
interested in the issues raised by Rochon 
Genova and raised by UCC.  Your Honour, it 
seems to make sense.  
THE COURT:  How does this follow with the 2:00 
p.m. hearing?  
MR. TAY:  We have all day reserved for 
tomorrow, and we can go until a quarter to 
two, and then adjourn until ten a.m. tomorrow 
morning to continue.  I don't see any 
alternative.  We have this courtroom and the 
same facilities for tomorrow. 
THE COURT:  Counsel? 
MR. ROCHON:  Yes.  I am Joel Rochon, and I am 
here for the LTD beneficiaries, and my only 
suggestion is, there is a lot of people here, 
but if we are able to start with the 
adjournment request, which if you see in the 
material is a serious request, that might 
short circuit things and shorten the day.  
If the adjournment is granted, we will come 
back on another day and will not have to go 
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through the hearing at this time.  
We have only just been retained this past 
Thursday, and we act for this special group of 
individuals.  
THE COURT:  So, I guess you want to launch 
into the adjournment request?  
We will just hear from Mr. Tay for a second, 
but don't go back quite to your seat just yet.  
MR. TAY:  In part, we will deal with it up 
front, because in order to deal with that 
adjournment request we have to get through the 
whole process and how we got here, and you 
need to hear from me and the Monitor, and it 
makes no sense to adjourn this because 
something will change over some period of 
time.  
So, I think if you get to the adjournment 
motion, you will end up hearing our 
submissions.
So, my submission is that we should proceed 
the way I suggest, and it will in substance 
deal with all of the reasons why, one, an 
adjournment makes no sense and, two, why 
counsel -- it's all bound in the same argument 
of why this settlement is appropriate and 
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fair.  
THE COURT:  I will invite Mr. Rochon to make 
preliminary comments, so I have an idea for 
the basis of the adjournment request.  It may 
save hours of argument.  
MR. ROCHON:  I would like to invite my 
assistant to join me, and perhaps we could 
have a spot at counsel table.  
THE COURT:  Your motion, motion to adjourn or 
the alternative to object?  
MR. ROCHON:  Correct, Your Honour.
THE COURT:  You were retained when?  
MR. ROCHON:  Last Thursday. 
THE COURT:  This material came late yesterday.  
MR. ROCHON:  Correct.  The timelines are thin, 
especially in light of the fact we were just 
retained on Thursday.  I apologize.  
THE COURT:  Well, there is a big problem with 
that.  This hearing was set a number of weeks 
ago, and you can see that there is a lot of 
preparation that has gone into this. 
MR. ROCHON:  We certainly recognize that many, 
many counsel and individuals in the court have 
done a lot of work to get things to this stage 
and had matters.  We would have made this 
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request sooner.  
As it turned out, we were retained last 
Thursday, and we were retained by 
approximately 30 individuals who are on 
long-term disability, who --
THE COURT:  These individuals, are they part 
of what I will refer to as the representative 
group?  
MR. ROCHON:  They are. 
THE COURT:  Have any opted out of that group?
MR. ROCHON:  Only one, to my knowledge.  I 
believe the opt out date was sometime ...  
MR. ZIGLER:  Your Honour, nobody has opted 
out.  
THE COURT:  Nobody has opted out?  Okay.  All 
30 of this group are technically under 
representation of counsel?  
MR. ROCHON:  They are at this point, and 
seeking an adjournment and opportunity to 
object to the settlement, and the other thing 
we recognize is that the Canadian proceeding 
is not the only proceeding.  There is the 
Chapter 11 proceeding in the United States and 
the administrative proceedings in the UK.  So, 
all of these things are intertwined.  
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THE COURT:  This is a Canadian motion today, 
so I don't understand the basis of the 
objection. 
MR. ROCHON:  Only on the basis, this is a 
world-wide arrangement process, and there must 
be a certain amount of coordination with the 
court, and I understand there will be a 
session -- a joint session -- this afternoon 
with the U.S. Court.  
THE COURT:  Yes, there is.  That is not on 
with respect to the motion that is brought 
before this court today.  
MR. ROCHON:  Right.  So, I am aware of the 
fact this is inconvenient, certainly for my 
friends, and having had an opportunity to 
bring this motion sooner, we would have done 
so.  
In any event, the basis of our adjournment is 
this:  The settlement agreement is dated 
February 8, 2010.  There was apparently press 
releases sent out in or about that time.  
Direct notice to this group of people -- that 
is the LTD -- and those that are opposing the 
settlement.  That letter was delivered on 
February 16th.  That was a Tuesday.  
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So, allowing for the Canadian postal system to 
work it out, it would not be unreasonable to 
assume that the letters started to come in at 
the end of the week, and they completed their 
journey sometime during the week of the 22nd 
of February.  
So, that would lead in a number of situations 
only two or three business days -- maybe as 
much as five business days -- to assess the 
quality of the settlement, to take legal 
counsel, if necessary, to engage experts to 
help interpret the agreement.  
What we really have here, Your Honour, is a 
situation where there was no effective notice 
to the LTD group.  
This is not your normal group of sophisticated 
lawyers.  This is a group of highly 
vulnerable, disabled people, and you have 
before you two motion records that deal with 
the extent of their very significant 
disabilities.  
In addition to the aspect of disability, there 
is also the matter of when disclosure 
happened, and, in this case, as you know, the 
February 8 agreement requires LTD disability 
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beneficiaries to have certain rights 
extinguished in respect to The Health and 
Welfare Trust, known in this proceeding as the 
HWT.  
Those signatures were being sought, at least 
from the representative, Sue Kennedy on behalf 
of the LTD holders in and around February 28, 
but it wasn't until February 18, and the 39th 
Monitor's Report, released February 18, that 
finally the Mercer's Report was made public, 
after the deal had been signed by the 
concerned parties.  
Now, why do I mention the Mercer Report?  
Because when you analyze it -- 
THE COURT:  The difficulty I am still having 
is that the group has represented counsel.  A 
lot of those issues were dealt with.  The fact 
that they wished to make representations 
today, they are taking time to make arguments.  
I am not hearing anything so far, sir, that 
would cause me to adjourn today's motion.  
Notice provisions, the representative counsel 
will include the LTD group was considered many 
months ago. 
I really am having difficulty understanding as 
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to -- I understand the group has now retained 
you, and you may wish to make representations 
on their behalf, and you have that opportunity 
to do so.  
As far as this hearing, I am not convinced so 
far this matter should be adjourned.  
MR. ROCHON:  In a nutshell, Your Honour, the 
notice went out last week or the week before.  
That is when it was delivered.  That is after 
February 16th, the only meaningful --
THE COURT:  The point I am trying to make, 
counsel, this group has been part of this 
settlement discussion and has participated in 
the negotiations, participated in the notice 
of hearing.  All of that, I am not aware of 
any --
MR. ROCHON:  Yes.  I am not disputing that, 
Your Honour.  My point relates to the 
objectors and for them to have meaningful 
rights, we are here to represent, no notice to 
those individuals.  So the objectors, and we 
have 30 of them here, their rights, have been 
extinguished through this process, because 
they have not had meaningful notice.  
The timeline, there was pressure to get this 
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moving, but to have the notice given, really, 
takes away any meaningful rights that the 
objecting parties had.  That is the group that 
we are focussed on, and the right to object is 
really a pillar of due process in fairness in 
this country.  I have never seen -- I am not 
someone that appears before Your Honour 
regularly, but where due process is something 
that you learned from day one, normally there 
is 60 or 90 days in order to prepare an 
objection.  Here, there is no time -- or a 
week.  Five business days to prepare an 
objection, and that, in my respectful 
submission, is meaningless and their rights 
have been seriously impacted upon or will be 
impacted upon unnecessarily so if the 
adjournment is not granted.  
Those are my submissions, Your Honour.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  Okay?
MR. TAY:  Your Honour, I don't think I need to 
reply.  With your permission, I will proceed.  
Would you like me to reply?  
THE COURT:  I have to make a determination.  
It's a formal request.  
MR. TAY:  Right.  We clearly object to it for 
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the reasons I think you've touched on.  One, 
that this group has been fully represented.  
That is the whole point.  If every time one 
group of the class, whether it's one person or 
30 people, are not happy with a decision or 
settlement of representative counsel, they can 
hold a process or stretch it out or request 
new representative counsel, and it defeats the 
whole purpose.  
You heard Mr. Zigler that this group did not 
opt out.  They are still being represented, 
and you will hear in my submissions later 
about the people that are not here, but whose 
rights would be effected and are okay with 
this.  
The timing of the service that they are 
complaining about, that is approved by the 
court, and Your Honour knows that we went out 
of our way to make sure that people are on 
notice, even though we knew that virtually 
everyone was represented by counsel before 
you.  
So, the purpose of this really was to make 
sure if there was someone we forgot or someone 
who was not represented or out there that did 
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not know about this, we made sure they have 
the right to come and be heard.  Similarly, 
people who are not happy with the decision and 
counsel recommending the deal, they can come 
and object, but they need have a valid reason 
to object other than, I am not happy.  I make 
everyone in this courtroom unhappy.  If that 
was a basis for objection, I mean, we would 
never get anything done.  
So, there is no reason for an adjournment.  We 
have gone through grave trouble, as you can 
see, to accommodate people.  Mr. Rochon's own 
application says, application for adjournment 
or to object, and as Your Honour pointed out, 
there is no impediment for him to object, or 
even if he doesn't, he can be heard, but to 
adjourn this, in terms of what will be 
accomplished by adjournment, you will hear as 
both through my main submissions and as 
submissions of other counsel, it will not do 
anything.  That adjournment will not change 
anything.  
It took us a long time to get where we are, 
and we have to get over the finish line, and 
we need to keep our eyes focussed on the 
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settlement that will bring the most good to 
the most people.  
I am sorry that there are people that are not 
happy, but that is not enough of a reason.  A 
legal reason to interfere with what this court 
needs to do today.  
THE COURT:  Yes? 
MR. ZARNETT:  Thank you.  The Monitor does not 
support the adjournment.  Part of the reason 
is the one that you've raised with Mr. Rochon 
and Mr. Tay has raised, and that is we are 
following a process that is court approved 
with rights of all parties having been 
considered.  
There are two other reasons.  One is, there is 
a reason for doing this now and a prejudice 
that could occur if it's delayed.  Mr. Rochon 
did not assist on how long he needed, but the 
impetus for this settlement, as Your Honour 
will know, was that the court approved cash 
flow for Nortel only contemplate funding 
payments -- certain payments to the LTD.  
For example, the LTD is until the end of 
March.  It was that concern -- that problem -- 
raised that led to the impetus of this 
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arrangement that is now before you.  That was 
preserving those for a longer period of time 
and various other benefits.  
If there is -- if we are unable to do that 
now, and unable to do that before the end of 
March, the payments are in trouble and where 
are we, and that -- the large group that 
Mr. Zigler represents and those that are not 
opposed and also to Mr. Rochon.  So there is 
reason for the urgency of dealing with this.  
The other point that has not been touched on, 
Mr. Rochon has done a lot of work in a short 
period of time, including obtaining an expert 
to put objectors before you, and nobody is 
objecting of him doing that, notwithstanding 
the timing of the delivery of the material.  
He has not told you what he would do.  He has 
submissions and experts, and Your Honour will 
consider them.  So, in my submission, the 
request for the adjournment should be refused.  
THE COURT:  Yes? 
MR. ZIGLER:  Thank you, Your Honour.  A couple 
of points. 
It's really quite serious, in the sense if we 
don't deal with this matter before March 31, 
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the types of benefits that get cut off are the 
health benefits for disabled and retired 
employees, and there is a concern there, and 
there are people that depend on these, and if 
they are cut off, then, they can't get their 
medication.  
So if the settlement deals until the end of 
the year, and there are programs, but if you 
immediately shut this down, March 31, we are 
getting to people's health.  I think, second, 
and my friend went to this, the pension fund 
gets cut off at the end of March, unless 
something is done.  That effects both the 
disabled and the retired employees, because 
they are all on pensions and some disabled 
are.  There would be a crisis in dealing with 
that.  The funding stops and they will tell 
you, the superintendent has to take action.  
Things have to happen, and it may happen in an 
orderly fashion.  
The settlement works toward a process for 
that.  So, we anticipate a crisis if we don't 
deal with this by the end of March.  That is 
prejudicial to the pensioners and creditors 
because of the crisis that that would create.  
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So, in the interest of things that I think are 
much more important than lawyers working 
quickly to get materials before you, I think 
the health and pension plan, we should go 
ahead, and with all due respect with my 
friend's submission, and I don't want to get 
into the substance of the request.  
Again, in the affidavit of Ms. Kennedy, you 
will see a letter dated February 16 written by 
his clients, 16 or 17 individuals.  To me, so 
they were aware, and there was an email 
February 16th.  
He is an officer of the court, and they are 
aware of what is going on.  They may not like 
the situation.  
There are some objectors, and that is all in 
the material before you, but my friend 
professes to much to say, well, they didn't no 
everything until last week.  They were aware 
of this for some time, several weeks, and now 
we are here and the material is here.  I would 
submit the prejudice to everyone else 
outweighs having to deal with this matter.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  
MR. WADSWORTH:  If I might?  
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THE COURT:  Yes.  
MR. WADSWORTH:  Briefly.  The CAW Canada is 
the bargaining unit, and bargaining for long 
term disability, and we represent 640 retirees 
who retained our services to act on their 
behalf in these proceedings.  The potential 
problem to our members is such that as 
Mr. Zigler pointed out, they may suffer health 
consequences if at the end of this month there 
is not a means by which their health benefits 
are replaced, and that is unlikely to happen 
in the amount of time that this took just to 
get the settlement in place.  There is 
insufficient reason, from my perspective, to 
grant the adjournment.  There is more 
sufficient reason to go forward with it to 
insure those people that will benefit from the 
settlement do so as quick as possible.  Those 
are my submissions.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  Any other counsel that 
wish to comment before I rule on the 
adjournment request?  
The adjournment is not going to be granted.  
First counsel have the points to the group 
that you will be speaking on behalf with 
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respect to all proceeding to date. 
Second, the process for setting up this 
hearing today, the notice of provisions, I am 
satisfied there will be prejudice to a variety 
of groups, long-term disabled, Nortel itself 
and other creditors if this matter is delayed 
further.  We heard representation that the 
continuation of certain benefits run at the 
end of the month, at this point it is 
uncertain, and above all, in considering the 
matters, and the sensitivity to people's 
health and this court will do whatever it can 
to insure this is heard in a timely basis.  
The motion record does indicate that you do 
have arguments prepared, and for what you have 
to say.  
MR. ROCHON:  Your Honour, thank you for that.  
I had a brief reply.  
THE COURT:  If you wish to reply, I would have 
thought there can't be anything new, but, 
please, go ahead.  
MR. ROCHON:  Well, Mr. Zarnett asked how much 
time we would be looking for.  There was 
mention to that.  I was going to talk about 
the time.  We are looking for 45 days.  
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THE COURT:  Given the remarks, the end of 
March, that is not persuading me.  
MR. ROCHON:  The point about the expiry of 
benefits, under the 39th Report there is 
evidence to suggest there is funds available 
in order to implement the settlement 
agreement, including the security, the 
security of the benefits and the pension to 
the end of the year.  
In terms of what I would do with the time, 
that would be for examining officers and 
directors of Nortel, possibly trustees, 
conducting cross-examination.  We would make 
use of the time.  We would locate further 
experts dealing with the issue of the trust 
and trust funds.  Those are my submissions in 
reply.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  The issue of the 45 
days, I am not persuaded that deals with the 
issue and on that basis alone, this matter 
will continue.  
MR. TAY:  Thank you, Your Honour.
You will recall, Your Honour, when I was 
before you on January 14th, of 2009, that I 
had said this is I the end of Nortel, this is 
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the beginning of a new Nortel.  I was wrong.  
As much as we all wanted to restructure this 
company, and as much as we wanted this iconic 
company to continue as an ongoing business, it 
was not to be.  
It's very painful reading the affidavits that 
have been filed to our people's personal 
situations, and it's hard not to feel for 
these people.  Do I wish we could give them 
all the benefits for the duration?  
Absolutely.  Do I wish we had more money to 
spend on all of these things?  Absolutely.  
The difficulty we have is that wishing doesn't 
make it so.  
So, I think it's important to understand -- 
for everyone to understand -- where we are 
today.  We tried.  We came before you in June 
of last year and said, we have looked at it 
every way we can, and we cannot say this 
company will -- we have to sell the business 
as a growing concern.  We have done that.  We 
have realized a good amount of money.  
By the end of the second quarter, it's 
expected that the only thing that will be 
left, other than the portfolio both within and 
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without Canada, will be the Nortel business 
services, which will be 500 people, and their 
job will be to provide transition services to 
the purchasers of the business.  
There's a smaller number of people who are in 
the corporate group that will be responsible 
for sale, and that is what Nortel will be.  
Compare that to its peak:  95,000 employees.
In other words, it's no longer an ongoing 
business that will be able to sustain all 
these benefits that everyone wants.  The end 
game now for most of the people in the room is 
to try and realize the proceeds as quickly as 
possible, and to distribute the money out of 
the Canadian estate as quickly as possible.  
Unlike in restructuring of a company that will 
continue to exist, there is no scenario here, 
absolutely no scenario where Nortel can 
continue to provide benefits.  
And as far as the dealing with the time of 
distribution or making sure we get the money 
out as quick as possible, the distribution 
will go to the employees, will go to the 
pension deficit.  Part of that is to create an 
environment where you can get rid of what I 
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will call strategic litigation, and that is 
part of the deal.  To clarify some of these 
issues so they will not be impediments when 
the time comes for us to look at distributing 
the proceeds.  
I think we have spoke about the fact that the 
beyond March 31, if there is no deal 
everything is uncertain, and we don't know 
where it will go.  
So, while we try to establish on the one hand 
what is needed and the therapy that is needed 
to insure an expeditious pay out at the end of 
the day, the other part of what we are trying 
to do, we recognize that the benefits would 
cause in -- and even the uncertainty of how 
long the benefits will be provided will create 
hardship.  People will not be able to 
organize.  
So, a huge part of what this settlement is 
attempting to achieve is to make sure that 
there is clarity for the people and benefits, 
that there is a decent runway, so that people 
can blend their affairs and know what they can 
rely on in the near future.  
The negotiations.  The fact that we are here 
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today, and there are still issues to deal with 
shows that the negotiations worked out.  Not 
everyone got what they wanted, but the goal 
has been to try to balance those two things 
I'm talking about.  Certainty, and by the same 
time provide for the clarity for the benefits.  
In fact, if we achieve this settlement, I know 
of no other litigating CCAA where people have 
received benefits for two years from the time 
of filing or any other CCAA where the benefits 
of this quantum have been made available to 
employees and pensioners.  
I think that I will talk about the employees, 
and I will touch in part on their 
representations.  As you have already decided 
the position not to grant an adjournment, one 
of the reasons was that we had counsel.  
So, if you looked at Mr. Zigler and 
Mr. Wadsworth, what I would like you to see 
behind them is 12,000 pensioners and about 400 
LTD employees.  That is who they speak for.  
Now, the small minority of the people that are 
not happy with the deal will be more vocal 
today, and I would suggest, Your Honour, that 
the good of the many should not sacrificed 
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because of the discontentment of the few.  
Let me touch on the pension plans and the HWT.  
Nortel has two registered pension plans.  
There is a Nortel Network Limited and non 
negotiated pension plan, also known as the 
salary plan and the Nortel Network, known as 
the Union Plan.  Both provide benefit plans.  
Now, in terms of medical, dental, life, 
long-term disability and survivor income 
benefits.  Traditionally they have been paid.  
Some on a pay-as-you-go basis and some through 
the Health and Welfare Trust, which you will 
hear referred to as the "HWT".  
So, generally medical, dental on a pay as you 
go basis.  Traditionally, LTD. income and 
survivor income benefits are paid on the basis 
of the HWT.  
Now, whether it's called a trust, and the HWT 
was formed as a result of trust agreement that 
is almost 30 years old.  HWT is a tax 
efficient deal and it's not a trust in the 
sense of a trust, as it's a statute or trust 
governed by statute or regulations or any of 
that.  
So, although the applicants have funded the 
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HWT over the years, because it was a tax 
efficient way of doing it, it's always been 
underfunded.  There is no legal obligations on 
the applicants to insure that the HWT will 
also be fully funded.  
So, in that context, let's look at the terms 
of the settlement agreement, and to touch a 
little bit on the negotiations that led us 
here.  These negotiations started prior to the 
approval of the final Canadian funding 
settlement agreement and continued through 
until the agreement of February 8, 2010.  
The settlement accomplishes a lot and provides 
a whole list of benefits.  It results in a 
longer run down period for those benefits.  
Provide those impacted with time to make 
alternative arrangements with counsel, provide 
certainty to pensioners and long-term 
disability, and they will continue to receive 
benefits until the end of the year.  It's an 
advance in cases of certain employees.
What do the other stakeholders get out of 
this?  Well, it addresses the uncertainty, and 
the fact that these payments have to come to 
an end at some time.  It provides a certain 
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end date so the applicants can plan according 
to the cash flows and distribution plans.  
Importantly, it provides certainty on the 
plains which may have otherwise resulted in 
hold up or prolonged litigation.  Cause delay 
to the estate, and, again, it provides 
certainty on the classification of employees, 
creditor's claims, which is a benefit as a 
whole.  
So, what we have done is taken away potential 
litigation.  No matter how baseless and 
whether there is entitlement to trust or not 
entitled to priority.  Taking away arguments.  
We take all of that away, and that is really 
important to the other stakeholders and to the 
applicants.
So, a brief summary, the deal is, medical, 
dental and life insurance will continue 
unchanged until December 31, 2010, for 
pensioners and employees on long-term 
disability.  Long-term disability will also 
continue until the end of the year.  The 
difference is, previously these payments were 
made out of HWT Trust and would have depleted 
the assets in the trust as part of the 
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settlement.  The applicants pay that, and 
thereby preserving the trust to the same 
degree.  
The settlement provides that the LTD 
beneficiaries maintain status until December 
31 as well, with termination of employment.
There is a termination pool or payment of a 
maximum of 3000 of terminated as advanced 
against the claims under the CCAA for a total 
maximum of 4.2 million, and as far as a 
pension plan, we will continue to make special 
payments until the end of March, and 
thereafter a set of funding and continue the 
administration of the trust until September 
30, 2010.
What do the Nortel and other stakeholders get?  
Well, under the agreement, liability to 
administer plan seizes September 30, 2010.  
The agreement makes it clear that the pension 
claims, and the HWT claims -- and by that I 
mean the efficiency claims will rank as 
unsecured claims, and no one will assert any 
of the claims to the contrary.  
As part of the overall settlement, applicants 
enter a letter of agreement with the 
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superintendent of bankruptcy in the capacity, 
as the administrator, which confirms that the 
superintendent does not oppose the settlement 
with the terms of the order.  
Counsel has also agreed to withdrawal and end 
the application to Supreme Court of Canada.  I 
informed you of the earlier decision, and 
there will be no opposition and other matters 
as long as they are approved by the Monitor.
What should be clearly understood is that none 
of the releases effect the underlying claims.  
In other words, nobody is asking for the 
efficiency claims, whether they are in respect 
of pensions, what is being released is any 
argument or any potential claim that these 
things are anything other than unsecured 
claims.
There are also parties that will be released 
from, as part of this agreement, who are 
administrators, trustees, etcetera, of the 
various pension plans and HWT.  The reason for 
that, in part, these people would either 
trustee or director, had clear indemnity, and 
this is to prevent a back doorway of coming 
back against the company when this settlement 
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is intended to be a complete settlement on 
these issues.  
Now, you will hear sometime today or tomorrow, 
counsel for Northern Trust Company of Canada 
ask that release them and disclosing of the 
pension planning.
Our view is the failure to provide for their 
release in the document is just a drafting, 
and we support the release, and you will hear 
from those parties.  
Finally, the releases are limited.  As far as 
we can in nature to only what is considered 
necessary, to achieve these goals.  As I have 
said, the deficiencies are not touched.  They 
are preserved.  
There is a particular clause in the 
settlement.  That agreement that you will hear 
a lot being said of.  
That is known as the bankruptcy or change 
clause, and you have had a taste of that when 
we dealt with the Nortel motion.
As I said then, and I say again, we have tried 
to bring the parties as close as we can to an 
agreement.  This particular issue remains the 
central issue, and this issue, we could not 
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get a settlement agreement signed if we are 
not agreed to inclusion of the courts.
So, we drafted this clause to be as innocuous 
as possible, and this clause basically says 
that if the law, the Bankruptcy Act at some 
point is changed in some way that effects the 
priorities dealt with in this agreement, that 
the parties reserve their right to argue on 
applicability or non applicability.  It was an 
attempt to bring the parties as close as we 
could.
From our perspective, if you decide that that 
paragraph is not necessary, we are fine with 
that.  We don't need that paragraph as part of 
the settlement.  If you do come to that 
finding, counsel will put the question of 
whether they are willing to go ahead with the 
deal without that clause, and I will leave 
that for other people to fight about.
The clause, it's there.  Having said that, we 
are indifferent to whether that clause 
remains, because what is important are the 
economics of the agreement that provide the 
continuation of the benefits, and what is 
important here is the clarity that the rest of 
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the agreement provides.
Now, I will touch briefly on the law.  
The -- I don't think there is any doubt, Your 
Honour, that counsel has the authority to 
enter into the settlement agreement.  
On May 27, 2009, you will find Koskie Minsky, 
(inaudible) Michael Campell, July 22, 2009, 
O' Brian, for former employees were appointed.  
On July 30th, 2009, Koskie Minsky was 
appointed to represent the applicants disabled 
employees and Susan Kennedy.  The 
representation order provided that as part of 
the mandate, it was for the purpose of 
settling the compromising claims.  
Although the court recognized there would 
instances of conflict of interest, this was 
not one of them.
The LTD employees and other employees opposing 
the settlement do not have a conflict of 
interest.  They of this agreement.  And, 
frankly, they also don't agree with the 
majority of their group who do support the 
settlement.
Now I saw reference in the materials that 
suggested that there might be conflict of 
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interest in terms of divvying up the trust.  
That is not before the court today.  As part 
of the settlement, as part of the HWT trust, 
they have to work out, and before the end of 
this year we will be back before you to seek 
approval of that.  That is not before the 
court.  That is not part of what is being 
asked.  
So, I will touch briefly in terms of, it's 
quite clear we oppose the application of 
Mr. Rochon to be appointed as special counsel, 
and I brought -- I make reference to the 
Canwest decision, paragraph 19.  You don't 
need to turn to it.  

"... and compelling reason such as 
the existence of an obvious conflict 
of interest....  (inaudible)."

Needless to say, this court has in other cases 
recognized the ability of counsel in 
settlement agreement, and I will refer you to 
your decision in the Grace matter that we 
presented to you.  And where you said, page 8, 
paragraph 59.  You don't need to turn to it.

"It seems to me that the wording 
of the Representation Order is clear.  



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

38

Representative counsel have the 
authority to resolve and release all 
CDN ZAI Claims, including Crown claims 
for contribution and indemnity."  

THE COURT:  2008 Grace or Grace 2010? 
MR. TAY:  2008.  The test for third party 
release is clear.  There are three tests.  
They needn't to be connected for the 
resolution of the.
Debtors claim.  They need to benefit creditors 
and should not be overly broad.  
Grace decision makes it clear that such 
releases may be granted in the context of the 
approval.  The parties receiving third party 
releases contemplate the settlement agreement 
and settlement approval order restricted to 
those related the administration and the HWT, 
the directors and officers of Nortel.  
The third parties releases are directed -- 
directly related to the compromise related to 
the pension plans, and HWT set out in the 
settlement. 
The release is provided to the applicants and 
is restricted to release of the ability of the 
parties to make claims.  As I said, it does 
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not effect the claims for deficiency under the 
pension plan, the HWT claims, which will be 
unsupported and preserved as such.
Now, in terms of the settlement and what we 
agreed to as the superintendent with respect 
to the pension plan payments.  As you know, 
they are not mandatory in the initial order.  
We are omitted to do it, but not ordered to do 
it.  You could approve the discontinue of 
special payments after March 31, and even in 
the absence of the settlement agreement, the 
court has the jurisdiction to suspend the 
special payments in the CCAA proceeding, which 
as you know is more often the case than not.
You also have the jurisdiction to approve the 
settlement agreement provisions that make sure 
the pension claims will rank as ordinary 
unsecured claims on a pari passu basis of the 
applicants without any preferred treatment, 
priority trust and charge.  And, as you know, 
when the trust and under the contributions are 
not enforced under the bankruptcy, and this 
court pursuant has jurisdiction if approved 
settlement, that treats pension claims in the 
same way as in a bankruptcy, and I will not 
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turn you to it, but I refer to the Harbert 
case, which is at tab 11 of our brief.  
And in the case of the HWT, while the outcome 
of protracted litigation is impossible to 
predict, these are likely to be - 
Monitor has advised you that the HWT has never 
had sufficient assets to pay the value of all 
plans designated under it, nor is it legally 
required to have those assets.  
Not only does the settlement agreement not 
disturb the corpus, but as I indicated it 
actually preserved it, because payments that 
would have otherwise been made out of the 
funds will now be made by the company.  And 
these particular provisions of the settlement 
agreement that create for these claims of the 
unsecured and for the creditors in the class 
are extremely important considerations for the 
people who are the other stakeholders, who are 
seeing over 44 million dollars of value going 
to similar ranking creditors as part of this 
deal and test.  
And you have said, in the Grace decision, that 
a settlement negotiation during the CCAA 
period should be approved if it's one 
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consistent with the focus of the CCAA and is 
fair under all the circumstances, and, three, 
balances the interest of parties, including 
any objecting creditors; although not 
necessarily equal, and if it's beneficial to 
the debtor and stakeholders generally."
Everyone is unhappy with the settlement, 
because nobody got everything that they 
wanted, and perhaps that is a best indication 
of a fair settlement.
Now, if I could just touch on what is an 
important point, and I touched on it earlier, 
and that is the reliance that people will have 
on this order.  The committee has filed 
written submission and have expressed four 
concerns.  
One is the bankruptcy clause issue.  The 
second is the ongoing exposure and potential 
liability for pension claims and bankruptcy 
claims made October 1, 2010, and that you may 
be aware is part of the condition in the 
Superintendent's letter.  That there be no 
bankruptcy before the end of September, 
otherwise we lose the benefits of that 
provision.
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We could control the fact that we don't make a 
whole assignment into bankruptcy prior to that 
date.  So, that aspect is not a concern.  What 
we cannot control is third parties trying to 
make an application for bankruptcy order prior 
to that date.  
And I think that it's critically important.  
In fact, essentially, if in your reasons or 
endorsement you -- if you see fit to grant the 
order today, you would highlight the fact that 
any judge of the court that is looking at the 
lifting of a stay application, because this 
stay protects us from any such bankruptcy 
application being made, and, so, it will have 
to come before this court.  And for whatever 
reason, if it does not come back before you, I 
think it's important that your decision 
reflect the fact that any application to let 
the stay or file bankruptcy for bankruptcy 
order, should take into account the fact that 
the impact of that will be to undo all the 
benefits of the settlement.  
To put it into perspective, Your Honour, the 
benefits that the employees, the 
Superintendent are getting, they are finite in 
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time.  They will get the full benefit by the 
end of this year.  The Superintendent will get 
what it wants, which is a runway to provide 
for the orderly transition of the 
administration of the pension plan, but one 
company, the other creditors are relying on, 
having paid that consideration, what it gets 
back in return, being the certainty that any 
deficiency claims are in fact unsecured claims 
and part of the unsecured funds that be in.
So, I think we can deal with the bankruptcy 
before September 30 issue by your reflecting 
the importance in your endorsement or decision 
that any judge looking at this should waive 
the impact of what granting such a relief 
would have on the settlement.  
Now, they raise the third point, and this is 
the point where they say that employees claims 
are on account of as the waiver of the 
settlement agreement is the claim.  They take 
the position it should be on account of the 
distribution and the parties argue that point.  
In my view, we are in your hands as to how you 
decide that issue, but we are happy to deal 
with that.  The other issue that I hope to 
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have --
THE COURT:  Has that been addressed in the 
order?  The hardship order?  Is it a different 
point?  
MR. TAY:  No.  This is the maximum.  Basically 
the settlement deal is, you know, it's 
credited against the claim.  Against the 
distribution, so it's a fairly discrete issue.
The final point they raise, and I hope that 
this point could be dealt with today, right 
now, right here, and that is the lack of 
clarity as to whether the proposed order is 
binding on the Superintendent in all capacity 
and not just as administrator of BBGF, and 
some concern was raised by the original form, 
and that has been clarified, but it's my 
understanding that this order, and we are all 
relying on this order, that it be binding in 
all its capacities, and that the 
Superintendent is not reserving any rights to 
reopen this issue.  And I say that, and I look 
to the Superintendent as to whether there is 
any disagreements.  
THE COURT:  There is no reservation on rights?  
MR. TAY:  The UCC is disappointed about that.  
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There is no reservation on rights.  So, I 
think that closes the point on that issue once 
and for all.  
So, what we come down to it is for the most 
part the bankruptcy clause.  I have explained 
to you why it's in there.  Politically, 
without that clause we did not sign it.  I've 
also explained to you that we don't think it's 
an essential part of the agreement, so we are 
in your hands.  
I have to point out that I am extremely 
disappointed of the accusation of UCC in their 
factum that seems to throw question of doubt 
about the integrity and the fairness of the 
Monitor in dealing with this and in dealing 
with the settlement as a whole.  
You may have your own views that you may 
express about unsubstantiated attacks on the 
officer of the court.  
Personally, I don't know what the standard of 
practice is in the U.S. or whether this is 
acceptable in the U.S.  Having been involved 
in the whole process with the Monitor, I find 
it unfounded and, frankly, I think it's 
totally inappropriate and unacceptable, and 
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that is what I will say about that.  In 
conclusion -- 
THE COURT:  Before you leave the H2, in 
preferences of federal bankruptcy, and are 
there any provincial elements?  
MR. TAY:  The Bankruptcy Act has changed.  The 
BIA has changed, and it has to be changed in a 
way that impacts the priorities that we have 
spoke about in this settlement agreement.  If 
those two things happen, and then the 
consequence of that clause is that everyone 
reserves their right to argue on applicability 
or non applicability, and you will hear more 
than ample argument on both sides as to 
whether that causes uncertainty and everything 
else.  
From our perspectives, it's not an essential 
part of the deal, as far as we are concerned.  
It is what we all had to do to get here today.  
So, in conclusion, I think it's clear that if 
the settlement agreement is not approved, it 
could have some potentially very negative and 
very immediate impact.  There will be no 
opportunity to make alternative arrangements 
for health and life benefits.  The LTD and 
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survivors will have income cut off without 
opportunity to plan the income.  Terminated 
employees will be forced to wait for any 
distributions of the claims process.  The 
immediate and current service funding and 
special payment contributions to the pension 
plan.  There will be an immediate reduction to 
reflect the current funded ratio in the 
pension plans.  It would increase chances of 
litigation related to HWT and increase 
uncertainty for all stakeholders and 
jeopardize the distribution of funds to all 
stakeholders.
But if you approve the settlement, it takes 
all the uncertainty away of the termination of 
benefits, the pensions, the LTD beneficiaries, 
and healthy beneficiaries and who cannot 
eliminate hardship but we can reduce it by 
prolonging whether or not the mandatory 
payments.  It eliminates regarding pension 
claims and HWT claims, which will all lead to 
reduce recovery for everyone and the 
potential.  Disruption of the process.  The 
benefits of current working employees, and it 
allows the opportunity to plan.  
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And it helps with the commitment for existing 
employees to have their pension benefits not 
disrupted, because we need to implement, and, 
as I said, it does not eliminate any 
deficiency claim under or the pension claims.  
It simply takes away a priority that 
(inaudible).
So, subject to any questions you may have, 
those are my submissions, Your Honour.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  Before we continue, I 
will give people a break.  
--- Brief adjournment.
--- Upon resuming.  
--- Court is resumed.  
THE COURT:  Before we get going, at the lunch 
break we will have to coordinate with the law 
clerk to insure that the documents that are 
required for the joint hearing this afternoon 
are circulated and sitting where they need to 
be.  
MR. TAY:  He is more reliable than I am. 
THE COURT:  All right.  
MR. ZARNETT:  Thank you.  The Monitor supports 
approval of this settlement agreement, and 
recommends that Your Honour approve it and 
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asks it does so, not only from its usual 
standpoint as an observer of the process, but 
as an active participant in the dialogue that 
led to the settlement agreement, and, in fact, 
signaled to it and it participated in that, 
because of the importance of the objectives 
that this settlement achieves.  
It did not lose, disputes as to whether 
benefit payments should be continued beyond 
March, disputes the classification of 
creditors, which would have an impact on the 
formulation of the plan, and it even resolves 
an outstanding application.  When it does 
that, it prevents delay.  It preserves value, 
and reduces the risk to other proceedings, 
such as bankruptcy and reversing priorities 
that the stakeholders are a lot happier with 
the priorities as they are implemented through 
the process.  
The second main theme, Your Honour, is the 
involvement of court appointed 
representatives; particularly, representative 
counsel for the former employees and the LTD 
beneficiaries.  That court appointment and 
that involvement was pursuant -- as we touched 
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on this morning -- to a process that 
authorized involvement and negotiation of 
disputed claims, representation of interests 
and the right to opt out, which has not been 
exercised by anyone objecting to the 
settlement.  
And, Your Honour, in my submission -- I should 
respect the outcome of a negotiation that 
involved that court appointed representative 
seeking as a court officer to achieve goals 
for those classes of stakeholders.  And Your 
Honour will also -- and this is the third, you 
may want to look at how the settlement 
balances interest, because this is a situation 
where nothing can be given without it being 
taken away from another.  
It's an insolvent estate, and, therefore, we 
look at balancing interest, which cannot be 
fully satisfied, and, in this case, Your 
Honour will note, will want to take into 
account the involvement of a number of 
stakeholders, as well representative counsel, 
and that this was all negotiated, and the fact 
of liquidating insolvency and the 
determination of benefits, one of the main 
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items dealt with in the settlement is 
inevitable.
The Monitor believes, viewed as a whole, the 
settlement represents a fair balance of the 
interest of the applicant stakeholders.  The 
Nortel stakeholders, and I support something 
that Mr. Tay said, which is especially 
appropriate here.  
The fact that Your Honour will hear objections 
today, some from bondholders and unsecured 
creditors committee, who are concerned about 
any aspect of the transaction by which in 
their vantage point, their money, is being 
used to fund priority payments to someone 
else, and on the other hand, that there are 
objections from former employees, disabled 
former employees, based on a statement that is 
in some ways unargued, and that is that any 
compromise of full payment to them involves 
great pain.  There is no dispute about that.  
But those objections go to show that the 
settlement is not perfect, and it can't be.  
Instead, they go to show, in my submission, 
that it's not possible to achieve everything 
for anyone, and the possibility of that type 
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of settlement shows, in my submission, it's 
fair and reasonable judged against the 
standards that it has to be, and that is what 
is possible. 
Now, as Your Honour knows, the impetus of the 
settlement needs to make the settlement come 
from few different sources.  The first is the 
change in Nortel's strategy toward 
restructuring essentially to liquidating as 
Mr. Tay pointed out.  That involved a 
significant reduction of the work force.  The 
sale of businesses, and the need to transition 
benefits, pension plans, and that sort of 
thing.
Second impetus is that Nortel remain 
insolvent.  As the Monitor points out in 
paragraph 23, 27.9 billion dollars of claims.  
Subject to claims, resolution processes, 27.9 
billion dollars in claims.  
Now, in December 2009, the Canadian Funding 
and Settlement Agreement was entered into and 
provided a base of funds to continue the CCAA 
process as liquidating insolvency continued 
the business transferred and resolved claims, 
and all of that especially with the limited 
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approved funding for the continuation of 
benefits, Your Honour, to the formulation of 
certain objectives that had to be achieved in 
order for the restructuring to continue, and 
that -- and those are outlined, but I ask Your 
Honour to look at the 39th report.  The 
paragraph, Your Honour, is paragraph 36 on 
page 10.  
THE COURT:  All right.  
MR. ZARNETT:  These steps that are identified 
are things that had to be achieved in order 
for the CCAA process to continue to the 
benefit of all stakeholders, and anyone that 
opposes the settlement agreement, you would 
think, would have to have an alternative way 
of actually being able to deal with all of 
these, and keeping the process going for the 
benefit and they were transitioning benefits 
for current employees.  Second, the 
termination of unfunded, non pension benefits, 
which was an inevitability, given the limited 
resources, but terminating them in a way that 
was orderly and without due disruption, and as 
fair as possible to the pensioners, LTD 
beneficiaries, survivors.  
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The third was the transition of the pension 
plan given the fact that funding would not be 
available for special payments or current 
service payments.
The Health and Welfare Trust had to be dealt 
with.  There had to be preservation and then a 
method of distributing it.  The ranking of 
claims required certainty.  There was already 
ongoing litigation with the application for 
leave to the Supreme Court of Canada with the 
certain types of claim and there was a recipe 
that if claims were cut off for litigation 
over the ranking other kind of claims.  The 
company needed to retain resources to assist 
in restructuring, and the overall goal was 
necessary of avoiding costs with litigation.  
That was the cost.  
And that, Your Honour, was the challenge, and 
that is what gave rise to a settlement 
process, out of which Your Honour can take 
great comfort, because a settlement process 
that involved was detailed, hard bargaining -- 
as Mr. Tay says -- and wide ranging in terms 
of involvement of stakeholders.  And, as I 
said, and as the Monitor's Report points out, 
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the representative counsel were involved, the 
Monitor was involved, the company was 
involved.  CAW was involved.  
As the negotiations went on, the 
Superintendent became involved on pension 
issues that were of particular concern and 
other creditors.  Bond holders, UCC, advancing 
their interest in what the appropriate 
settlement would look like, and the result is 
a settlement that has achieved the consensus 
of the company, the Monitor, the 
Superintendent and representative counsel of 
the CAW, and is subject despite objections to 
only limited objections from the other 
creditor groups to the UCC and bondholders can 
address.  
And, of course, is subject to the objection of 
Mr. Rochon, which I will also refer to 
briefly.  
In the Monitor's submission, the process of 
notice and how we got here today, which we 
discussed on the adjournment application, is 
important in that it should give Your Honour 
confidence that except for the objectors you 
are hearing, there is broad informed approval 
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of this settlement from the vast majority of 
stakeholders.  
Now, Mr. Tay has reviewed with you the 
settlement terms.  Each of the terms can be 
analyzed on their own in terms of their give 
and take.  What the give and take involved, 
and they can also be viewed as a package, and 
it's from the second perspective that I 
essentially ask Your Honour to look at this 
agreement, which resulted from this process, 
and that is that it's a package, and as a 
package, it represents a reasonable and fair 
result.  
Now, Your Honour has heard about the 
continuation of the non-pension benefits, the 
benefits that help payments and the medical, 
dental payments, etcetera, for pensioners, for 
disabled and how important they are, and those 
will be continued to September 31, 2010.  They 
are continued on a priority basis from the 
standpoint of other unsecured creditors.  It's 
a preferred treatment over their claims, which 
are stayed, but it's a fair result.  It's a 
better result than the alternative of stopping 
them in March.  And it's a better result, in 
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my respectful submission, than risking 
uncertain litigation against the backdrop of 
terminating the payments.  
The Health and Welfare Trust is not dealt with 
in the settlement, other than it is to be 
wound up to the future pursuant to a court 
approved plan.  In the meantime, to the great 
extent it's assets are preserved because of 
the amount of payment funded out of it are 
minimum.  So, it's being preserved.  
Your Honour has heard about the continuation 
of pension benefits, the regular current 
service of benefits until the end of September 
and the transfer of administration.  That is 
the benefit to the participants, beneficiaries 
of the pension plans, avoids having to deal 
with the winding up or termination at an 
earlier date.  
There is a cost in the eyes of other creditors 
to doing that, and that is that the payments 
are priority.  They may wish to argue against.  
But the result is better, in my respectful 
submission, than the alternative of the cut 
off payments, and the alternative of the 
litigation surrounding it.  
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Your Honour has heard about what essentially 
is the settlement of the issue going to the 
Supreme Court of Canada, which is a 
termination date.  
A benefit to the terminated employees who are 
not receiving that severance.  They get some 
of that paid on a priority basis now.  Cost to 
other creditor groups.  Once again, a balance.  
Your Honour has heard about the releases and 
the agreements about the ranking claims, which 
I put into the same category for analytical 
purposes.  Quid quo pro of the deal is to 
apply certainty to the nature of the claims 
that can be made.  Former employees, pension 
fund participants, beneficiaries, LTD.  And 
that is they agree not to waive claims, but 
except to the extent that the settlement 
allows priority payments for the certain 
period of time to treat the balance of the 
claims as ranking without prejudice, which may 
be the exact result that with the expense and 
the litigation.  What is a negotiation result 
providing certainty in terms of going forward 
with the plan.  No argument about the 
classification of creditors or priority of 
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treatment.
The releases, which implement that, as Mr. Tay 
pointed out, are permitted.  There are 
exceptions to them.  The directors, the CCAA, 
and there is a part for any beneficiary 
release for fraud and the releases therefore 
serve an important purpose of certainty.  
So, Your Honour, the overall benefits 
achieved, as Mr. Tay has said, and as I 
describe in the course of my submissions when 
I said the challenges, the settlement meets 
the challenges that it was face and fairly 
balances the interest of all stakeholders in 
achieving.  I want to address, Your Honour, 
briefly what the objections are.  
So, that when the objectors rise they have the 
benefit of the responses.  I would boil down 
the material that Mr. Rochon delivered into 
three basic areas of objection.  
The first is that the economics of the 
settlement agreement for those LTD 
beneficiaries who are represented by 
Mr. Rochon are not satisfactory.  It's not 
enough.  He has a pain -- the painful effects, 
anything less than full payment of all 
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benefits, and that is true.  
The effects are painful.  
But, the comparison unfortunately cannot be 
the full payment.  It must be to the realistic 
alternative, and the Monitor wishes for the 
other, and that is the reality.  The benefits 
to the end of December 2010 to a cut off at 
potentially the end of March.
The comparative is preserving the Health and 
Welfare Trust by having the company fund the 
benefits, compared to using the Health and 
Welfare Trust assets for their benefit.  The 
comparator is what alternative was available, 
and here counsel and they will address you in 
more detail, but representative counsel and 
the financial advisors have both concluded 
that the settlement is the best outcome in the 
circumstances.  It's a judgment call, but it's 
an informed, reasonable, and professional 
judgment call that is better than the 
alternative.
The second objection, the second broad 
objection area is to the releases.  
Once again, the comparator is to the 
alternatives.  Risky, uncertain litigation.  
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Delay in getting paid.  
So, in my submission, the releases the 
objections to the releases, viewed against the 
benefits of the settlement as a whole is not 
an objection that Your Honour should give 
effect.  
The third objection, and you will see in 
Mr. Rochon's material is about the nature of 
the representation of the representatives and 
representative counsel.
The Monitor was engaged in these negotiations 
as a court officer and had an excellent 
vantage point on how the interest of all 
stakeholders were being served, and the 
Monitor does not agree with the criticism 
made.  The Monitor supports the description of 
the representative and representative counsel, 
and it's in their material that shows the 
governance and strategy, and their desire to 
fight hard on behalf their behalf to achieve 
the best possible outcome.
Your Honour, let me turn briefly to the 
objections that are before you from the 
bondholders of the UCC.  
The first objection is the famous H2.  If Your 
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Honour has the Monitor's report, tab b of the 
settlement agreement.  It's there, and H2 is 
found on page 10.
When considering that objection, in my 
submission, it's important to keep in mind the 
idea of balance.  H2 is part of the balance.  
The other side of that balance, one is H1.  
Where there is an agreement in the CCAA 
proceedings, by the representative on behalf 
of their constituents, that they will not 
support, ask for, participate in any plan that 
gives them -- other than pari passu treatment 
without other unsecured creditors.  They 
didn't have to make that agreement.  
As any settlement, there is a quid pro quo.  
There is a balancing provision, where 
stakeholders give up something in exchange for 
getting something.  H2 leaves out the both 
sides.  Gives both sides the ability to argue 
for any future change in the law in a 
bankruptcy.  
So, we are dealing with an uncertain future 
event, and an even more uncertain future event 
that is an amendment to law. 
THE COURT:  There are two that you have 
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mentioned, and Mr. Rochon spoke about the 
importance of certainty, and I would like you 
to expand on that from that standpoint.  I 
read the briefs of the UCC and bondholders 
where their prime point is that H2 does not 
provide them with a certainty.  
MR. ZARNETT:  H2 leaves something open 
possible further developments.  There is no 
question about that.  That was a right that 
the former employees and the LTD beneficiaries 
counsel would not give up, and that was, if 
there is a change in the law, in the event of 
a bankruptcy, they may want to argue for the 
applicability -- as anyone else would have the 
ability to argue against that change.  And if 
the law were to change in the direction of 
other stakeholders, they would have the same 
right.  There is no assurance which way or in 
whose favor.  
In my submission, this is an acceptable level 
of reservation of rights, and it is part of a 
package.  Hard to analyze outside of the 
package.  It would change if that provision 
was not there, and that is the Monitor's main 
point on that.  This is a package.  
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Representative counsel came to this agreement 
by securing the agreement of the company and 
others for this provision.  
THE COURT:  When you say it's a package, what 
are you getting at?  If I understood Mr. Tay 
correctly, he says, if you don't like it, you 
cannot change any portion of the package?  He 
didn't expand on that part, whether it's 
feasible to consider package "a" or "b", or is 
it one or the other?  
MR. ZARNETT:  I think as was pointed out, the 
client has a decision to make under those 
circumstances.  But the Monitor does not take 
the position that he is bound to go ahead with 
that if the provision is not there.  The 
Monitor did not agree on that basis.  You will 
hear from Mr. Zigler as to how important that 
clause is, but it's the Monitor's view if it's 
been negotiated as part of the deal, it can be 
analyzed and approved as part of the package 
as an accepted --
THE COURT:  Is it either, the option is either 
approve this deal as is or not approve, or is 
there a third option?
MR. ZARNETT:  There are two and a third 
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practical.  The practical party is, if the 
parties do something, but the transaction is 
being put to Your Honour in fairness to 
everyone that has signed as a package.  The 
approved package.  
Your Honour made the comments in Grace that 
the Court not analyze the settlement on a line 
by line basis if elected to alter the 
agreement.
This would involve part of the transaction of 
the Monitor.  That is something that is 
consistent.
The amount of real uncertainty is minimum.  
Nonetheless, it has to be balanced against the 
significant certainty that is at present.
I wanted, Your Honour, to bring to your 
attention as quoted in paragraph 61 of the 
UCC'S factum.  The principle officer of the 
U.S. endeavors wrote a letter to the Monitor, 
essentially making the same point about which 
to otherwise supportive of the agreement.  I 
didn't want to bring that to Your Honour's 
attention, but, in my submission, it should be 
dealt with in the same fashion.  
One last comment to Your Honour, and that has 
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to do with the credit and payments, the UCC 
claims that payments to the employees should 
be credited against the distributions rather 
than against claims, and the Monitor says 
that, we note that observation.  And, again, 
the deal was crediting them against claims.  
That was part of the quid pro quo and, once 
again, despite the invitation that take part 
on the settlement basis.  It doesn't introduce 
any significant interference.  Subject to any 
questions, those are my submissions.
-- Mr. Zarnett's submissions concluded.
THE COURT:  Thank you.  I don't know if you 
want to start?  How long do you expect to be?  
MR. ZIGLER:  I will be at least an hour.  
THE COURT:  We will not start with you now.  
Mr. Tay, two o'clock is the joint hearing with 
the United States Court.  It was not possible 
to accommodate in this room, so it's across 
the street in 393.  What exact motions are 
being heard?  
MR. TAY:  It's the approval of the special 
incentive program.  Those are the two matters.  
I don't suspect they will take all that long, 
subject to what the other's view is.  
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THE COURT:  I have heard that before.  Is it 
possible that this hearing could continue 
later today? 
MR. TAY:  We would be happy to do that if you 
think that is possible.  Yes.  We understand 
they still have some objections with the U.S. 
trustee, so it may take some time.  I don't 
think we should hold people, and then find out 
we cannot make it.  Tomorrow would be better.  
THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Zigler, 
Mr. Rochon, with respect to your attendance 
this afternoon, as far as the clients are 
concerned, the room we have this afternoon is 
not in any way capable of accommodating these 
numbers.  The room is limited.  There are 
about two rows of seating in the public 
gallery.  So, we will have to do the best we 
can.  
MR. ROCHON:  Maybe we can have a couple of 
representatives to accommodate the smaller 
group.  
THE COURT:  Whatever you can do to coordinate 
that.  It's not what I call "ideal" but it's 
the best that could be accomplished.  
MR. TAY:  Tomorrow, is it possible to start at 
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10:30?  
THE COURT:  Whatever time you want to start.  
I just want to make certain that we finish 
tomorrow.  I think with the time estimates the 
Court has been provided, that is possible.  
MR. TAY:  We have another small motion 
tomorrow. 
MS. STAM:  The motion, we have agreed we 
received notice of the adjournment.  We spoke 
about that a few days ago.  We agreed on 
materials to adjourn, likely to April 14th 
date.  
THE COURT:  All right.  
MS. STAM:  There is a side agreement motion 
that was served yesterday with respect to the 
transaction. 
THE COURT:  So, that will be tomorrow as well.  
I did note in a number of the briefs 
references to previous Nortel decisions and 
Grace, and what I didn't see what any 
reference to the reasons and the funding 
agreement.  I don't know whether those have 
been made publically available.  
All right.  So, we will break until two, and 
it's courtroom 708 at 393.
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--- Motion adjourned to March 4, 2010.
March 4, 2010
--- Upon resuming on March 4, 2010.
--- CVAS Endorsement.
THE COURT:  This is the endorsement relating 
to the motion heard yesterday afternoon with 
the CVAS business.  The motion was granted 
with oral reasons to be delivered later.  
These are the reasons.  
This hearing was conducted by way of video 
conference with parallel motion heard in the 
U.S. Bankruptcy Court with His Honor Justice 
Gross presiding over the hearing in the U.S. 
Court.  
This hearing was conducted in accordance with 
the provision of the Cross-Border Protocol, 
which had been approved by both this Court and 
the U.S. court.  
The applicants moved for approval of an asset 
sale agreement, dated December 22, 2009.  The 
sale agreement among NNC, NNL, NNI, and 
certain other entities identified therein 
collectively as the "Sellers" and GENBAND 
Inc., as "Purchaser."  GENBAND is also 
referred to as the "Stalking Horse Purchaser."  
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The transaction was for certain assets of the 
Sellers' Carrier Voice Over IP and Application 
Solutions Business, known as the CVAS 
Business.  
The motion was not opposed.  The evidence 
record consisted of an affidavit sworn by 
Mr. George Riedel, Chief Strategy Officer of 
NNC and NNL, and the thirty-fourth report of 
Ernst & Young Inc.  The Monitor filed its 40th 
report and provided background information 
with respect to the sale and events leading up 
to the motion.  
On January 6, 2010, this Court granted an 
order approving the "Bidding Procedure Order", 
Stalking Horse Agreement, as well as certain 
bidding procedures for the sale.  Upon 
obtaining the Bidding Procedure Order, Nortel 
continued its sales, efforts with respect to 
the CVAS Business and a number of potential 
interested parties were contacted with respect 
to the CVAS Business.  Two parties expressed 
interest and were deemed Qualified Bidders.  
At the Bid Deadline, neither of the bidders 
submitted a bid and neither Qualified Bidders 
requested an extension of the Bid Deadline.  
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The Monitor is of the view that the 
applicant's efforts to market the CVAS 
Business have been a comprehensive business 
and were in accordance with the Bidding 
Procedure order.  The Monitor is of the view 
that the GENBAND transaction is the best 
transaction for the sale of the CVAS Business 
and recommends approval of the applicant's 
motion.  
I am satisfied that the unchallenged record 
establishes the sale process has been in 
compliance with the principles set out with 
Royal Bank v. Sound Air and Crown Trust v. 
Rosenberg.  
All parties are of the view that fair 
consideration is being obtained for the assets 
included in the transaction, and I accept 
these submissions.  
In my view, it's appropriate to approve the 
Sale.  An order shall be issued to give effect 
of the foregoing.
--- Endorsement concluded.
--- Brief recess.
--- Upon resuming.
THE COURT DEPUTY:  Could I have your 
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attention, please.  Could you insure phones 
and PDAs are off.  Also, no outside drinks.  
We have assisted devices for anyone with 
difficulty in hearing.  Anyone that speaks or 
would like to have French translation, we have 
headsets, and if all recording devices could 
be shut off, please.  
If you have any concerns, just approach one of 
us in the blue jackets, and we also have 
America sign language available if anyone 
requires it, but if nobody does, we may have 
him -- if the services are not needed, we may 
release him once court is up.  
THE COURT REGISTRAR:  Order, all rise.  Court 
is in session, please, be seated.  
THE COURT:  Good morning.  
MS. RUBENSTEIN:  I wanted to address something 
that was discussed yesterday in submissions.  
At the conclusion of yesterday's hearing, the 
Court asked Monitor counsel what the options 
were with the special H2, and counsel said 
there are the following:  Approve the 
agreement as is, not approve the agreement.  
Counsel also pointed out a practical 
alternative would be if the court expressed 
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concerns to the parties, including the 
agreement with paragraph H2, the parties could 
be given the opportunity to reconsider the 
matter.  
The Monitor wishes to be clear.  We support 
the agreement with paragraph H2.  The Monitor 
would also support paragraph H2.  The 
Monitor's primary concern is that the 
settlement be approved and implemented as soon 
as possible.  
THE COURT:  Yes.  Thank you.
Mr. Zigler, good morning.  
MR. ZIGLER:  Good morning, Your Honour.  I 
will be referring to a number of documents, 
and I think it's best you know which ones in 
advance so you can have them before you and 
the matter could proceed quickly.  
My friend provided you a list of all the 
documents that everyone -- all the material 
supplied to everyone.  I will, of course, be 
relying on the material that is on the list.  
I want to make sure you have it, and that 
would be the responding motion record of the 
clients.  The reply affidavit of Susan 
Kennedy.  That was filed late in the day.  I 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

74

will provide you with that.  
THE COURT:  That would be helpful.  
MR. ZIGLER:  And, of course, the factum and 
brief of authorities.  In addition, I will be 
relying on one of the authorities that is -- 
that was passed up by Ms. Stam with this list, 
and that is Your Honour's own endorsement of 
May 27, and I would also be referring to the 
39th Report of the Monitor, and the second 
supplement to that, dated March 1.
Thank you.  
From the perspective of what is before you, 
Your Honour, whether this agreement is fair 
and reasonable, because my clients are client 
appointed representatives, and court appointed 
counsel, Mr. Archibald for the former 
employees and the disabled, Mr. Campbell could 
not be here today, but we're here today, and 
as well as the various committees.  It is 
certainly our view that you must look at this 
as fair and reasonable, not just from the view 
of all the creditors, but because we are 
appointed, we take it seriously and my clients 
take it seriously, that you see this as fair 
and reasonable from the perspective of us, 
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perhaps that is just the other side of the 
same coin.  
If something is fair and reasonable for 
everyone else, it's fair and reasonable for 
this one party, but it's important because 
they are representatives, and the dynamics of 
an insolvency and the negotiations that have 
to take place to try to reach an agreement to 
assist the people they represent don't prove 
for the total disinterest of almost 2000 
people willing involved.  Not for the disabled 
people, although Mr. Wadsworth represents 100 
of them.  The 1200 members.  My clients cannot 
go back to each every one of them.  
This proceeding only works sufficiently if 
it's allowed and allows us to represent them, 
and it is important for Your Honour to be -- 
you accept that that is a burden you have to 
meet.  And as well, relative to other 
creditors, all of the people we represent are 
in a different position than the usual 
creditors before the court.  
They are not creditors.  They are not traded 
creditors.  They are not cross border 
claimants, and they are not pension funds.  
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They are not a regular player in the 
insolvency.  
They have to compete with other creditors for 
what is left, and so we have filed before you 
material that deals with both processes and 
the result of the settlement agreement, and 
although there is serious hardship for 
everyone, it doesn't matter what situation you 
are in, they all have to accept, and they 
should be provided the safety net.  
You have material before you with respect to 
that all the disabled employees suffer.  
The ones that are represented by Mr. Rochon 
and the rest are in the same situation.  They 
lost income they thought they would have for 
their retirement.  They will lose some of it, 
and who will pay for it, and loose health 
benefits they were depending on.  They are 
pensioners that live on smaller incomes.  That 
pension will be cut if there is not enough 
money.  Despite the government guaranty.
There are active employees that lost jobs and 
have not been able to find employment.  Many 
may never find employment.  There is 
regrettably a lot of misery, and we are not 
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here to deal with whose pain is worse.  
That is not something the Court could deal 
with and not something representatives can.  
It's a regrettable social reality.  
What we are here to do and be objective to the 
clients is to do what is reasonably possible 
to alleviate some of that, while still 
allowing some further recovery for these 
people.  
And in that context, no doubt you have read 
and my friends from the UCC, the client put 
before you lobbying efforts they have done, 
they are undertaking government authorities.  
That is not for here.  I don't know why that 
is before you, but it's a serious social issue 
that this court cannot deal with.  I ask you 
to only look at what is fair and reasonable in 
terms of matters of what this court can, and 
the representatives and their objectives, and 
they adopted a strategy that is clear, is 
threefold.  
One, try to keep things funded as long as 
possible and obtain additional funds to do so, 
because the payments to health benefits and 
disability and pension continue since the 
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original order.  Something unusual to take 
home... (inaudible) swears in the affidavit, 
but our objective is to continue to Monitor, 
and that is what we are here before you today.  
It's to continue it out of funds in the estate 
that are not credited against the ultimate 
recovery, because we could easily say, let's 
not negotiate anything, pay something now, and 
what we recover will be credited against, like 
a hardship.  This is not the exercise of this 
nature.  If it was so, this would be a much 
more simple matter.  
Our clients wanted to without giving up 
whatever is left for tomorrow, and that was 
the first and sole objective of this 
agreement.  The issue, of course, is what you 
give up to obtain, and that is why we are 
speaking to Your Honour in terms of measuring 
what is fair and reasonable.
There are other strategic objectives in this 
proceeding.  There are the two pension funds, 
and the HWT, and Your Honour will hear more 
about that, but those are not for today.  
I think Your Honour has to understand and 
assist in what we are doing today, and I will 
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have to take you to some documents, but we are 
not dividing up the HWT.  We are here for the 
client.
So, going back, in addition to evidence, some 
piece of mind and trust is important, in 
addition to the actual and the extent.
And the third objective of the client, the 
same as everyone else, is to maximize the 
state in Canada, so that there will be some 
serious distributions out of the Nortel estate 
to help compensate for losses.  
So, there are three different sources of funds 
that we just talked about, and in addition to 
what Your Honour came up with on the standards 
matter, hardship funds seem to now be a 
consideration.  There are people that have 
particular economic hardship.  
Later in the day, nobody has to do without the 
possibility of creating more of that, but that 
too is not before the Court today.
Let's just talk about which is before you.  
And in a nutshell, and I think in the 
affidavits of Kennedy say so, it puts serious 
money in the pockets of these people in 
desperate straits where there is no other 
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immediate source available of which 44.2 
million was an additional negotiation matter, 
and it puts them ahead of everyone else with 
respect to those amounts.
The amounts are estimates, because what they 
represent, what they represent are the cost of 
providing benefits to the end of the year.  
Some of these are easier to determine.  
Long-term disability income payments.  Health 
benefits go up and down.  There is no flat 
dollar negotiations here.  It's whatever costs 
are provided for the benefits to the end of 
the year.
And as I indicated, it allows for the ordinary 
transition of the pension plan and allows for 
some protection for the rest of the year for 
health benefits, disabled, and there is this 
matter of H2, and I will address that as well.  
It, too, is a piece of protection that my 
clients bargained for, made concessions for, 
whatever it needs, and we are not here to 
parse the wording.  It's something they 
received in exchange for something else and 
there are trade offs.  This was a negotiation, 
and the material before Your Honour makes that 
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clear.  
A letter was written by us on January 6 to 
realize the money was coming from the U.S., 
and there was additional money coming, and 
there was no room for continuing these from 
March 31.  
We asked for more than we received.  We were 
offered a lot less in the beginning, 
negotiations from January 6 to February 8.  We 
were before Your Honour on January 21 to 
insure we made an agreement, and that it 
didn't prejudice. 
And there were many negotiations.  And 
ultimately, the clients were fully aware, and 
I intend to take you through some of those so 
Your Honour understands, because there were 
significant dollars, and it does come at a 
price.  
Mr. Rochon is not here today to put in 
factum's.  I think not.  And, of course, 
Mr. Rochon's factum says it's giving away the 
story.
I will take Your Honour through the reasons 
why.  The concessions that my client gave come 
in two categories.  One is giving up 
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litigation, essentially litigation against the 
director and the trustees of the trust, except 
in cases where one and the only types of 
situations where they in (inaudible) CCAA and 
situations of fraud, and those claims against 
directors.  
In that respect, that is not a difficult 
concession to make.  
In the sense it's suing directors for the sake 
of suing directors, doesn't do much, and one 
of the things I want to impress is that the 
representatives take this matter of litigation 
seriously.  It doesn't fit our mandate to let 
everyone else bring litigation in the hope of 
obtaining settlement.  It's brought through 
court-appointed counsel, and it's a serious 
issue.  
Any suggestion that my client gives up 
litigation for the sake of the system is 
contrary to our mandate and would be 
irresponsible, and I will refer the Court to 
what --
Litigation against the Health and Welfare 
Trustee, there may be something there, but 
it's risky.  I will take Your Honour there.  
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The concern was that it wouldn't amount to the 
shortfall of these people.  The damages would 
be, and then what one has to weigh is what we 
receive for giving up that.  Mr. Rochon 
addresses litigation in the factum.  He 
doesn't address trade off for risk, and 
ultimately in what manner to proceed.  There 
is also the other, the second trade off.
It's the recognition of something, we all know 
what would happen in an insolvency and 
unsecured creditor, and although we are under 
the CCAA, and the structure and the affidavit 
of -- when the restructuring turns into CCAA 
the being pushed. 
Any other creditor would be convinced the 
Court, and so the priority of the bankruptcy 
are always moving, and my clients are aware of 
where that could get them.  Yes, there are 
some charges and pension funds in the pension 
statute, and protections in the standards of 
wage, and the standards act but my friend 
Mr. Tay and Mr. Swan put before you cases, and 
the Court of Appeal decision, and The Supreme 
Court of Canada.  My colleagues have been 
involved in cases going up to the Court of 
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Appeal, and there has been no success.  There 
are other cases in this Court, the Quebec 
Court, the decision that Mr. Wadsworth is 
aware of.
So, in assessing the situation, yes, we can 
try to take it to the Supreme Court of Canada.  
Again, is it better to receive true 
consideration, additional pension funding to 
September, and then order a transition and 
plan of payments?  
We try.  There is an argument, but it's one 
that has not succeeded in so many cases.  So 
is it reasonable to give that up for what was 
retained?  Yes, Your Honour.  It is.  I don't 
think Your Honour is called upon -- you are 
not called upon to assess, I think what you 
are called on to assess is, is it reasonable 
to have settled for what we obtained in 
exchange for?  
Then there is H2, it's a key protection.  
If Parliament changes law, no rights would be 
released in effect for the exchange.  It's a 
recognition for the Parliament that the 
release is here, don't give away something my 
clients have been actively seeking.  
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It is not an attempt to buy time to change the 
laws, as Mr. Macfarlane puts it.  If that was 
the case, maybe the clients would be better if 
they cut off the benefits immediately and say, 
look what happened.  It's an attempt to 
protect themselves.  So they are not seen to 
be releasing claims where if by some rare 
possibility, the change in the law were to 
occur would benefit and it's central to my 
clients position.  
Mr. Zarnett put it well.  There is an H2, and 
there is an H1.  You would not need H2 if 
there was H1 and with negotiations, and that 
is not the role of the court.  The role of the 
court, and the case law, and I took you to 
it -- but it would be most unfair to take the 
position that my friend Mr. Tay put, let's 
take it out.  Sure, we can take out all sorts, 
take out the payments to the client.  We are 
not here to renegotiate the agreement.  
Mr. Rochon says, take out the release against 
the company.  I would like to sue them.  
We are not here to renegotiate the agreement 
in open court.  
It's simple:  Is this fair and reasonable? 
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I want to take you to the trade off, and maybe 
the best way to look at them is to look at the 
39th report of the Monitor, and it's in this 
case set out in that report.  
At paragraph 32, it brings the amounts 
received, and you can read that.  It's easy to 
read the wording.  
Now, these are the benefits, and it talks 
about the estate of the entire year in 
exchange for the releases and recognition.  
And the first item is pension and medical 
benefits.  There are 24.4 million.  
Most of that, by my estimate, is the 
incremented amount, because this was in the 
budget.  
So, 18 million, and then we have 3 million.  
The next three items are fully negotiated new 
items for STB are survivor and people, 
families of Nortel who died in service, and 
there is no survivor pension, then there is 
the self-funded disability.  
All of these, survivor disability income, they 
were self insured.  Nortel did not insure.  
You may have an interest about when they told 
them it wasn't insurance.  At the end of the 
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day, those claims are not released.  
These payments represent a full year's worth 
of income paid out without. 
Then there are the pension payments of 8.9 
million dollars.  Some are extended to 3 
million and extends into September for current 
service, and I think I explained that.  
Cases don't help us that much.  Better to take 
something away.  
The last item, the termination fund, I think 
the quid pro quo for that is straightforward, 
and that is, the terminate received under the 
protection plan and bankruptcy.  This is not 
bankruptcy.  
So, again, a few thousands dollars ahead.  
It's the first payment against their claim, 
not against recovery, and they give up 
applications to the Supreme Court of Canada.  
On cases before judges have regrettably, I can 
think of one of them, that said you are not 
entitled to get the payments. 
It's straightforward.  Is it reasonable to get 
this or shall we take our chances?  
My client's view is that it's reasonable to 
settle, and, again, Your Honour is not being 
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called upon to decide the merits of that case, 
although you already have, but to see if it's 
reasonable or not.  
I think what is evident from all of this is 
that most of the settlement pertains to the 
types of pensions dealt with in (inaudible), 
and it does so for a couple of reasons.  
Partly because of the hardship.  
The pension payments continue and will 
continue on, whether it's at the current level 
or whatever the level is.  They will pay the 
level until September, and then there will be 
no funds for the pensioners and the disabled. 
And the termination issues are already dealt 
with, but it's the health benefits and the 
disability income payments.  
And the exercise here is to try to protect 
those suffering the consequences.  It is not 
by chance that, for example, the SIB, LTD 
payments, 16 million dollars plus benefits, 
almost 20 million dollars, goes to for people, 
that is 400 -- (inaudible). 
It should be slanted that way because of the 
consequences to the pensioners.  Held up.  
What comes out of it and the trust?  
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Of course, the pension fund, but it's hardly a 
situation where those who have a difficult 
situation are not receiving a fair amount. 
The pensioners' health is important.  
And the pension payments are important.  It 
may be more money in total, but there are 
12,000 pension.  You have to keep this in 
mind.  All of this is dealing with money here 
in exchange for some things that don't 
compromise funds.  
The court-appointed representatives have sworn 
affidavits, and it's clear from their 
perspective that this is the best they could 
achieve. 
They did so on the advice of counsel and 
actuaries, and on the advice of a financial 
advisor whose affidavit is before you in the 
responding record, and I think it speaks 
volumes about the dynamics.  
Mr. Tertigas says, and he has extensive 
experience, and his affidavit is tab 3.  It's 
a short affidavit.  It makes it clear in 
paragraph 6, that this is a beneficial result.
If not for the settlement, the payments would 
stop March 31. 
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The cash flow statements of Nortel and the 
cash received is the bulk of the assets, being 
transferred under the CCAA, other than what is 
necessary to finance Nortel's Canadian 
operations.  
So, basically what the Monitor company has in 
Canada, the applicants have in Canada.  That 
is not in the lock box for all the assets, is 
not assets that meet the Canadian assets and 
having been sold.  The cash they have that is 
available is a big chunk of it, based on their 
need in the agreements and is going to the 
benefit of the people they represent.  He's 
not a lawyer.  
But as a layperson, in a legal sense, but in 
experience in insolvency and from the point of 
view of our clients, litigation, rather than 
taking the -- it could be risky and uncertain.  
You don't have to be a lawyer to figure that 
out; although, for those of us who practice in 
the litigation field, we know it as 
court-appointed counsel.  We don't really like 
it, and perhaps as well in this province we 
work under a loser pays costs system, and it 
would be risky outside of the scope of the 
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CCAA for people to be bringing class action 
lawsuits, leaving aside a stay, facing the 
possibility of the plaintiffs who are already 
disadvantaged and cost awards if not 
successful.  
Based on that, Mr. Tertigas concludes at 
paragraph 14:  

"Based on the above criteria, I 
firmly believe that both the Former 
Employees and Disabled Employees are 
better off under this Agreement."  

Sure, in the CCAA there are probably more 
creditors in the unrepresented group than 
anyone else.  That gives them some power in 
the plan, but it doesn't give them the ability 
to impose a plan, because they are not the 
greatest (inaudible) people.  
And so, the stalemate is of no assistance.  
The ability to block a CCAA plan is not given 
up in the settlement agreement.  If there was 
something that the CCAA plan felt was 
inappropriate, clients may exercise rights.  
What happens if the CCAA plan fails?  
In his experience, that is of no assistance in 
terms of trying. 
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So you have his opinion, and I think that 
speaks volumes given what we feel, but it's 
also the advice of Mr. Tertigas. 
I want to talk briefly about the process.  
My factum deals with that in some degree.  
Starting at paragraph 15 of Mr. Sproule.  It 
sets out the numbers at paragraph 15.  
The pensioners have created an organization 
called the NRPC.  This is not a situation 
where you just appoint a court representative, 
and then there is counsel that doesn't deal 
with the matters that have to be dealt with.  
Yet it's clear that those concerns are dealt 
with in the organization.  
Similarly, with respect to the disabled 
employees, they are a small group, and it's in 
paragraph 21, 22.  There is a group called the 
CNELTD for disabled employees, and they -- 
although they are disabled, they try to 
communicate by way of the internet and chat 
rooms, and so on.  They lobby and have their 
case for medical benefits and the case that I 
pointed Your Honour to.  
In paragraph 25, both groups -- the factum 
sets out in the next section of the 
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negotiations, and what I described to Your 
Honour earlier.  
The settlement agreement was executed on 
February 8, 2010, after many rounds of good 
faith negotiations, and paragraph 29 sets that 
out in the affidavit.  Again, RTC was 
apprized.  
Your Honour has to be concerned, I think to 
some degree, with some understanding that 
there is a con.  Some of them swore an 
affidavit with Mr. Rochon that they were not 
consulted.  One cannot neglect consulting 400 
people, especially when there is confidential 
information and agreements.  That defeats the 
purpose.  There is a union negotiation on 
behalf of its members, nor can they talk to. 
All they can do is get the best deal they can, 
and communicate that, and then come before you 
and suggest that it's a reasonable deal, and 
that is what they took.  
Notice was given.  I will not take Your Honour 
through it.  
At the conclusion of our motion record, if you 
turn it up, there is an affidavit of a 
gentlemen in our office that sets up hundreds 
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of people that were contacted either by 
telephone or email, and it shows 450 
inquiries, and I can tell you as an officer of 
the court, I tried to respond to all of them.  
Mr. Rochon does.  We have a webinar which for 
the information before you is in the Kennedy 
affidavit.  
We had a webinar on the 23rd of February.  It 
was advertised, in addition to letters going 
out.  Mr. Woo swore, over 1200 people 
participated by internet, and 250 by phone.  
Those are the estimates.  
The questions are asked.  They are answered.  
And regrettably, some people still oppose the 
transaction of settlement.  I believe based on 
the Monitor's second supplement, there were 
some six or seven pensioners who found the 
notice of opposition. 
Seven former employee pensioners, one 
terminate, but that person, and 30 LTD, most 
that Mr. Rochon represents here, and certainly 
the process here today was designed to let 
them speak.  
Once we are done, Mr. Rochon will have an 
opportunity to speak.  
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But in all, there are a small minority of 
people represented, and the small minority of 
the people that participated in the webinar, 
and phone calls, and they are entitled to 
their opinion -- of course.  
But, the long and the short of it, in my 
submission, is that those who oppose, the only 
alternative to opposing the settlement is to 
force litigation.  
To force litigation against the directors.  
It's to force litigation against the trustee, 
and to force litigation in this court to try 
to argue for things that we will not be 
successful on already.  
It was evidence in the Employment Standards 
case, pension, and many cases I referred Your 
Honour to.  I think there is in Mr. Rochon's 
material a request that there is a special 
class of employees under the plan.  Apart from 
being premature, it would be problematic, and 
I think Your Honour earlier renounced saying 
we had a special class for all.  
We cannot hold CCAA accountable, but they can 
approve they are not the biggest.  So, to what 
end would that help?  I don't know, other than 
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to hold up a system. 
So, that is really the alternative, and what I 
want to take Your Honour to.  I spoke to you 
about the pension litigation, and I will not 
repeat myself.  
The Employment Standard speaks to the Supreme 
Court of Canada's actions against directors, 
and really the only other person being 
released, and it's evidence in Mr. Rochon's 
material, is the trustee, and the order to -- 
for Your Honour to conclude this is a fair and 
reasonable settlement.  I want to take you 
through the risk of that litigation against 
the trust.  
And I went on a little longer than I thought I 
would, but I think it's important.  
THE COURT:  Yes.  
MR. ZIGLER:  The argument as I understand it, 
the trustee, Nortel and that part we all agree 
to the extent at large.  The argument would be 
that the extent of the other funding is so 
great the trustee should somehow be 
responsible for it, because they somehow 
failed in their duty.  
The Monitor discusses the Health and Welfare 
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Trust, starting at paragraph 45 at the 
Monitor's 39th report, and they put in the 
trust agreement, which I will take you to and 
state at paragraph 48.
This trust has been around since 1980 and 
provides benefits and funds benefit and puts 
into effect, such as a health care plan and 
long-term disability plan, an income plan and 
short-term disability plan, and it's a trust 
to give effect to the health and welfare plan.  
This is not a pension plan.  
Same kind of funding requirements that Your 
Honour had before you last spring on pension 
funding.  It doesn't apply to this.  
In fact, the Monitor speaks clear in that 
paragraph, and says it's a tax-efficient 
vehicle.  

"The Monitor has been advised by 
its counsel that Nortel was under no 
statutory or other legal obligation to 
establish or to fund a health and 
welfare trust and there is no 
regulation applicable to the HWT."

There is some, but it's unclear.  Certainly 
there is no statutory, and certainly the legal 
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obligations are questionable.  
They go on to say:  

"Based on the Monitor's review to 
date, the HWT has never had sufficient 
assets in the trust to pay the present 
value of all the benefits for all the 
plans that are designated under it, 
nor was it legally required to do so."

And we certainly agree with that statement.  
Fully funded is part of the issue.  There is a 
reference in the next paragraph that gave us 
concern, and I can assure Your Honour, giving 
up this litigation is not done lightly.
There was 37 million dollars on the financial 
statements that is due from Nortel.  
Basically what Nortel did is it had tried to 
set up research for LTD benefits and 
retirement benefit, and somewhere paid for 
other health benefits out of the excess assets 
of the trust.  
That troubled us.  That troubled us.  It's 
claiming Nortel is no bigger than -- I think 
Mr. Rochon speaks to that.
The last item in the Monitor's Report is right 
at the conclusion of the report.  It's called 
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the Nortel Appendix H of the 39th Report.  
There is a financial statement, and you will 
see a signature to the document, and you will 
see at page two, what the assets of the trust 
look like.  All of the assets are in the 130 
million dollar range.  
One of the items is viewed from a sponsoring 
company and the last item 37 million, and that 
is the amount that the Monitor is talking 
about.
In our view, we might say, where is the 
trustee in this?  The trustee may not be 
responsible for the funding that the company 
does not have to fund, but Nortel holds 37 
million dollars, and I want to clarify, it's 
not that they took money out of the fund, our 
investigation is that the cash flow 
(inaudible).
But, Nortel didn't pocket the 37 million 
dollars.  It was money they should have put 
into the fund.  Where is the trustee in this?  
So, we examined the obligations of the 
trustee, and there is, regrettably, the 
Monitor put the original 1980 trust agreement, 
the original trust agreement 1980 is in this, 
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and the subsequent amendments were not put in.  
They are in the second supplement.
So, if Your Honour will bear with me, I will 
point to the analysis that gave concern to my 
clients on releasing this claim.  And reading 
it, I can take Your Honour to two or three 
provisions of this document, Article 4, page 
12.  It appears in Appendix "E" of the 39th 
report.  
THE COURT:  Page? 
MR. ZIGLER:  12.  And it says that the 
employer has to contribute.  It may be 
asserted and may otherwise be required from 
time to time for the purposes of the plan and 
determine on the basis.  
So, that does reference some sort of funding 
arrangement, but it's unclear.  It references 
the claim.  Paragraph two refers to the fact 
it has to be done every year.  Paragraph 3 
makes it clear that the company, not the 
trustee, is responsible to meet and discharge 
the payments and liabilities.
Now, I contrast that with what Your Honour 
will deal with later on in this proceeding, 
when this is determined that article 6, 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

101

section 2, on page 40.  
Article 6, section 2, indicates that upon 60 
days notice, the corporation will determine 
the plan, because notice of termination must 
have 120 day and satisfy all.  So they make a 
determination.  But it goes on to say:  

Also determine on the sound basis 
the amount of money necessary to 
satisfy all future benefits of the 
trust.  And it is only in that in 
instance (inaudible) liability for 
future benefit claim and, hence, the 
statement by the Monitor and may be an 
obligation on Nortel's part ...  they 
don't all come due.  

The shortfall does not come due unless and 
until the -- and we have not hit that stage 
yet.  
In fact, that is what we are trying to avoid 
until the end of the year before, so the money 
keeps go to the trust.  
I draw Your Honour's attention to one more 
provision, page 16, called the Claim 
Beneficiaries.  In fact, cannot claim against 
the trustee.  The trustee is allowed off the 
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hook, except through the corporation, so must 
from Nortel.  You already have a claim in this 
case.  
And the corporation has to indemnify. 
What we have is the trust would be put on, and 
take it to the prevision because of the 
amendments.  We have another stay possible, 
because Nortel (inaudible). 
There is an amendment to the trust document 
that the Monitor filed in the second 
supplement.  They both involve the trust.  
Northern Trust did not become until December 
2005.  So if you go to last 3 pages of the 
second supplementary, December 1, 2005.  
THE COURT:  Which tab is that?  
MR. ZIGLER:  Mine is not tabbed.  Wait, yes.  
Tab "E".  
THE COURT:  Okay.  
MR. ZIGLER:  In fact, there are two documents.  
One is the December 1, 2005 appointment of 
successor trustee, and these are the last 
three pages of the tab different. 
THE COURT:  I have that.  
MR. ZIGLER:  It's the second one I want to 
draw Your Honour's attention to.  
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It's also dated December 1, 2005, and it's in 
the form of a letter, but if you look at the 
last line, it says:  

To the extent necessary, this 
shall constitute amendment to the HWT.

And you will see in that document, in the 
second paragraph...

Anything to the contrary of the 
trust document, we, Nortel, agrees 
that Northern Trust has no 
responsibility to determine and review 
the Monitor amounts (inaudible) Health 
and Welfare Plan or administrative.

So, the trustee no longer has the obligation 
that I pointed you to earlier.  They don't 
have the obligation any more, because Nortel 
agreed it's not. 
The next paragraph is also important.  And 
that is if Nortel agrees that it should be 
solely responsible for determining the 
contribution amounts and on a sound basis, and 
the issue of trust.  
And then it repeats the indemnity that the 
trustee has.  So there is direct and indirect.  
They are identified.
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So, again, we have concern about 37 million 
dollars.  However, suing the trustee, as is 
evidence in this document is difficult.  
It doesn't mean the trustee doesn't have a 
common law obligation to the trustee, but to 
the extent it can be indemnified, it's excused 
and may have no liability or damages as to 
what they do wrong.  
Perhaps as Mr. Rochon suggests with the 
(inaudible) it's a relief.  That is the loss.  
Is it the whole 37 million, I doubt it.  Is it 
the full shortfall for all future benefits 
under article six?  Not realistic.  
My clients might like that to be the case, but 
we have to be realistic.  We don't want 
litigation with no chance of success.  We have 
with Nortel.  But at the end of the day, what 
are they receiving to give up the claim?  If 
you look at paragraph 40 and 42, it's in about 
the range of 38.  That is growing for HWT.  
Either the disabled people or pensioners will 
benefit from this trust.  
So, my clients conclude that it better provide 
a source of money now rather than litigate.  
It's real money.  It's real debt.  It helps 
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people today and provides relief today.  
Nothing in the end will provide the relief 
that is ultimately necessary in suing trustees 
and director.  Nobody will give these people 
100 percent, but if you are giving up this 
claim, it's a lot of money.  Rather than 
rolling dice on litigation.
So, in terms of objections and the record, I 
think the trade offs are clear, but they are 
traded off for substantial.
I think Mr. Rochon also in his motion, it is 
not before you, I think that has to do with -- 
I won't spend a lot of time on it, but he 
represents 39 people or perhaps all the LTD.  
Your Honour has already granted.  He opted 
out.  My client, Ms. Kennedy, has done her 
best, despite being subjected to a lot of 
abuse.  Abuse by sick people.  But she does 
her best.  The committee does their best.  
Some of them don't like the results.  The 
consequences are harsh.  
Your Honour, the May 27th endorsement made 
that clear, where determining employees with 
their own representation order, and that was 
dealt with.  And, in fact, the active 
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employees.
THE COURT:  Mr. Rochon says there is.  
MR. ZIGLER:  And I don't see how that is the 
case.  From the evidence in respect of this 
settlement, there are many claims against the 
same fund, and the idea is to balance their 
interest in such away that they all have a 
claim, and the court-appointed representative, 
Ms. Kennedy and her committee, in their 
assessment have concluded they are better off 
with negotiations together with the pensioners 
and determine employees to get a result, 
rather than being left alone.  
I think all Mr. Rochon is saying is with 
respect to speculation, is later on, when we 
deal with the Health and Welfare Trust there 
may be some issue, and you -- as Your Honour 
said -- when we come before you, we have the 
ability to send Ms. Kennedy to other counsel 
to acquire legal advice, but they have 
counsel, and until such time, it's evidence to 
us that there is an actual conflict or it's 
evidence to them where they are concerned as 
our clients.  
It doesn't lie in the realm of a group of 
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individuals to say, I think I can do a better 
job, or I think I would rather bring this 
lawsuit.  That is what it's about.  
No motion was brought before you to say, I 
think I need a better job.  My clients have 
not had a full opportunity to respond to it, 
and I don't think that is before you.  Nobody 
opted out.  
To the extent benefits are available to 
different groups, and they try to resolve 
their claims in an equal way, people have 
their own lives and commitments.  
Again, there is an avenue that you can order, 
and if it comes to that, we will proceed on 
that.  As far as negotiations are mandated, if 
you take it to its extreme limit, every 
individual has a conflict with every other 
individual, and there is 20,000 people that 
could argue:  "My interest is not the same." 
It would be unmanageable.  
With respect to H2, I am not going to spend a 
lot of time on the law, but briefly on the 
concept of H2.  The other side.  We have 
Mr. Rochon's client and the other.  
THE COURT:  Before you do that, the 
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translators would like a short break.  How 
much longer do you expect?  
MR. ZIGLER:  15 minutes.  
THE COURT:  Mr. Wadsworth? 
MR. WADSWORTH:  The vast majority I wanted to 
speak about has been covered.  I would assume 
half an hour.  
THE COURT:  We will start again at 12 noon.
--- Brief recess.
THE COURT REGISTRAR:  Order, all rise.  Court 
has resumed.  Please, be seated.  
THE COURT:  H2?  
MR. ZIGLER:  H2.  I think the difficulty with 
their submission, apart from the fact this is 
something that was bargained for between the 
company, Monitor, and my client, and 
Mr. Wadsworth's client, is the concern about 
certainty, and let me address that.  
There is certainty in terms of lawsuits.  
There is no question about that.  Lawsuits 
that have been traded off.  There is certainty 
about status in the CCAA.  There is certainty 
so we have an end to litigation, and we have a 
predetermined classification in CCAA.  The 
only thing that is -- well, what happens if 
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Parliament in this country, but they believe 
to be the right thing.  
All of this, my clients want it understood 
that by agreeing to certain releases, if the 
law changes, it then knows, they had not 
prejudiced themselves in terms of getting the 
benefit of the change in the law.  
There is always uncertainty in agreements 
brought before the Court.  You cannot have 
absolute certainty.  Every sale agreement in 
this matter that has been brought before the 
court.  
Your Honour has the uncertainty of we don't 
know how much of the proceeds of the sale will 
end up in the Canadian estate.  Is that a 
reason not to agree?  
THE COURT:  I will hear that again. 
MR. ZIGLER:  Every sale agreement that 
involved international assets, there is 
uncertainty.  That being, how much of the 
proceeds of that sale end up in the Canadian 
estate?  Should we object to every one of 
those agreements?  
My clients are amongst the largest Canadian 
only creditors.  The bondholders have a 
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guaranty on both sides of the borders for both 
sides of the bond.  The UCC has claims in the 
U.S., and inter claim company in Canada.  It 
matters a lot to our clients.  Yet we are 
stuck with that uncertainty, but it's no 
reason to hold up the sale of the assets and 
in auction process that has gone up.  I think 
similarly, that is what applies here.  
There are no absolutes, but there is no reason 
why we cannot clear up the process under the 
current law, and deal with some matters going 
away in exchange for benefits today, and if 
these uncertainties occur, change in the law, 
what would happen? 
If priorities get reordered, the result is the 
same.  There would be more money going to my 
clients.  It really doesn't change matters 
any.  
My clients don't want to be prejudiced in 
terms of a release they gave, and that is all 
this is about, and, certainly, the position 
and it is unfair to say, what happens if you 
take it out? 
As I indicated earlier, it's quid pro quo.  
The Grace case and other cases make it clear 
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-- and you don't have to turn them up -- it's 
either approve or not.  It's not really 
appropriate for parties to renegotiate in 
front of Your Honour, and it's not really 
appropriate.  
In fact, I think there is one case, maybe if 
there is a technical error, the Court can 
correct it, but if it's a substantive issue in 
negotiations, it would not be appropriate for 
the Court to rewrite the agreement.  Although, 
in my submission, in this case, it's something 
of great importance to my clients.
So, yes, well, there is a slim chance that 
something else might happen one day.  If it 
happens, it happens.  It involves an act of 
Parliament.  That is why the company and 
Monitor agreed.  They didn't see it as great 
prejudice to the estate or process.  
I support Mr. Tay and Mr. Zarnett to criticize 
the Monitor for something that helps 2000 
people, and this is going beyond and far 
reaching is with all due respect incorrect, 
and I want to speak one minute and about the 
letter from Mr. Ray to Mr. Binning (phonetic) 
and to the Monitor, and with all due respect 
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NNI is now a creditor in the Canadian estate.  
I don't know why the letter was sent other 
than to contrive evidence put before you today 
so say, we don't like it.  
The UCC can say that without the letter, it is 
my submission, a waste of the company's time.  
A waste of the legal plan to put those kind of 
letters before the Court.  We know the 
argument.  I don't think you should give that 
letter any credence in terms of what a 
creditor says.  I don't like the agreement.  
That is all it is.  They are entitled not to 
like it.  My clients don't like many 
agreements that have come before the Court.  
Excluded them over the lock box issues, while 
the bondholders are part of that negotiation.  
That happens.  
But the test is:  Does this advance the 
estate, and does it protect my clients, and 
does it because of the unique nature of the 
court order, and does it protect the creditors 
as a whole, and, in my submission, the risk is 
so small for what is obtained that it's a fair 
price to have been paid from the company on 
the Monitor's part, and it's important to my 
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clients.  They would not have signed the 
document without it.
In terms of the law, Your Honour, I won't 
spend a great deal of time on this, I take you 
to the Red Cross case. 
THE COURT:  Before you move on to that, it's 
obvious that the H2 issue will be raised by 
others.  You will have the opportunity in 
reply to respond to whatever concerns they 
have raised, and whatever concerns I may raise 
at that time.
Mr. ZIGLER:  But as far as the general 
concept, I liken this to a class action, and 
it's interesting that in Red Cross, Justice 
Blair, there they were dealing with the plan 
of arrangement, but set out the key 
circumstances that are at paragraph 73, the 
public interest, the interest of the debtor 
and the interest of the stakeholder, and, in 
my submission, those are all met here in terms 
of giving some additional protection to my 
clients, but, more important, moving the 
process forward and avoiding serious public 
consequences in terms of lining up a pension 
plan premature or forcing people off of health 
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benefits premature.  The interests of the 
company were spoken to by Mr. Tay.  
In the book of authority and parallel, there 
was a class action involving the Red Cross, 
and many of these CCAA create serious public 
consequence and serious social issues.  This 
is front and centre before you.  There are 
disabled people and pensioners that will face 
large losses.  
And in Parson and Red Cross, and if you look 
at tab one of the book of authorities, the 
decision of now Chief Justice Winkler, and 
it's a residential school case, and he was 
approving a settlement in that class action, 
and at the bottom of page 4, Justice Winkler 
discusses the role of the Court.  Especially 
where the subject matter has broader social 
and political implications.  
You are not faced with quite the same, but 
broad social implications for the people that 
are pensioners and disabled.  
And, quoting Red Cross, and I believe it's 
Justice Sharp at the time when on the trial 
bench.  This is the Red Cross class action, 
Parsons.  
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"It's the recognition that we only 
have a legal process here, and the 
Court is constrained by its 
jurisdiction to determine whether the 
settlement is fair and reasonable, and 
that is a class action test as well, 
and in the best interest of classes as 
a whole in the context of the legal 
issues, consequently, may be valid in 
the social political context remain 
that."

And I bring that to your attention to say, the 
social political consequences of people losing 
their disability income, pension income, 
health benefits, are not issues that this 
court can deal with.  
What this court can do, in the context of 
litigation, is say that it's in the best 
interest of these people to give them some 
relief for now, based on a reasonable 
settlement than to leave them without that 
relief.
The issue of third party release has come up 
in this case, and I want to address that 
briefly.  I think Your Honour addressed it in 
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the Grace case.  That is Grace number one.  
You need not turn it up, and it was addressed 
in the Muscletech case in my book of 
authorities, and there are - it was addressed 
in the asset bad commercial paper case, where 
it was the biggest issue.  There are tests, 
and they don't apply in every case, but I 
think in the most part met here.  That is, 
there is a direct connection between releases 
and the CCAA.  
I showed you the indemnity given to the 
trustee.  The directors are the subject matter 
of the directors charge and before the court.  
Those are the key releases given, the pension 
claims are also before the court.  Based on 
those releases, that are connected to the uses 
before you.  Not only does the court have 
jurisdiction, it is important for the process 
to go forward.  Reluctant as my client are to 
give them, but they pay that price in order to 
get the settlement.  That is what they were 
faced with.  
I see nothing that would preclude this court 
from going ahead, because if we were to carve 
them out, we would not have an agreement.  
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It's sort of the flip side of the H2 argument.  
I would love to carve out a release or two 
here, but then the clients don't get 44 
million dollars to their benefit and don't get 
H2.  That is the difficulty with that.  
I am not going to repeat the law in terms of 
submissions that have been made about these 
releases by my friends, but I do refer Your 
Honour in terms of context of H2 and Grace, at 
paragraph 99 and onward, and 102 of my factum 
is a case I will draw to your attention, 
because Mr. Zarnett raised the matter of what 
are the alternatives.  
In the context of plan of arrangement, but 
it's no different than settlement.  The court 
concluded, it boils down to two.  One is to 
reject and the other is to sanction, and that 
is the alternative you have, and, in my 
submission, dealing with the settlement, it's 
no different and that is what was done in 
Grace and York.
In conclusion, Your Honour, because I think I 
have addressed the H2 issue as much as I can, 
this is an extremely difficult case in terms 
of the pain that people suffer.  
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On the one hand, you have people that want to 
object to this settlement because of one 
clause:  H2.  On the other hand, you have 
people that would rather engage in litigation 
than take this.  
Mr. Tay told you, maybe it's a good 
compromise, and I agree with that.  But more 
important, it shows that everybody has to 
compromise.  There is a quote to that effect, 
and I believe it was the Asset Bad Commercial 
Paper.  Nobody gets what they want, and what 
is a zero to some, some gain.  
And, yes, people will lose.  But to the extent 
that my clients have tried to alleviate that 
suffering for a period of time at a price that 
is reasonable, and that is what we ask you to 
conclude, because that is the test in the 
class action case I pointed you to.  
Both Parsons and others I referred to in my 
factum, there was the reference to the zone of 
reasonableness.  You are not called upon to 
adjudicate.  You are called upon to rule on 
whether it's fair and reasonable, and, in that 
respect, we do a lot of good for a lot of 
people by approving the settlement.  
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We put other people at risk.  The majority if 
we go through litigation and for the harm that 
would result in cutting off the benefits at 
month end if there agreement were rejected, 
and those are my submissions.  
THE COURT:  One case that is referenced is 
Calpine, and it's been a little while since I 
read it in detail, but I believe it involved a 
settlement agreement by a group in the context 
of a priority issue of secured and unsecured.  
This situation, potentially today, involved 
with or without the NN charge on inter company 
advances, a situation where there are no 
secured creditors.  
Mr. ZIGLER:  That is correct, but it's the 
situation as well, during the course of the 
CCAA and this is not settling any claims in 
terms of claims in the CCAA, during the course 
of the CCAA, pensions have been paid, benefits 
have been paid, and this is part of continuing 
the operations of the company that are 
shrinking for the rest of the year.  It's not 
an attempt to reorder priorities.  
THE COURT:  The point I just raised, as to 
whether it will form one of the issues or 
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points that have to be considered, if everyone 
is in agreement the test is what is fair and 
reasonable, is arriving at that conclusion 
when in effect, without getting into voting 
issues, you may well have a stalemate coming 
out of this with neither the employees side 
with huge numbers, being unable to carry a 
two-prong test on a vote, and as it stands, 
the position of the UCC and the bonds, being 
unable to do the same thing.  It's another 
issue. 
Mr. ZIGLER:  My answer to that:  We have that 
issue no matter what, and we are not resolving 
that today.  We can't.  This only resolves, 
essentially, continuing benefits for a year 
and protecting people in exchange for 
litigation coming to an end that may be there, 
and a process where we know the status of the 
claims in the CCAA, whenever it happens.  
There is an agreement.  This agreement makes 
it clear.  Despite the power that my clients 
may have and the bondholder and the UCC in any 
ultimate plan, we are all equal.  That has 
been -- that is significant in terms of making 
it easier in terms of developing a plan.  I 
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grant you that, but it doesn't predetermine 
the plan in any way, or the negotiations that 
might surround that plan, and there is no 
attempt to do that at this stage.  
At this stage, we don't know what the assets 
in Canada will be.  I think you have to view 
this in the context of what it tries to do, 
and there is too much of the view that it 
tries to predetermine the future when a lot of 
that cannot be determined, because there are 
factors beyond or control to deal with that.  
Thank you.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  
Mr. ZIGLER:  I want to add one thing, my 
client reminded me.  I took you to the second 
supplement of the Monitor in the last 
agreement between Northern Trust and Nortel, 
and it's clear, in terms of the public 
disclosure.  It didn't happen until March 1.  
My clients, we have access to these documents 
through nondisclosure agreements, but the 
Monitor did not make it public until March 1, 
and that may cause consternation for people, 
but it doesn't change the content of the 
document.
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THE COURT:  I have this that says the motion 
record.  I have supplementary motion record, 
factum and brief of authorities.  I would like 
to have them.  Thank you.  
MR. WADSWORTH:  Thank you, Your Honour.  I 
guess I have to start by saying that the 
following is not in any way -- I have never 
been involved in a situation where there have 
been so many corporate lawyers and 
representatives that have been working hard to 
insure that continuing survivability for 
working people that suffer the effects of what 
is a corporate meltdown.  
Even those that oppose the settlement are not 
opposing it's fundamental goal.  
I suspect it's not necessarily out of 
corporate altruism, but out of self interest, 
because both parties give up things to get 
where we are today.  
The union is of the position that this is a 
step in acknowledging the rights that these 
people have, both moral and legal with respect 
to their pensions, their incomes, and the 
benefits that they have worked hard to 
achieve.  
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Those rights are, unfortunately, limited in 
scope by the laws of this country and do not 
provide the full protection for those that are 
and will continue to be hit hardest by the 
economic situation in which this company finds 
itself.  
Part of that, that causes difficulty is the 
uncertainty as to what will happen to them in 
their future.  
This settlement agreement, to which the CAW 
canada is a signatory, alleviates for a short 
period of time some of the uncertainty 
surrounding the receipt of income and 
benefits, and the status of their pension 
plan.  
It's not a settlement to the final rights, 
through the assets of Nortel to which these 
individuals have entitled, and to a degree to 
the company and other creditors by providing 
an assurance that long and distracting 
litigation on issues relating to priorities 
will be avoided.  
There is also the additional benefit for those 
in title to the life insurance premiums and 
those that have been terminated - including 
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CAW members.  
It's also beneficial in that it assures that 
those who have defrauded or misrepresented to 
the detriment of the members will be held to 
account and that right is maintained.  We are 
not happy with the settlement, but we are 
satisfied with the settlement.
We have given up things that we wish to 
retain, and in order to receive things that we 
believe we are entitled to, but in many cases 
have not obtained before the courts.
Benefit for our people includes the 
continuation of LTD medical income, and dental 
and life income to the end of year, 
continuation to retirees to the end of the 
year.  Survivor income and transition income 
benefits.  The continuation of deficiencies 
payment and current service payments to the 
end of September this year.  
The funds to make this do not reduce for the 
benefit of these programs.  That fund is 
maintained and provides a benefit to these 
individuals when it is distributed. 
In terms of our representation rights that 
arise out of the motion that was brought 
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before you yesterday for the adjournment, it 
must be clear that CAW members in receipt of 
long-term disability benefit and income from 
Nortel and HWT are subject to the trust 
agreement between Nortel and the union.  
A copy of that is in the materials, and by its 
terms, the agreement applies to facilities 
that are closed, including those in Kingston, 
and St. John's.  
Pursuant to the terms of the collective 
agreement and under the legislation, the CAW 
and is the sole and exclusive bargaining unit 
in terms to the relationship, whether or not 
it's specifically provided for in the 
collective agreement.
Essentially, the union has sole jurisdiction 
in terms of hiring and determination in terms 
of collective agreement.  That is subject only 
to the duty to representatives pursuant to the 
labour legislation, and we do that in this 
agreement.  The test for whether or not we 
fairly represent is whether or not we have 
acted in an arbitrary or bad faith manner, and 
there has been no accusation that we have 
acted in such a fashion, and we would take 
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that seriously.
As to those that have retained the CAW, to act 
on their behalf, and they are primarily former 
CAW members that are current retirees of 
Nortel, after the issuance of the order, we 
sought retainer and received 632 and continue 
to act on their behalf.  
The retainer provides that the instructions 
relating would come from the union itself, and 
that is based on the no cost, and the former 
relationship with the union and rights under 
the current collective agreement, and the 
grievance.  
All of those that signed those retainers were 
entitled to discontinue.  None have done so.  
Those that we were in contact with, were kept 
apprised of the fact that negotiations were 
occurring in relation to benefit continuation, 
and the union continues to represent a small 
and smaller group of active employees of 
Nortel who, like the LTD members, are subject 
to the collective agreement and exclusive 
bargaining agency.
Our representation, as with the pension or 
retirees continues, even after the termination 
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of employment, because all of the rights that 
those persons have approved are in relation to 
entitlement under the collective agreement, 
and it's under that they it would be 
determined.  
The union has held meetings and communicated 
by email, telephone, with all of those that we 
represent.  
With respect to the settlement agreement, the 
union sent, what is at tab 2 of the motion 
materials.  Those who have retained the union, 
counsel were provided with a copy of that 
letter in advance of the issuing of the notice 
letter of today's proceeding.  Certain 
individuals did not receive a letter, due to a 
new but incomplete mailing list, and they were 
primarily long-term disability people.  
A new letter was sent to those that did not 
receive it, and we have not been notified by 
any of those individuals that they objected to 
the union signing the agreement.
Union representatives have spoken to hundreds 
that called our office and spoke to my 
assistant and certain ly with one of our 
students, Ms. Johnson, who dealt with the bulk 
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of the calls and emails that were received.  
Overwhelming and entirely, our signing of the 
agreement was endorsed and the agreement 
itself was endorsed.  
It's not to say they are not frightened and 
angry and frustrated people out there, that 
are mad about what is happening to them.  They 
build this company and promised what they did 
would in part be compensated in the future, 
and now the future is here, and they have to 
face the fact their past labors have been 
devalued and certain futures are now 
uncertain.  And that is what we face, and this 
settlement agreement provides short comfort, 
and hopefully from a union perspective a 
belief they have not been abandoned, and they 
will be properly represented.  
There is opposition by a few long-term 
disability recipients, and from the material, 
and notice of appearance, there are a number 
of CAW members that seek long-term disability 
benefits and subject to the collective 
agreement that is file those notices.  It's 
certainly our position that these individuals 
are subject to the collective agreement, and 
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the exclusive bargaining agency and are not in 
the position to object to which the union 
agreed.  
It's our position they may not have done so 
had they received the letter we sent in 
advance of the notice letter, but 
unfortunately they did not receive.  
In the notices, it appears they are clearly 
fearful of what happened to them after 
December 31, 2010.  In the settlement 
agreement, it provides the breathing space to 
deal with this, including putting in place 
employment related claims process and dealing 
with the distribution of the Health and 
Welfare Trust.  
There is an anger that the rights they thought 
they had, in our case under the collective 
agreement, disability and pensions are being 
lost, and we -- the union -- are also angered, 
and that is why we lobby to change and better 
protect people in this situation and will 
continue to do so until that is achieved.  
Some want to maintain rights they feel may 
provide a greater benefit for them or will 
punish those perceived in wrongdoing, and that 
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right is maintained in that agreement.  If 
there is a legal obligation that was avoided, 
or if there was a misrepresentation that 
resulted in legal rights or entitled being 
lost, the right to put forward those issues is 
maintained in this agreement.  
More important, this agreement provides for 
the greater good by avoiding litigation over 
that which is legally acceptable.  
Some feel they are not provided sufficient 
information about the Health and Welfare Trust 
or were unaware of the company, that the 
company was the insurer of the benefit 
programs.  They are provided all documents 
that was asked for and some is subject to 
confidentiality, and much that is important 
has been publically disclosed by the Monitor.  
The union has not been asked by members or 
those that are have retained us for greater 
disclosure.  
With respect to those few individuals who have 
sought representation from Mr. Rochon and his 
firm, it must be noted that there is nothing 
that would provide a basis between those 
individual and those represented by the CAW 
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who vastly outnumber the particular 
individuals represented by Mr. Rochon, and in 
particular, the few represented under our 
collective agreement.  
I want to speak briefly, just simply with 
respect to our factum, starting at page 9.  
It's the sections that deal primarily with our 
jurisdiction under the Labour Relations Act, 
and that the decisions of the union itself are 
binding on all employees, and the bargaining 
unit is described to include those that are no 
longer employees of Nortel, such as long-term 
disability employees that don't work at the 
facilities but named in as being active, and 
my shot at H2.  
THE COURT:  Everybody gets a shot at H2.  Even 
the budget gets a shot.  
MR. WADSWORTH:  I noticed that, so someone is 
listening to us.  
The UCC and bonds are asking that H2 not be in 
there, in order to gain their approval.  The 
inference is that without it, any new 
legislation would have no effect on the 
settlement, except nothing in this agreement, 
when will negate.  
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Specifically applicable to the ranking of 
priority in Nortel insolvency.  The parties 
cannot agree, and I would suspect the court 
cannot approve an order to disallow the 
application which does not exist at this 
point.  
The agreement is replete with references to 
pari passu treatment of the pension plan and 
Health and Welfare Trust and amounts owing in 
relation to these.  
All that H2 does is permit the parties to 
argue for or against the application of any 
changes, to the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, 
not that they must or should apply.  The 
legislation will decide that.  
The agreement provides for nothing more than 
what would be ready and apparent in any event 
from the language of any future legislation 
with respect to the payment of the termination 
pay.  
The deal that it's that the payments of 3000 
dollars are impartial satisfaction of 
severance pay, and to be on at claim and not 
distribution.  The company is satisfied.  We 
are satisfied, and the Monitor supports the 
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position.  
In terms of the overall agreement, no other 
payment, LTD income or benefits, or pension 
benefits, or pension payments, are in account 
of distribution.  It would be inequitable to 
treat these any differently.  
I was going to turn to the factum of the note 
holders, and specifically to page 9, paragraph 
22.  
There seems to be an inference we are not 
giving up much for what we are getting here.  
Paragraph 22, it states the CAW in its 
communication to its member state that all 
members are giving up under the proposed 
settlement the possibility of locking up 
matters in litigation, and I go to what is 
highlighted.  
We have not given up anything but the 
possibility of locking this up in litigation, 
or the next line found in our record at page 
12 of Exhibit A, and I will read that.  
It says that is not and should not be our 
objective.  However, what we have given up is 
the right to try on an entire new set of facts 
and circumstances, and to have the court 
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determine under the current legislation a new 
view as to the rights of working people and 
families to get what they are entitled to.  
Giving this up was not done lightly.  
We have also given up the right to use this 
opportunity to make a better deal, based on 
the chance that new circumstances would give 
us greater bargaining power.  
Your Honour might have noticed that unions 
continue to bash their head against the wall 
in the hope that it will fall.  
We have also provided releases to everybody 
and their sisters, uncle, cousin and dog in 
this agreement.  
And as previously noted, H1 in the agreement 
provides that we have agreed to the fact that 
no plan may be approved which provides for a 
separate class for the pension and HWT and 
ordinary creditor, and that the claims of 
those Health and Welfare claims will run part 
of a term written over and over and over in 
the settlement agreement.  We are not getting 
a free lunch here.  
Finally, in fear of changes to the change of 
Bankruptcy Law, clearly the loss would provide 
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a greater strength to our argument, and 
certainly to our resolve that the Bankruptcy 
and Insolvency Act must be amended.
In closing, the three tests have been met for 
determining that this settlement should be 
approved as being reasonable, equitable and 
within the best interest of all creditors.  
The court has the jurisdiction to approve the 
settlement, and it's our sincere hope it does 
so, as soon as possible.  
Subject to any questions you might have, Your 
Honour.  
THE COURT:  Thank you. 
MR. ZIGLER:  Mr. Jacques would just like a 
moment.  
MR. JACQUES:  Good morning, Your Honour.  I 
will be brief in keeping with the overall 
moving theme and in urging you to accept, we 
adapt those submissions, and, we had 
discussion with the Monitor and legal counsel, 
and we are satisfied with the progress and 
information received.  We take comfort in the 
draft order to you.  Those are my submissions.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  
LAWYER (UNIDENTIFIED):  I act for the recently 
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served Canadian Nortel employees committee.  
Your Honour, my submissions will be brief. 
In light of its duties as administered of the 
pension plans, in the Board's view the 
agreement it's a monumental achievement and is 
a necessary step to assist the applicants to 
wind down their remaining operation and 
transition their affairs. 
As you have heard at length, no settlement is 
perfect.  It also requires compromise, and, in 
this case, extremely difficult compromises.  
The settlement is a culmination of some hard 
bargaining over a lengthy period of time, 
where all of the interests were properly 
represented and the settlement agreement and 
the board's view represents a fair, reasonable 
and i emphasize practical resolution to a 
number of complex and uncertain issues.  It is 
the package.  You heard from various counsel 
as to the trade Offs That Were Given in Order 
to Obtain Benefits.  So you have been 
presented with a package that is as a result 
of expensive negotiations and the Board 
believes that the package that is before you 
balances the interest of all of the 
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stakeholders and represents the best deal that 
is practically achievable, and I think that is 
something the court should be cognizant of.  
This is after all a hard bargain and to send 
people back, you have no expectation that 
anything other than what is before you will be 
achieved.  
If i could go up to the 30 thousands foot 
level for a moment.  The former employees and 
long-term disability.  The settlement creates 
security and provides notice and time to plan 
for the future.  For the current employees it 
provides a smooth transition to a structure 
that is more appreciate for Nortel work force.  
For the company, it eliminates the risk of 
cost and litigation regarding health and 
welfare trust claims and reduces cost and 
potential description to a plan and assists to 
retain employees necessary, from Creditors, It 
Clarifies the Status of the Pension Claim and 
Health and Welfare Trust Claims.  In contrast, 
not approving the settlement agreement will 
result in negative consequences for all 
parties.  There will be increased risk, 
uncertainty and disruption for the current 
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employees and increased cost, potentially the 
plan, which will get everyone out of this 
pickle.  
In the board's view, for all of these reasons, 
it's of the interest, in their view that the 
plan be approved, as it benefits all of the 
stakeholders.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  By my count, 
Mr. Rochon is still to address, as well I have 
been advised there are three individuals.  
Mr. Burns, Mr. Martin, and sorry?  Three 
individuals.
Any others?  If you could identify yourself, 
please.  I am just trying get an idea of 
timing.  We will generally take the lunch 
break at one.  Ten minutes?  Ten to 15.  Okay, 
and the third individual?  
I do not want to break up your arguments, so 
we will start at two o'clock to deal with 
those.  
Mr. Rochon, do you have an estimate? 
MR. ROCHON:  I think an hour.  
THE COURT:  I really don't know the positions.  
You may want to consult with them, and if you 
have a recommendation after lunch.  
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MR. ROCHON:  I am thinking I will go first.  
THE COURT:  I will see you at 2:00.  
--- Lunch recess.  
--- Upon resuming at 2:00 p.m.
THE COURT DEPUTY:  All phones off, please, and 
no chewing gum in the courtroom.  Thank you.  
THE COURT REGISTRAR:  Order, all rise.  Court 
is resumed, please be seated.  
THE COURT:  Just before we get going, some 
housekeeping.  I gather there are two 
additional parties wishing to make in-person 
representations.  If matters do not conclude 
today, they can spill over if counsel are 
available, tomorrow morning.  Same place, same 
time.  
I am quite prepared to go beyond 4:30 today, 
but I don't want that at the cost of some of 
the parties here not being able to stay beyond 
4:30.  
We may go to five o'clock, if that is not too 
onerous.  On that basis, are you able to stay 
until five?  We also have the other motion.  
How many counsel are in that?  Mr. Armstrong?  
And is there anything contentious there?
MR. ARMSTRONG:  I don't believe so.
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THE COURT:  Do you have any information as to 
whether Judge Gross dealt with that yesterday?  
MS. STAM:  Yes. 
THE COURT:  I would propose, I don't think it 
requires a reporter.  We will deal with that 
at the end.  Is that fine? 
Is there any problem?  
I just don't want to side track what we are 
into now.  So, we will deal with that at the 
conclusion, and I also have to take a break at 
3:30 to have a scheduling issue with Judge 
Gross coming out of yesterday.  All right.  
So, it seems that is the material for the end 
of the day.  Okay.
Mr. Rochon?  
MR. ROCHON:  Your Honour, yesterday you were 
handed up a copy of the supplementary record. 
THE COURT:  I have the motion record, the book 
of authorities, and the factum.
MR. ROCHON:  I will hand this up. 
THE COURT:  I don't think that had the stamp.  
I don't think there is real stickers, so we 
will do a one for one trade.
MR. ROCHON:  Thank you, give and take.  
As you know, I represent a group of the LTD 
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beneficiaries with co-counsel.  In total, 
there are now some 37 individuals who have 
retained us to object to the proposed 
settlement and to pursue litigation, where 
possible, to the extent -- subject to the 
court's disposition with respect to the 
release provisions.  
Now, I should emphasize from the outset, the 
right to object is fundamental to not only the 
bankruptcy proceedings, but also in class 
actions or other proceeding where you have 
representative counsel or class counsel, 
counsel that has been appointed on behalf of a 
group of individuals, and although we would 
not disagree with the fact that -- 
Mr. Zigler and the others have the right and 
obligation indeed to negotiate on behalf of 
the group of people, this obligation, or 
sorry, it doesn't take away from the fact 
there are also people out there that can come 
forward and object and that is the group, sort 
of the "special" group that I represent today.  
And those objections, as I know Your Honour 
realizes, those objections are serious.  
In this case in particular, and they -- they 
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are (inaudible), and we urge upon the court to 
consider those objections in the spirit in 
which they are intended. 
THE COURT:  Of the 37, how many fall under the 
CAW umbrella? 
MR. ROCHON:  I was hoping you wouldn't ask 
that question.  I have not done tally.  A few. 
THE COURT:  What is your position in response 
to Mr. Wadsworth, to the effect if I get his 
point that it's the CAW that has the exclusive 
right to represent that group?
MR. ROCHON:  I wouldn't dispute that, but that 
exclusive right does not preclude his own 
members from exercising their due process 
rights, and objecting to the settlement as 
it's proposed.  That would be my position.
In any event, there are just a few of those 
individuals that have retained us, and I can 
get a hold of that number, if that would help.  
As mentioned yesterday, we have in the 
courtroom a number of Nortel on long-term 
disability, and as you appreciate them here, 
they will be impacted by the settlement 
agreement if approved in the current form.  I 
agree with my friend's submission yesterday:  
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The court must assess the relative benefit and 
burdens on the parties.  
In this case, however, contrary to the 
positions taken by the settling parties, the 
rights of the disabled being extinguished far 
outweigh the benefits obtained.  There is 
evidence that any reduction in the level of 
benefits made current to the LTD will lead to 
a situation of extreme hardship and suffering 
for these individuals.  It's not overreaching 
to say what is at issue for the LTD 
beneficiaries is, in some cases, a matter of 
life and death.  This goes beyond feeling bad 
or happy about the terms of settlement.  
I believe if the court takes a moment of 
pause, it will be convinced of the necessity 
of agreement or at least several provisions 
conflict with the spirit and purpose of the 
act and are not really required to facilitate 
an orderly liquidation of Nortel.  While the 
proposed settlement does provide health and 
income benefits to the end of 2010, I believe 
on the evidence there was a reasonable 
prospect that such would have continued well 
beyond March in all events.  
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As such, the benefits obtained under this 
agreement may be overstated.  
As a trade off to the benefits provided to the 
LTD, the disabled Nortel employees are being 
asked to relinquish legal rights, and the 
shortfall of the HWT in excess of 100 million 
dollars.  That revelation, as Your Honour 
knows, comes in the 39th report of the Monitor 
released February 18 of this year.  
As I will discuss later, there are claims 
against some of the released parties that 
could eliminate shortfall and attended 
hardships of the LTD.  There is a solution.  
Having regard to unique circumstances, the 
settlement agreement as it stands now is 
unfair.  
In this regard, courts have recognized that in 
considering what is fair and reasonable and 
whether an appropriate balance of rights has 
been achieved, regard must be had to those who 
are most deeply impacted by the proposed 
agreement.  And there is case law talking 
about this, and specifically the rights of the 
objectors, and I will take you to that later 
in my submissions.  
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This agreement has not struck the balance, as 
I will discuss, the important rights of the 
disabled are wholly unnecessary to an order 
and offend and purpose of the act. 
THE COURT:  How do they offend it?  Where I 
direct this is, I have heard from a variety of 
counsel that there is no -- well, there may be 
some doubt if you get to the Supreme Court of 
Canada level, that things as they presently 
stand, the claims are all that of unsecured 
creditors.  
MR. ROCHON:  Well, the first concern we have, 
there are two.  Two major concerns, and one is 
the extent of release, and the other is the 
ranking. 
THE COURT:  You put to me twice now that the 
settlement agreement is at odds with the 
objectives of the legislation, and I would 
like to know how?  Because -- 
MR. ROCHON:  Well --
THE COURT:  Wait, hear me out.  
If one accepts that the claim is -- and not to 
get into quantum, but if the claims of LTD are 
unsecured claims, I have to understand the 
conflict with the objective of the act, which 
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when you get to a situation of distribution of 
assets to unsecured creditors is on a pari 
passu basis.
MR. ROCHON:  We heard Mr. Zigler talk about 
the 37 million dollar loan from the trust.  To 
have a release that extinguishes at this early 
stage of the proceeding, because this has 
several more steps to go before it's final, 
but at this stage to distinguish the rights of 
the LTD beneficiaries to bring action and make 
a claim for the 37 million from the trust fund 
is precipitous and unnecessary to the process.  
After all, lawsuits, it's our society 
mechanism to define rights, and taking away 
the right to pursue a claim to recover some 37 
million dollars that was for lack of a better 
word "alleged" to be taken out as improper, in 
breach of the obligations or misappropriated 
at worse, the money was taken out for a 
purpose that was not the purpose for which the 
trust was intended.  
MR. TAY:  Sorry to interrupt.  There is no 
evidence of that.  
THE COURT:  You are about five seconds ahead 
of me.  You will have to return to the basis 
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of your argument, because throughout your 
factum -- not just on this point, but the 
references that you have and the factual 
background is at odds with many of the other 
submissions, the written submissions filed, 
and if you want me to follow along exactly 
where you are going, you will have to take me 
to the references, because I am not just going 
to accept the colours you put on, because it's 
at odds from the submissions coming forward 
from the applicant, and also from the Monitor.
MR. ROCHON:  Well, in terms of the submissions 
of Mr. Zigler this morning, we share --
THE COURT:  There is a contractual obligation 
on the 37 million, but if we get to the 
suggestion money was taken improperly, you 
have to take me to the references, sir.
MR. ROCHON:  Why not start at the 39th report 
of the Monitor, Your Honour.  
Why not start with that report at Tab H of the 
report.  
And if you go in three or four pages, Your 
Honour, you will see a page headed up "Nortel 
Networks Health and Welfare Trust Fund" and it 
says: 
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"Statement of net assets for 
benefits, dated December 31."

And there is two columns, 2008 and 2007, and 
if you go down three quarters of a way down 
the chart, there is a heading "due from 
sponsor company."  That is the evidence with 
respect to the loan taken from the trust.  
And -- sorry.  
THE COURT:  It indicates to me that there is 
an obligation from the sponsoring entity to 
the trust of 37 million.  How it got there is 
not -- to me -- absolutely apparent from a 
reference to a figure in a financial 
statement.
MR. ROCHON:  I would agree in terms of it not 
being absolutely apparent, but, with respect, 
having absolute certainty at this early stage 
of the process is not the threshold that 
should be applied when determining whether or 
not rights to bring a claim should be 
extinguished absolutely, and if the agreement 
goes through in current form, the rights of 
the LTD beneficiaries to initiate that suit 
will be barred.  
So, in addition to the statement in this 
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financial statement, if you turn up our main 
motion record, Your Honour, in tab 6, this is 
the affidavit of Diane Urquart, and if you 
turn to page 9 of her affidavit, and at 
paragraph 22, there is a discussion of the 37 
million dollar HWT loan to Nortel, and it's 
her opinion that that loan is likely to be a 
loan for cash taken from the HWT in the past 
to pay for the pay-as-you-go employee benefit 
plan to pay contribution of funds on the 
pay-as-you-go benefit plan.  That included the 
pensioners medical and dental benefit, and the 
LTD medical and life and the survivor 
transitional benefit.

"If one takes the Settlement 
Agreement payments shown in Exhibit G 
attached hereto as a guide to what one 
year of claims for Pay As You Go 
Employee Benefit Plans, the annual 
amount runs at $39."

Then there is a parenthesis.  It appears to be 
a loan that was effectively made from the 
assets belonging to the LTD beneficiaries and 
survivors of Nortel whose proceeds were used 
for the benefit of one year of pensioners 
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medical and dental benefits, and other 
pay-as-you-go benefits.  
That is her thinking at this early stage as to 
what that loan was for, but since these are 
trust funds, and there are beneficiaries and a 
specific purpose to the trust funds, which is 
not the purpose that is for which these funds 
were used according to her, then we have a 
problem.  
We have a situation of breach of trust, in my 
respectful submission.  And it's a distinct, 
defined breach, and it relates to a trust that 
is a real trust.  This is not some deemed 
trust where there is no paperwork.  Yes, it's 
not a trust that's informed through 
legislation statute, but it was set up January 
1, 1980, and there were numerous trust 
documents that have been released, and we saw 
more documents related to this March 1st of 
this year the other day.  So we have real 
trust.  
We have professional trustee corporations, Sun 
Life, Royal Bank and others, and we have a 
formal trust structure that was represented 
and accepted in so far as there were the 37 
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million dollar loan taken out of the trust.  
It's one thing not to fund a trust.  We know 
for several years they did not fund the trust.  
That is one breach, but to take money from the 
corpus of the trust and use it for another 
purpose is -- 
MR. TAY:  Sorry.  There is no evidence of 
that.  Sorry to interrupt.  
THE COURT:  It's a concern, and I will ask 
again.  Mr. Rochon, if you are going to make 
those statements, you have to provide 
evidence.  I will not make a disposition on 
this matter.  It's a serious matter, and there 
has to be a record that you are going to refer 
me to if you want me to connect the dots in 
the way you submit it should be.  The 
allegations are serious.
MR. ROCHON:  The first bit is tab "H". 
THE COURT:  That does not prove the point that 
you are trying to make.
MR. ROCHON:  Then the opinion of Diane 
Urquhart, tab 6, paragraph 22, and it talks 
about this 37 million being a loan, and that 
is as high as I can put it right now, Your 
Honour.  
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And as I mentioned earlier, these are early 
days in the proceeding and in my respectful 
submission. 
THE COURT:  Okay.  We will try to focus here, 
Mr. Rochon.  I have evidence before me that in 
approximately three weeks time, I have no 
assurances that these payments are going to 
continue to this group of deserving people.  
All right.  Now, if that is -- that is what I 
have seen so far.  There is a problem brewing 
for March 31st.  
MR. ROCHON:  Your Honour, I would say to that, 
yes, there is a problem, because March 31 has 
been laid down as a deadline, if you will, at 
which time benefits may expire.  And I would 
say this, that we are not here trying to 
provoke a cessation of benefits to these 
people, whether it's the 37 I am representing 
or the 27 nonunion or the 410 when you include 
union.  
We don't want to cause hardship for anyone, 
but it's my submission on this point, the 
Canadian finance agreement that was negotiated 
last year and finalized January of this year, 
provided a fund of money.  I guess taken from 
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the U.S. operations through the inter 
jurisdiction transfer.  
If memory serves, approximately 198 million 
dollars, and it's that fund, at paragraph 92 
of the 39th report of the Monitor that funds 
are available and was available and, in fact, 
that fund is being used to help secure the 57 
million dollar security that Nortel is putting 
up to secure the payments up until the end of 
the year.  
Now, if memory serves, Your Honour had this 
before you. 
THE COURT:  That much I remember.
MR. ROCHON:  I was not part of the proceeding.  
I am trying to put the pieces together.  Your 
Honour express and reserved the right to 
order, if I have this correct, to order the 
continued benefits beyond March 31, and so as 
much as some of the stakeholders, including 
Nortel, would like to get this deal done, 
because you know, so many people put so much 
time and effort into it, and I am not 
belittling that, but it's within your power 
and jurisdiction to extend the benefits order, 
so that we can come up with an agreement that 
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we can all be supportive of.  
I think that is kind of -- that is the nexus 
of the matter, to extend beyond court order, 
while parties work out their differences, and 
the differences I suggest with respect to a 
release carve out of 37 million dollars and to 
give priority rights or not take away priority 
and to move down to the lowest common 
denominator with respect to equality.  
As Your Honour knows from your extensive 
knowledge in this area of the law, the quality 
does not always mean equity.  Equity does not 
equal equality.  
In this case, to drop the LTD beneficiaries 
down to the same level as an unsecured 
bondholder and then to bring their claims 
forward or they will be brought for them, and 
then to sort of swim in the 26 or 28 billion 
dollar pool of debt or bondholders, where 
these people were the beneficiaries of the 
trust that was formed 40 year ago -- sorry, 30 
years ago, in my respectful submission, that 
would be unfair to these objectors.  
So, the two main objections I have relate to 
what we have just talked about in terms of 
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that aspect of the release, and the other is 
release to the third parties in respect of the 
HWT claims, which interact with one another.  
Specifically, the trustees of the trust, the 
HWT, the officers and directors, the committee 
members, and those sorts of third parties, to 
enforce or to require that the LTD 
beneficiaries release these third parties is 
troublesome for our group, and, in my 
submission, not necessary for the good 
function of liquidation.  
As Mr. Tay and Mr. Zarnett mentioned 
yesterday, this company is no longer trying to 
restructure itself through the positive lens 
that it set out in this venture.  It's now a 
liquidation and insolvency process.  
So to have a lawsuit, or more than one lawsuit 
involving third parties, who may cross claim 
against Nortel -- and I emphasize "may".  But 
even if they did, this company is basically in 
liquidation now.  
So, why should we -- why should this agreement 
and why should the court sanction an agreement 
of these third parties that are not even part 
of this process?  Because in doing so, you 
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have to look at the harm that would be caused 
to the disabled.  (Inaudible) has calculated 
the effect of this deal for the average 
disabled person brings their income down where 
they live on $15,000 per year.  
I can not think of that situation where you 
are raising your self and you are well below 
the poverty line.  
You have people with MS, brain tumors, 
strokes.  You will hear from some of these 
people later today, and the financial impact 
will be huge on this group.  In exchange for 
giving us an opportunity through an agreement 
to sue third parties, in relation to the HWT, 
for instance.
So, the agreement as it stands would be highly 
prejudicial and completely unnecessary to the 
process.  The bondholders for instance, could, 
in my respectful submissions, not really care 
about a 100 million down on the amount that is 
potentially available in the Nortel estate, 
which is potentially as high as 6 billion 
dollars.  We are not even talking about half a 
percent.  Whatever the amount is.  16 and a 
half cents.  We are not even talking about a 
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fraction of a cent.  The money in this case 
doesn't really matter.  
The distraction factor is the primary 
motivator from the perspective of Nortel, and 
the Monitor and others supporting this.  They 
don't want to be distracted by the potential 
that there is a third party claim, bringing in 
someone winding down the company and selling 
off assets.
THE COURT:  This 100 million dollars that the 
bondholders don't care about, how does that 
factor into any decision that I make?  Am I in 
a position just to ignore it?
MR. ROCHON:  The 100 million dollar shortfall 
as opposed to the 37, you mean?  
THE COURT:  100 million doesn't really matter 
to them?
MR. ROCHON:  To the bondholders, in the 
context of the 6 and a half billion dollar 
estate when you look at cash and lock box and 
funds that come in up until the time of the 
final liquidation.  When you look at the 
relative impact of this, or the relative 
prejudice -- 
MR. TAY:  If he could show me where this is, I 
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would appreciate it.
MR. ROCHON:  When we look at this from a 
relatively speaking, in my submission -- I 
don't mean to be coy, but the 100 million is a 
small percent, even if it's lower than 6 and a 
half billion as Mr. Tay suggests.  
So, as Mr. Justice Farley spoke about in the 
Air Canada case, there is a difference between 
compromising rights and confiscating rights.  
The agreement, the way it's worded now, is 
more of a confiscation than a fair compromise 
of their right, and it's my further submission 
there is an opportunity here to you now get it 
right.  Strike the right balance between all 
the stakeholders, including the LTDs, who are 
objecting.  
THE COURT:  Mr. Zigler pointed out that the -- 
and I don't know if it's a coincidence, but 
the benefits that flow out is about equal to 
the $37 million number that is due from the 
sponsor.  
If that submission is accepted, how does that 
fit into yours that there is a confiscation of 
rights?  
MR. ROCHON:  From our calculation, the benefit 
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-- the fresh money, if you will -- from March 
31 to December 31, is in the magnitude of 12 
million dollars to the LTDs, and so that is 
the qualification of fresh money.  
MR. ZIGLER:  The 37 million is money that 
would have gone to benefit all LTD and that at 
this end, same thing. 
THE COURT:  Thank you.  So that clears up that 
part.  Sorry for the interruption.
MR. ROCHON:  No problem.
So, coming back to the working out on a 
solution, we had heard and, Your Honour, I 
just made submissions with respect to what 
would happen if we went beyond March 31st 
without an agreement in place, and I made the 
point that the continued payment of benefits 
under settlement agreement can be -- well, it 
is current from funds Nortel secured prior to 
the settlement agreement being reached on 
February 8, and Nortel would have access to 
these funds, even in the absence of a 
settlement agreement.
So, in terms of benefits coming from the 
settlement agreement, through the question of 
continuing the payments, it's my submissions 
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that they are not actually adding any benefit 
that was not already in place prior to the 
signing off of the settlement agreement.  
And my friend mentioned in his submissions the 
affidavit of Gus Tergus, and that is at tab 3 
of the responding material, and if you turn up 
paragraph 9.  
THE COURT:  Paragraph 9.  I have it.
MR. ROCHON:  It starts with the CFSA, and 
indicates:  

"... applicants will receive 
approximately $190.8 (U.S.) million 
under that agreement."  

I was a bit off.  
"I am familiar with Nortel's cash 

flow projections for 2010-2011.  The 
Settlement Agreement utilizes 
approximately $44.2 (Cdn). million of 
the $190.8 (U.S.) million amount to 
benefit persons represented by the 
Representatives and the CAW, which is 
the bulk of the assets being 
transferred under the CFSA other than 
those required to finance Nortel's 
Canadian operations in 2010-2011."
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So, buttressing the point I was making about 
money being available, and in coupling that 
with the reservation of making an order.  And 
going back to the 39th report at paragraph 92, 
it states, that is page 34 of the report.  
Page 34 of the 39th report.  Paragraph 92.  
The bottom.  

"As discussed below, the 
Applicants have sufficient funds to 
meet their payment obligations under 
the Settlement Agreement.  However, in 
the Monitor's view, it is appropriate 
in all the circumstances to give those 
entitled to payments under the 
Settlement Agreement the additional 
security provided by the Payments 
Charge." 

THE COURT:  I will leave it to others to 
comment on some of the other uses and demands 
being made on that.  Cash, that is, that you 
have identified.  It is back in one of the 
previous reports, but my distinct recollection 
is that it was allocated for various uses, and 
I think it is reflected in the last 
endorsement that one of the objectives is to 
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insure there are sufficient resources to make 
the CCAA proceedings to what is expected to be 
a conclusion, and I know for a fact that 
substantial resources there are required for a 
tax settlement.  
Mr. Tay might -- if I am off on my 
recollection, he will let me know, but there 
is that part as well as the day-to-day 
operations.
MR. ROCHON:  But at the minimum, there is the 
57 million security, and that is essentially 
putting up cash.  So, they had 57 million to 
carry benefits through to the next nine 
months.  
MR. TAY:  That was just a charge in the assets 
to make sure to give to the people that get 
the benefit of the settlement.  The assurance 
that if for whatever reason they run out of 
money, they are secured by that.  That is all 
that is. 
THE COURT:  Part of the issue may well be, and 
I recognize that your retainer is not going 
back to the beginning or even prior to the 
filing, but --
MR. ROCHON:  Yes.  Thank you for that 
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clarification.  
THE COURT:  And that is perhaps one of issues 
with that -- that prompted counsel back last 
May to make sure where a party is there to 
represent the group that deserves 
representation so there would be some 
institutional knowledge.
MR. ROCHON:  Which we don't have all of that 
knowledge right now.  When I read the charge, 
the form of security, I came to the logical 
but incorrect conclusion that that security 
was backed up with cash bonds or investments, 
but maybe it was just, you know, computers.  I 
am not sure what the form of asset was, but it 
must have been something identified and 
represented consideration for it to have made 
it's way into the agreement in the first 
place.  I assumed it was cash, but if I am 
mistaken it's not all cash, the people that 
are familiar with that can educate the court 
as to what it is exactly.  
So, in terms of what the February settlement 
agreement delivered, it has certainly 
delivered some benefits, but in terms of -- 
again speaking relatively, the relative 
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advantage of the February 8 agreement are not 
as strong and significant as my friends have 
made out.
Certainly, those supportive of the agreement 
cannot harold the fact it was responsible for 
the ongoing payment of benefits to the end of 
the year, because as I mentioned before, the 
CFA arrangement predated the signing of the 
settlement agreement on February 8.
Now, in terms of the gives and the takes, or 
the, you know, what the benefits are and what 
is given up of the February 8 agreement, as it 
relates to the LTD beneficiaries, the 
long-term disability income benefits will be 
continued until December 31, as will the 
medical dental life insurance.  Then, the 
treatment of the HWT claims related to the 
funding deficit or any of the HWT related 
claims in any of these shall not be advanced.  
This is where we get into the release and 
ranking language.  
These claims will not be asserted to make any 
claim that the HWT claims are entitled to any 
priority or treatment over the unsecured 
claims.  
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So, this is, at this stage of the agreement -- 
process and settlement agreement, they are 
looking to flatten everyone out to the exact 
same level, and I will come to case law 
talking about equality and equity.
The business about being "unsecured", that is 
emphasized throughout the agreement, and it 
wraps up with the language saying the claims 
rank as ordinary, and the basis of the 
ordinary unsecured creditors of Nortel, and 
then the release language, you are familiar 
with that.  But as Mr. Wadsworth mentioned, 
the releases are broad and far-wide reaching, 
and they extinguish all rights that these 
people would have, other than what is left of 
the rights to advance claims under the Nortel 
estate and get what is remaining under the 
HWT, and then the benefits.  The ongoing 
benefits being paid up until the end of the 
year.
Another point that we have an issue with 
relates to the fee and expenses to be paid 
from the HWT.  That is at page 5, section C-1.  
Maybe we can turn that up Your Honour?  
THE COURT:  Which document?
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MR. ROCHON:  It's the settlement agreement.  
It's in the 39th report, for your ease of 
reference.  
It's page 5, paragraph c-1.  Midway down the 
page, under the resolution paragraph. "Any 
fees or expenses incurred in connection with 
any dispute among the beneficiaries of the HWT 
earning ... of the trustee and other service 
providers of the HWT, shall not be paid by 
Nortel, but shall be paid by the HWT corpus." 
So, if I understand this correct, all the fees 
relating to counsel, for instance, who are 
working towards a distribution and resolution 
in relation to the HWT, will take their fees 
out of this trust fund and not -- those fees 
will not be paid through the -- through Nortel 
or through the Nortel estate in general.  
And, so, the problem that we have with this is 
that, you know, these are trust funds, and it 
would have been preferable to have fees of 
represented counsel come out of the Nortel 
estate, for instance, or to be paid by Nortel 
directly.  
I am not sure why it's necessary to further 
deplete these trust funds that are detained 
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for the group of disabled individuals and 
others also in a vulnerable state would also 
benefit from an increased amount of funds.  
And so, in my submission, there is no logical 
reason why this paragraph, the lines in this 
paragraph need to be here, because it 
unnecessarily burdens a trust fund that is 
already under strain as a result of the 
underfunding for the year, and the alleged 
loan for 37 million dollars as referenced in 
Ms. Urquart's affidavit, and we have been over 
that.
So, going to the depletion of the Health and 
Welfare Trust.  Although the settlement 
agreement does not provide for the 
distribution of the Health and Welfare Trust, 
the financial information disclosed by the 
Monitor shows that the Health and Welfare 
Trust has been massively depleted, and 
specifically the financial statement talks 
about that, attached to the 39th report dated 
February 18.  It disclosed that the net assets 
of the HWT, available for benefit payments, as 
at December 31, 2009, were approximately 123 
million dollars, and schedule H at the 39th 
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report is the reference.  The pinpoint 
reference.
In fact, it's the same page that we had the 37 
million dollar due from sponsor company.  So 
we are left with 123, and then we have the 37 
million dollar loan, and then of the 123 
million in assets, approximately 37 million is 
allocated for the LTD beneficiaries, and you 
will see this at schedule "H" of the 39th 
report, which is a few pages in from where we 
were looking at page 7.
It's the second column from the left, under 
market value of reserved assets, and then the 
report for the period ending December 31 
prepared by Mercer shows that the liability 
owed to the LTD beneficiaries is in excess of 
134 million dollars.
So, taking the 134 and taking away the 30 
million here, and coming up with the shortfall 
that was identified of 100 million dollars in 
the HWT.  
Now, as a matter of process, Your Honour, why 
the Mercer report that allows you to see the 
shortfall and the HWT, and that report is 
dated January 2009, why that report did not 
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come to the attention of my LTD beneficiary 
and the public prior to February 18 -- 10 days 
after the signing of the agreement -- remains 
a question mark.  
The report was delivered to Nortel.  That is 
the report, and it would have been of some -- 
not insignificant assistance to the descending 
Nortel LTD beneficiaries to know that the 
trust, the trust fund from which they were to 
receive their benefits on an ongoing basis was 
massive and underfunded and not to mention the 
sponsor of the 37 million dollar number in the 
material.
Now, just while we are talking about the HWT.  
I wanted to take you to the supplemental 
motion record I delivered to you.  And, 
specifically tab 2.  Sorry, tab -- actually, 
it's tab one, Your Honour, which is the 
affidavit of Arlene Borenstein.
And if you go to page 8 of this affidavit, tab 
one, page 8, paragraph 27, which is the 
beginning of the discussion surrounding the 
HWT and says, second line down:  

"The first time the HWT was 
mentioned to this Court is in the 
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pre-filing report of the Monitor, 
dated January 14, 2009."  

And then next paragraph:  
"It's stated that on January 14, 

2009, the assets in the HWT were 
greater than its liabilities, that it 
was forecast that the HWT had 
'sufficient surplus assets to sustain 
itself during the Forecast Period' and 
that therefore, would be no need for 
Nortel to make funding contributions 
post-filing."

And then it continues at paragraph 29.  There 
is a quote.  
MS. RUBENSTEIN:  While he is dealing with that 
report, I think he should put in the full 
quote.  He is dealing with a 13-week full cash 
forecast, and the forecast says there is 
sufficient funds to sustain, which is the 
13-week cash flow.  
THE COURT:  Again, it underscores the 
difficulty previously identified, and one that 
the appointment of representive counsel last 
May was intended to address.  
Again, it's not a criticism.  It's just the 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

171

facts.  Coming to the brief when you did, you 
have to accept that your knowledge of the 
background is not that of your friends.
MR. ROCHON:  I accept my friend's 
interjection, but I -- 
MS. RUBENSTEIN:  I think when he makes his 
submission, he should look at the entire 
document. 
THE COURT:  You will have the right of reply, 
but, Mr. Rochon, the point is a valid one.  
It's dealing with a 13-week forecast period.
MR. ROCHON:  Well, let me put this in to 
context.  The point that I was making was that 
the shortfall, that is any shortfall as to the 
corpus of the fund, was only publically 
disclosed in the 39th report after the 
agreement was signed.  And then if we turn to 
the next tab, Your Honour, which is tab "B", 
in the Borenstein affidavit, and go to page 
15.  
There is a further description at paragraph 48 
of that document that states:  

"The Nortel Networks Health and 
Welfare Trust, as more fully described 
in the Doolittle Affidavit, is not 
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subject to the CCAA proceedings and 
continues to operate in the ordinary 
course.  The Sun Life Assurance 
Company of Canada administers various 
non-pension benefits through the H&WT.  
The H&WT provides funding for various 
non-pension benefits on behalf of 
current and former Canadian employees 
of the Applicants.  The Applicants 
continue to fund this trust in 
accordance with past practice."

Leaving the uninitiated to this process with 
the impression that everything is in good 
shape with respect to the trust.
It doesn't go on to say that, by the way, 
Nortel has not funded the trust for the last 
bit of time.  Has not funded in years "X", 
"Y", "Z".  
There are no specifics here.  It leaves the 
clear impression that things are peaceful in 
the valley, when in fact it couldn't have been 
further from the truth at that stage.  
So, although the LTD beneficiaries would be 
entitled to a payment of the corpus of the HWT 
upon determination of a plan for distribution 
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of the assets, as well as distribution to the 
estate as part of the future claim under the 
CCAA or bankruptcy, there is no certainty with 
respect to the amounts to be recovered for the 
sources of the individuals I represent.  That 
said, the overall recovery will only be a 
fraction of the actual value of their 
disability income and medical benefits.  In 
this regard, a financial as opined that the 
beneficiaries will likely only recover 39 
percent of their actual liabilities from all 
three sources.  
And I would like to take you briefly to 
Ms. Urquart's affidavit.  Tab 6, Your Honour.  
And the first point I want to draw your 
attention to is at page 11, while I have this.  
Paragraph 26, where it begins:  

"Regardless of which of the two 
figures and reports are used, it is 
evident that there is a massive 
shortfall in the HWT of an amount very 
likely in excess of $100 million, a 
revelation only recently disclosed to 
the LTD Beneficiaries." 

And he will find the other citation so we can 
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note that.  I found it.  It's paragraph 19, 
Your Honour.  Sorry about that.  And it 
begins, paragraph 19, stating:  

"In reaching the conclusion that 
the Settlement Agreement is grossly 
unfair and prejudicial as it relates 
to the LTD Beneficiaries, I have 
considered the likely recovery of LTD 
Beneficiaries from the corpus of the 
HWT and the Canadian Nortel 
liquidation.  As discussed therein, it 
is my opinion that the anticipated 
recovery for LTD Beneficiaries through 
this Agreement and from the 
contemplated dissolution of the HWT, 
as well as from the Nortel Estate, is 
39 percent of the disclosed actuarial 
liability.  The 39 percent estimated 
recovery from three anticipated 
settlement sources are broken down in 
Exhibit 3 as follows:  11 percent from 
the Settlement Agreement; 17 from the 
HWT wind up; and 11 percent from the 
Nortel Canadian estate."  

In terms of extreme hardship that individuals 
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will suffer, when you consider a typical LTD 
beneficiary who previously was earning 70,000 
a year, and disability benefit pay, and then 
combine the CPP income and Nortel income of 
35,000 with his or her medical benefit paid, 
and after continuation of benefits cease after 
December 31, the typical LTD Beneficiary's 
income would decrease to $15,838 per year on 
net basis, including the $13,272 of CPP 
disability, after now paying for his or her 
own medical and dental costs.  
And the quote for that is paragraph 39 of 
Diane Urquart's affidavit.  This is below the 
poverty line.
In terms of the evidence we have from the 
individuals who have sworn affidavits, if we 
could start with the affidavit of Jackie 
Bodie, in the motion record at paragraphs 15, 
35, 36.  
THE COURT:  Tab 3, and the paragraph 
reference? 
MR. ROCHON:  15, 35 and 36. 
She begins at paragraph 15:  

"I am told by the law firm 
representing Nortel disabled employees 
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not to expect much - if any - 
disability income that I am entitled 
to, because there is simply not enough 
money in Nortel's estate to pay me 
what was promised they would.  This is 
a hard pill to swallow for any Nortel 
employee, but for myself and 400+ 
other disabled employees who simply 
can't get another job to replace the 
loss of income, it may as well be a 
death sentence."

It talks about her Parkinson's and talks about 
the health-related expenses and of which was 
paid by the health care plan.  The remaining 
was paid with the disability income, and she 
talks about the psychological effect of her 
illness, and then she is the primary care 
giver for her boys, aged five and seven.  
Husband works full time as, I believe, an IT 
contractor, and if her health is compromised 
further her husband would have to quit his job 
and support the children.  
It goes through a number of points with 
respect to her considerable hardship and going 
down to paragraph 35.  
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"A year ago, I had no clue that my 
financial future was in jeopardy.  
Now, this situation with my LTD income 
has become a huge source of stress in 
my life, that I'm constantly worrying, 
I am not sleeping and my Parkinson's 
symptoms are worst they've ever been.  
Stress is particularly bad for people 
with Parkinson's.  It has the effect 
of worsening a person's symptoms and 
reducing the effectiveness of 
medications."

Paragraph 36:  
"I am convinced without a doubt 

that the stress I am enduring due to 
Nortel is causing my health to 
deteriorate more quickly.  It's bad 
enough that I have to endure the 
stress of having a degenerative 
disease at such a young age, but my 
situation with Nortel makes me ask the 
question:  how much stress should one 
person be expected to handle?  Why is 
Nortel allowed to do this to me?"

Moving to the affidavit of Jennifer Holley, 
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which is at tab 5.  Mr. Burns will make a 
presentation, so I will not deal with his 
affidavit, but the evidence is there at tab 4.  
And I am looking at paragraph 7 through 8 in 
this affidavit, and she has Crohn's disease.  
The cost of the services were approximately 
13,000.  

"If Nortel is allowed to terminate 
its obligation to me, my income will 
be less than 12,000 per year.  This 
will place my family's yearly 
financial situation $1000 in deficit 
before any bills are paid outside of 
our health and dental expenses."

Paragraph 8.  
"I don't know how we will make 

ends meet.  Our bills are already cut 
to the bare bone.  This current 
situation arising from the CCAA 
proceedings and everything surrounding 
it also effects my health.  I am on 
medication for my depression and have 
had to have the dose adjusted three 
times.  Every day, I weep in fear and 
frustration."
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THE COURT:  My law clerk has reminded me, I 
have a scheduling issue with Judge Gross.  
--- Brief adjournment.
--- Upon resuming.  
THE COURT:  Okay.  Please, continue.
MR. ROCHON:  Good afternoon, Your Honour.  I 
am in the supplemental motion record, tab two, 
toward the back.  Josee Marin.  Tab two, page 
9.  This is a 41 year old woman, single 
mother, young son with kidney disease.  She 
suffers from an illness that causes skin to 
harden and eventual mummification and death.

"If the Settlement Agreement of 
February 8, 2010 is implemented, there 
will be tragic consequences.  I, for 
one, will be left homeless since I 
already live on just 70% of my salary 
or approximately $35,000.  From the 
numbers provided by Segal actuaries 
regarding the Health and Welfare 
Trust, and if I understand them 
correctly, the proposed distribution 
seems to be in the 30 percent range."

32:  
That would leave me with an 
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average of $1,300 per month from all 
combined sources of income without any 
certainty of receiving anything 
further before the age of 65.  I 
already have just enough money to get 
by with $35,000 per year.  
When I bought insurance coverage with 
Nortel, it was presented as being a 
very secure investment, and so I 
subscribed because it was my duty as a 
single mother to protect myself while 
I was young and healthy, to make sure 
that if something did happen to me, my 
son would be secure, at least 
financially.  
If I had known that this insurance was 
from Nortel alone and not from 
Clarica/Sun Life and therefore not 
secured, never would I have 
jeopardized my family security.  I 
would have bought insurance elsewhere; 
it's not secure, it is not insurance, 
it is a lottery."

Paragraph 35 talks about being uninsured and 
the prejudice is serious, and there is no 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

181

remedy possible, et cetera.  
Carrying on, I mentioned the Air Canada case, 
and the comments from Justice Farley.  
If you could make a note, I know you are 
familiar with this case, Your Honour.  
Paragraph 59 of the Air Canada case, where 
Justice Farley talks about the rights of 
objectors, and objecting creditors.  
It states that -- this is found in the factum 
at the beginning of the law and analysis 
section.  The general principles for 
interpreting the CCAA and Justice Farley 
states:  

"I take the requirement under the 
CCAA is that approval of the Court may 
be given where there is consistency 
with the purpose and spirit of that 
legislation, a conclusion by the Court 
that as a primary consideration, the 
transaction is fair and reasonable and 
will be beneficial to the debtor and 
its stakeholders generally."

And then:
"In considering what is fair and 

reasonable treatment, one must look at 
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the creditors as a whole, and to the 
objecting creditors (specifically) and 
see if rights are compromised in an 
attempt to balance interests and have 
the pain of the compromise equitably 
shared, as opposed to the confiscation 
of rights."  

And I spoke about the confiscation of rights 
earlier.  Creditors must be treated in terms 
of the burden caused by the insolvency.  
It doesn't mean all be completed with complete 
equality.  It is equitable rather than, which 
is the objective in the CCAA proceedings.
Where there are objections or excuses, there 
is a requirement to show the settlement, so 
effects their position as to be unfair; 
although, the court has jurisdiction to 
approve interim transactions and settlement, 
pending development of a CCAA plan, the scope 
of the court jurisdiction is informed by the 
purpose and objective of the CCAA.  And then 
turning to the ABCP, Justice Blare wrote:  

"The remedial purpose of the CCAA, 
and as its title affirms, is to 
facilitate compromise between an 
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insolvent debt company and creditors."
And carrying on with the ABCP quote, Justice 
Blare stated:  

Courts recognize the act has a 
broader...  and that this broad public 
dimension must be weighed in the 
balance together with the interests of 
those most directly effected.  

And it's my respectful submission those most 
directly effected are the disabled in this 
case.
Further in the ATB Financial case, at 
paragraph 68, and part of the case, the Court 
of Appeal stated:  

"Parliament's reliance on the 
expansive terms 'compromise' or 
'arrangement' does not stand alone, 
however.  Effective insolvency 
restructuring would not be possible 
without a statutory mechanism to bind 
an unwilling minority of creditors.  
Unanimity is frequently impossible in 
such situations.  But the minority 
must be protected too.  Parliament's 
solution to this quandary was to 
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permit a wide range of proposals to be 
negotiated and put forward and to bind 
all creditors by class to the terms of 
the plan, but to do so only where the 
proposal can gain the support of the 
requisite double majority of votes and 
obtain sanction the sanction of the 
court on the basis that it is fair and 
reasonable.  In this way, the scheme 
of the CCAA supports the intention of 
Parliament to encourage a wide variety 
of solutions to corporate insolvency 
without unjustifiably overriding the 
rights of dissenting creditors."

And it's my submission that the rights of the 
dissenting creditors are being compromised in 
this case unnecessarily.  Courts have 
jurisdiction to approve agreements in 
circumstances.  The above passage, as well as 
the framework generally suggest where there is 
a lack and significant rights, the plan is the 
preferred method of proceeding.
With respect to the third party releases, Your 
Honour, in considering whether third party 
releases should be approved, the Court of 
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Appeal referenced the following finding by the 
application judge as constituting guiding 
principles in the analysis and goes through 
"A" through "G", found at paragraphs 71 and 
113. 

As I will discuss, the third party 
releases here do not satisfy these 
criteria, and, really, the big 
criteria are what contribution has 
third party provided.  

And, of course, the Grace case Your Honour is 
familiar with.  There was in effect of claims, 
and that is paragraph 37 of the Grace case.  
In the ABCP case, the following comments came:  

In keeping up with the scheme and 
purpose, I do not suggest that any and 
all releases between creditors of the 
debtor company seeking to restructure 
and third parties may be made the 
subject of compromise or arrangement 
between, nor do I think the fact that 
the releases may be necessary in the 
sense that the third parties of the 
debtor may refuse to proceed without 
them of itself advances the argument 
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in favor of finding jurisdiction.
Skipping down.

The release of the claim in 
question must be justified as part of 
the compromise or arrangement between 
debt.

In short, there must be a reasonable 
connection in the plan, and the restructuring 
achieved by the plan to warrant inclusion of 
third party releases in the plan.
And, so, there is nothing that in this case 
were vital to the restructuring of the 
industry, similar in other cases such as 
Muscletech (ph.) Research and Grace.  The 
third parties contributed to the restructuring 
through the funding of benefits, whereas in 
this case, the third parties are giving 
nothing.
And, therefore, it's not appropriate to 
release those third parties, in my respectful 
submission.  
So, in light of the anticipated low recovery 
to the LTD beneficiaries, the disabled, the 
inclusion of the broad releases which seek to 
bar claims for damages in excess of 100 
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million is highly prejudicial to this group of 
minority creditors, while the CCAA 
contemplates the compromise, having regard to 
the unique circumstances, the settlement 
agreement effects their right and interest as 
to be unfair.  
Consistent with the overarching framework, 
this court is obliged to, are most deeply 
effected by the settlement agreement given the 
nature of their claims and nature of 
disability, as well as the shortfall on the 
HWT.  
It's in this factual context that the fairness 
and reasonableness of the settlement agreement 
and balance of benefit and burden should be 
assessed.
We spoke about the benefits of the plan, and 
we know about the burden and what is being 
given up by the group of individuals, so I 
will move beyond that.  
In terms of releases being overbroad, and the 
point they should not be approved, we can go 
to the actual release.  It's in the settlement 
agreement at page 8, and paragraph G1 and page 
9 of G3, for instance.  
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THE COURT:  All right.
MR. ROCHON:  So, this is to address the 
wording of the plan.  Starting at page 8.  The 
bottom of the page, the release and charge 
provisions, and language begins, "the LTD 
former" and skipping down 3 lines:  

"That each of the trustee of the 
HWT, the Monitor, all members of 
pension plan committees and their 
respective officer, it's broad in its 
language and purports to carve out 
nothing.  It leaves the LTD 
beneficiaries completely empty handed, 
save and except the statutory 
exemption relating to fraud and 
misrepresentation, but it's -- the 
effect of these releases is to 
insulate all parties, including third 
parties, from any suits in relation to 
breach of trust in relation to the 
HWT, the 100 million dollar 
shortfall."  

All of those items are off the table, and the 
beneficiaries, the Nortel LTD beneficiaries, 
and then the language carries on and in 
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paragraph G-2 and G-3, G-4.  
And so the releases are broad and 
unnecessarily broad, in my submission, and I 
am not going to pick up all of the reasons we 
think we have a cause of action, but we 
believe there is some real cause of action 
available here, and certainly they would pass 
the Rule 21 test, and there would be a further 
opportunity to consider any lawsuit that was 
wrought in the context of an order to lift the 
stay.  
So, if this wording is maintained, it has the 
same effect as a stay of any proposed 
proceeding or anticipated proceedings down the 
road.  
So, in terms of relevant factors, when you are 
reviewing the release, whether or not a 
release should apply or not, first I say that 
the parties to be released are necessary and 
essential to the restructuring of the debtor, 
and, in this case, these parties are not 
essential.  There is no restructuring.  It's 
an insolvency liquidation. 
THE COURT:  Expand upon that in the context of 
ABCP, where that comes from?
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MR. ROCHON:  On this?  
THE COURT:  Yes.  If you tell me there has to 
be a reconstructing or continuation of the 
business, and in Justice Campbell's remarks of 
what he was restructuring was the industry 
itself.
MR. ROCHON:  In this case, it's a stand alone, 
has now declared heading down an insolvency 
liquidation path.  
So, the comments with respect to Mr. Justice 
Campbell dealing with the restructuring do not 
apply here.  
This is a company that is in wind up mode.  
So, the same sensitivities do not apply to 
this case, because it's in liquidation.  
Next, the claims to be released related to the 
purpose of the plan and necessity for it.  
Here, there is no plan before the court.  
Regardless of that, the claims being released 
have no relation to the insolvency and 
liquidation process and will not impede that 
process either.  
Third, the plan cannot succeed without 
releases.  
Again, no plan before the court.  So that is 
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not really a relevant consideration. 
THE COURT:  Is it your position there has to 
be a plan, if you will, to have a third party 
release as part of the settlement within the 
context of the CCAA proceeding? 
MR. ROCHON:  My submission on that?  
THE COURT:  What I am faced with here, and 
it's a problem.  I have been hearing 
submissions that a significant amount of money 
is going to be made available for this 
settlement agreement, and it's been put to me 
that it is a package, and as part of the 
package, it's subject to the H2 issue that I 
will deal with at some point, but it's "you 
approve or you do not approve."
MR. ROCHON:  Well, there is a third option 
from Mr. Zarnett, and that is to be practical, 
and to either release reasons or a letter to 
the parties which sets out Your Honour's 
concerns with respect to the way it's drafted.  
Come back in a couple of weeks after you sort 
these things out, and I will look at it again 
to have a process that is more in the spirit 
of the CCAA than a "yes" or "no", which is 
under your jurisdiction.  That is the extent 
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of your jurisdiction, but there is a lot of 
room between those two extremes, and that is 
the way this court has been functioning in the 
past, and that's the way the class action 
court functions and other courts, where 
approval of where parties are at play like 
here.  
We have counsel, but they are interfacing with 
the people.  We have a large number of 
objectors, and a lot of moving parties here, 
and it's the coordination and guidance that 
the court can give.  
It's somewhere in between the "approve or no 
approve", and that is the -- I echo what 
Mr. Zarnett said yesterday.  Getting to the 
practicality of it.  
So, saying no to the package before you will 
not end things forever, in terms of 
stakeholders, and the long-term disability 
folks, and the other disability or the 
pensioner, and so forth.  
It will be the beginning of dialogue with 
court and counsel, and counsel will have an 
opportunity to fix the items that are of 
concern to the court.  
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So, yes.  It would have been preferred, but 
rights are being effected and need not be as 
dramatic, and there is room to be practical 
and come up with a better solution.
Next is the fact that the parties who are -- 
who have claims are contributing to the plan 
in a realistic way.  
Well, the officers, directors of Nortel, the 
trustee, they have not contributed anything to 
this plan.  So, that is another reason not to 
release them.
The plan will benefit not only debtor 
companies, but creditor note holders 
generally.  Again, no plan.  There are certain 
analogies to come back to your early comments.  
There is no plan, but what are the -- what is 
the scope in dealing with settlement 
agreement?  Some analogies here to be drawn, 
but in this case there is no plan.  
And then, finally, the releases are fair and 
reasonable and not overbroad or offensive, and 
given the stakes for the LTD beneficiaries and 
in absence of compelling reasons, they are 
overbroad and offensive to public policy.  
In terms of the statement by the Monitor, it's 
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my submission this concern be given no weight 
in the context of the CCAA proceedings.  Where 
there is a stay in place in favour of the 
applicants to the extent that any of the 
releases have a claim for contribution, such 
claims can be submitted just like all the 
other creditor claims, and the fact that 
Nortel may be sued in light of the provisions 
of the trust agreement is immaterial.  It's of 
no momentum, and the fact that it's a 
distraction is of no momentum for the company 
in full liquidation or insolvency.  
The question is, the question remains:  Why 
should that part of the trust agreement be 
given over the rights of trust beneficiaries 
in with respect of their breaches of the 
trust? 
Although we have not had a full opportunity to 
analyze the full -- the disclosure to date, 
evidenced potential breaches of the HWT trust 
agreement which require Nortel to make 
employer contributions to the trust in amounts 
sufficient to pay any claim that may be 
asserted against the trust fund, as a result 
of the administration of the Health and 
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Welfare Plan, and as may be otherwise required 
from time to time for the purpose of the 
Health and Welfare Plan as determined on a 
sound actual basis, and that quote of course 
comes from the actual trust agreement that is 
contained in the Urquart affidavit at tab 6, 
and in the 39th report from the Monitor, and 
the most recent report as well.  
There is more.  
We don't have all the trust documents yet, but 
we have several of them.  
In this regard, the statements made by the 
Monitor and representative counsel that Nortel 
had no legal obligation to fund the HWT is not 
true.  Well, Nortel may have been under no 
statutory obligation to fund the trust.  This 
does not diminish the normal trust, and under 
common law flowing there under.  
The fact that the trust is not a statutory 
trust does not take away from the fact it's a 
common law trust where you have all the 
elements, and it's been in existence for 30 
plus years.  The breach here has occurred 
under one or more of the trustees' watches, 
even where the trustees' stated role is more 
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of a custodian.  The authorities have still -- 
to the beneficiaries.  
MR. TAY:  I hate to rise again, but there is 
no evidence of a breach, and we are going back 
to what we started.  I hate to go -- things 
are being made up.  
MR. ROCHON:  I should have said "alleged".
As stated in the case, there is an overarching 
over an administrative trust to pay attention 
to the interest of the beneficiaries, 
additional -- in addition to its duties 
provided in the trust indenture, and in the 
Fraser case, the Court held that within the 
scope of its duties, the defendant breached 
it's duty of care to the beneficiaries when it 
failed to respond to the company contribution.  
In this regard, the company's failure to make 
contributions should have been a danger 
signal.  It's difficult to imagine trouble 
than virtual termination from the principle 
contributor to the plan.  There is no 
evidence, the defendant noticed this failure, 
or that it may, or made any inquiries, even 
though articles first pertain that is the 
trustee is not -- that should not exonerate 
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them from making inquiries from the principle 
to the plan had not been made.  
Exactly our case, Your Honour.
In my view, true trustees have obligations of 
prudence not to just protect the corporation 
because of the trust, but the interest of the 
beneficiaries from the ongoing operation of 
the plan.
And the Forest (ph.) case is at tab one of the 
authorities, Your Honour.
In terms of the claims against the directors 
in Air Canada and MNL, held directors liable, 
constructive trustees for assisting a travel 
agency in breaching obligations.  That case is 
at tab 2 of the brief of authorities.
Contrary to the position of the settlement 
parties, therefore, claims are being proposed 
to be released.  
Given the depletion of the HWT, and the 
prejudice to the beneficiaries, the third 
party release provisions should not be 
approved.  
Now is not the appropriate time to do this, 
should this -- given the timing consideration, 
this deferral is appropriate, and this is 
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something that could be looked at as part of a 
plan once we have a vote, and once we become a 
voting class on the plan, but now is not the 
time to do that in light of evidence, and the 
state of the case law that suggests there are 
potential claims available.  
Litigation is a key fundamental tool in our 
society to help define rights.  There are 
rights that have been effected here, and we 
have evidence to that effect, and we would 
like an opportunity to exercise those rights, 
Your Honour.  
In terms of reasoning issues, the ranking 
provisions are not necessary or vital to the 
process at this stage.  How does this assist 
Nortel with respect to their insolvency and 
liquidation?  Why not be able to pursue 
priority claims as part of the claims process 
in the unique circumstances of this case? 
There is no reason to have language in the 
agreement that makes them unsecured creditors 
just like all at this stage.  
Well, the agreement may have the effect of 
adding some lack to the process, given what is 
--
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THE COURT:  On what basis would claims be 
anything but unsecured?
MR. ROCHON:  Well, if we are able to establish 
that they are beneficiaries under a trust and 
moneys were taken out of the trust, that would 
lead to arguments that these -- this group of 
people is or has priority over the unsecured.  
Now, we know there is case law dealing with 
pension funds and so forth, but there is no 
case law in Canada specifically dealing with 
this issue.  
There is no case law in this country dealing 
with this.  If there was a case, we would have 
seen it, but there are all the elements of 
trust here.  It's a written trust agreement.  
These people are in a unique circumstance, 
compared to, say, bondholders. 
THE COURT:  How does that elevate a claim that 
they would have against Nortel from unsecured?  
If there is no money there?  Okay.  
The trust, there is not a statutory trust 
here.  There is a lack of money.  
So, through Nortel, on what basis -- what 
legal basis can you provide to me to 
substantiate that they could be anything but 
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unsecured? 
MR. ROCHON:  Well, in this case, assuming 
right now these are allegations, but assuming 
there has been a breach of trust through the 
depletion of trust funds, all allegations at 
this stage, then there is an obligation for 
the trust funds to come back to the trust so 
the trust is made whole, and it's full 
integrity is reinstated before the rest of the 
money is to the unsecured as part of the rest 
of the estate, because this money never 
belonged to Nortel.  It belonged to the 
beneficiaries, not unlike a situation with a 
law firm where you have a trust account and 
someone takes from your trust account.  
That is a breach of trust.  It's not a 
statutory violation, but under common law, 
it's something that is not permitted.  You 
could think of other examples of trust 
accounts, but these are special vehicles set 
up.  
The common law acknowledges these are not 
deemed trust, but actual trust under common 
law, and there are strong arguments, all of 
which would be arguments of first impression 
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that that is the case in situations like this 
all the time.  That these funds would or this 
trust would be in priority to the other 
claimants.  That is about as high as I put it.  
THE COURT:  I have your point.
MR. ROCHON:  So, while completing the 
agreement, as is may add some level of clarity 
to the process, given what is at stake, there 
is no harm or prejudice if the process takes a 
few months or even longer to complete.  Many 
claims processed in other cases have taken 
some time to resolve.  As well, what is at 
stake for these others is monetary, and at the 
end of the day, given the amounts in issue, 
relatively nominal in the context of the 
sizeable estate and whether they receive 16 
cents on the dollar, as I mentioned by way of 
example, or 16 and a half cents or 15 and a 
half cents.  It's not, relatively speaking, a 
huge issue, and, that is, those -- this is a 
consideration when you are trying to effect 
this fine balance amongst all stakeholders and 
parties to this.  
The impact on the LTD beneficiaries for these 
amounts related to this large shortfall, with 
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respect to their lives and how they will be 
effected is severe.  
So the standard for approving a CCAA 
settlement like this should not be:  What is 
the quickest road to resolution by eliminating 
rights?  
The standard is fairness, as measured through 
a fair and proper balancing of rights.  Even 
if it means a slight delay in terms of the 
timelines.
There was mention made with respect to the 
conflict in terms of continuing to represent 
the pensioners and LTD.  I want to make the 
point that at some point another firm, not 
necessarily our firm, but another firm has to 
step in and represent the LTD beneficiaries in 
the process, because once the agreement -- if 
this is the agreement that this court approves 
-- it becomes approved then those rights and 
the eventuality that these parties will be 
even further at odds when it comes time to 
divide up the money, that situation will have 
crystallized through approval and having 
separate counsel will, in my respectful 
submission, be necessary.  
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Not saying it has to happen now, but if the 
settlement is approved, that conflict will be 
only a moment away in having separate counsel 
representing this particular group.  That is, 
the LTD beneficiaries. 
THE COURT:  That is not having to be dealt 
with today.  
MR. ROCHON:  Further, I am not asking at this 
stage, I am bestowing that mantel on our firm.  
We have people that we are representing, the 
37 people, to get standing in this process.  I 
have standing. 
THE COURT:  You are standing, and you are 
representing. 
MR. ROCHON:  So, I will not be pursuing that, 
but later in the process it may be appropriate 
to come back to that, but we are not pursuing 
that right now.  
I made the point about, hopefully, the costs 
of Minsky not coming out of the trust, and 
that is another improvement, and their fees be 
paid from a different source that would be 
less impact on this vulnerable group of 
people.  
So, those are the costs relating to disputes 
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around the HWT.  Those, and we went to the 
paragraph already, so I will not go back on 
that.
So, in summary, I guess the top level point is 
that I am asking that the agreement not be 
approved as is, but that in the interm that 
Your Honour -- this court makes an order for 
the continuation of benefits for at least a 
further interm period, which you reserved the 
right to do that in a previous session.  
It's my submission the agreement as is does 
not strike the proper balance required by the 
case law, and that at a minimum, the releases, 
in terms of looking forward for suggestions, 
that the releases address the third party 
issue, that we carve out the -- allow lawsuits 
to proceed against third parties, the 
committee, and so forth.  
The officers and director and the trustees, 
and that we have priority with respect to the 
37 million dollar breach.  At a minimum, that 
the language emphasizing that we are ordinary 
creditors like everyone else, that that 
language not be in the agreement, because it's 
not necessary for this agreement to -- with 
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respect to the 37 million.  And that the fees 
I have touched on that with respect to the HWT 
dispute, and we touched on the point of the 
separate representation if this is approved 
and that will crystallize a conflict down the 
road that would have to be dealt with at a 
later time.  
Your Honour, I would like to thank you for 
your time.  Those are all my submissions.
THE COURT:  Thank you.
I gather then there are four or five in person 
representations to follow?  I don't know 
whether the individuals involved have been 
able to arrive at a consensus as to who will 
go first but two gentle men are standing.  The 
reporter does have obligations at five, we 
have arrangements to continue in the morning, 
so I do not want anyone to feel they are 
rushed in their presentations.  
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I am here representing 
Josee, long term --  Josee is a member of the 
Canadian office worker union and has been on 
long-term disability since 2003 and 
understands the procedure, and she refuses the 
agreement fully knowing the possible 
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consequences that may occur to her health 
condition, and if I might add, she is 
scheduled for heart surgery in May, and she is 
currently losing her eye sight due to 
uncontrolled diabetes.  
I don't want to take a legal standpoint.  I am 
not a lawyer.  I am raising certain questions 
that people do not seem to have addressed.  
Before taking a decision based on the 39th 
report from the Monitor, basically, if you 
want to settle an agreement, you have to know 
what you are dealing on can be trusted.  
The first thing I read when I read the 39th 
report, all the results are unaudited, so this 
popped up a question for me.  I started to 
lock up, for instance, the 37 million.  That 
seems to be due by Northern, which we don't 
know if it's a loan or money not put in the 
trust fund, and the first thing I realize is 
that the keynotes that would explain if that 
receivable can be cashed by the trust fund are 
missing from the report.  
And then I looked down at the second element, 
which is the 4 million dollars of corporation 
bond and the debentures.  If you compare, the 
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amount goes from 6 to 4 million in a year and, 
again, the notes explaining, who are the 
debtors?  How can the money be cashed or 
realized to get back into the trust fund is 
missing from the financial report.  
So, basically, my first intuition would be to, 
before we get an audited report from the trust 
fund, since we don't know where the money is 
on the 37 million, this should be cross 
referenced with the financial report to figure 
out where the money went, and if the assets 
that are in the trust fund are really there to 
distribute or settle a dispute on.  
Secondly, I am reading, I have been studying 
the Telecom market.  I am an entrepreneur.  I 
keep hearing that Northern is fading out, but 
when I read a press release from Canadian 
Press dated January 28, 2010, something says 
that the joint venture between LG and Northern 
in which Nortel own a majority, is getting 
ready to operate on America soil.  
Now, again, in "The Globe and Mail", on 
February 11, it was published.  Sorry, I have 
to go back to the notes.  It was published in 
"The Globe and Mail", and there was a comments 
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three days after the agreement was proposed 
that said, we still don't know what are -- it 
was a story I have to rephrase.  
It was a command that didn't want to identify 
itself that was published that the current 
president didn't chose to comment on, and the 
quote said:  

We don't know what we will do with 
the LTE patent portfolio yet.  

Those two assets would be enough to get 
another company started from scratch.  Mainly 
because all of the hardware technologies will 
become obsolete in three to four years, 
because it's gone from wire to wireless, and 
the LTE technology would allow replacing wire 
technology like you find internet in your 
home, with something wireless and easier to 
sustain and deploy, because it's cheaper.  
Now, nobody has raised the issue that Northern 
may not be fading out, and on that account, if 
it ever happens, it means that nothing should 
prevent the supervisor from recalling a 
transaction on those asset that are worth 
roughly between -- well, it's been estimated 
between 600 million and 1 billion, and for the 
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joint venture enterprise, I don't know which.  
I don't have any evaluation for that.  But 
those are the two major assets that could be 
transferred and for which the supervisor would 
have a right to recall if he -- in any case.  
So, basically, binding the supervisor with the 
agreement right now would actually do two 
things, and make sure that, see, there is no 
use to binding future transactions and making 
sure the superintendent is bound and the 
creditors lose part of their rights to the 
assets as is right now.  
So, going back to Josee Morin case, since she 
is a union employee on disability, her work 
contract states Northern Trust has the 
obligation to keep her employee status as is, 
as long as she is on disability.  Meaning, she 
gets full pension, full years of service, 
fringe benefits for the next 15 years, until 
she retires.  Part of the agreement say that 
she has to terminate her work.  Her position 
gets terminated, and, in that account, that is 
one of the reasons she wanted me to speak out 
to you.  That is the main reason she would not 
agree to that.  
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Basically, her medical condition requires a 
lot of medication.  She has several illnesses 
to take care of, and even though the current 
situation jeopardizes a way to handle health 
problems over the next few months, she doesn't 
wan for future transactions that have not yet 
been approved or regulated by the 
Superintendent.  
So, in short, it would be her position to ask 
for audited financial records from Northern 
and the trust fund before we can even evaluate 
what the agreement is worth.  
And, finally, not restrict her rights as to 
any future transaction done with the 
liquidation of Northern's assets or restricted 
in any way the rights of the Supervisor to 
take action and recall some transaction like 
the 37 million missing.  That was the first.  
That if it could be identified as a 
transaction between linking and commercial, 
and the supervisor has full right to recall 
that transaction and get the money back in, 
but since the financial reports are not 
audited, there is no way to tell where the 
money came from, how the transaction was 
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billed.  So, finally, we don't have a choice.  
So, basically, the settlement would be 
agreeable until the financial data given is 
proven accurate.  Thank you.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  
FEMALE UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I am here on 
behalf of myself, and my husband.  We have 
been here for the last two days, but we cannot 
get back tomorrow.  I want to say on behalf of 
myself and husband, Mr. Tay said we are 
unhappy.  We are not unhappy.  We are sad.  
That is how we live.  Sad because of what has 
happened.  
My husband was 39 years with Northern Trust.  
He had a stroke after returning from work in 
San Francisco with Northern Trust.  Within 24 
hours of his return.  The man has never smoked 
or drank, so it had nothing to do with the 
stroke.  
I don't do this easy.  
THE COURT:  Take your time.  
FEMALE UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  He is paralyzed 
on the left side.  He cannot do anything left 
at all.  I have never heard him complain.  He 
still likes Northern, which is wonderful, as 
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far as I am concerned.  
The stroke made him move to a wheelchair.  The 
wheelchair my husband sits in now is $5,000.  
It has to be made tall, wide.  
With the stroke, we had to leave our home on 
the retirement property.  We bought another 
house, but it had to be made wheelchair 
accessible.  There is no money left.  
Stan had a retirement package, that if he 
stayed he would receive 65,000.  We invested 
over 8 years, and it left last January.  So 
there we have lost 1000 a month, and the 
mortgage is $1100 a month.  
By looking at us, we cannot get a job.  There 
is no way for us to bring in any other income.  
On page 3 of our affidavit, it tells you what 
we have.  What comes in and out.  More goes 
out than comes in.  Never, ever, did we ever 
think that Stan would not be able to rely on 
Northern and Northern pensions.  That was not 
even in our dream.  
On a personal note, what we have done to try 
to compensate for some of this, we had three 
and a half, no, three hours a month home care 
that came into help me to keep the place under 
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control.  We had to give it up.  
We had the phone cut to save 39 dollars a 
month.  Stan gets his hair cut now every 
second month, and I have not had mine cut in 
40 years.  Maybe I should sell it.  
Stan cleans the snow and ice, and he cuts the 
grass and shovels from the wheelchair with the 
child's shovel, because we cannot afford 60 
dollars a month to have the grass looked 
after.  We cancelled the paper.  It's only 
four dollars a month, but it's four dollars we 
had to get rid of.  
We can no longer go for films, attend a 
holiday.  We cannot help our children, 
grandchildren, and one of our oldest boys is 
mentally handicapped and the youngest is at 
Sick Kids twice a month.  
Stan's social life is playing cards at the 
social or senior centre where he volunteers.  
We volunteer and serve a full meal once a 
month.  
What keeps us going?  Our faith.  Knowing that 
the things in life that are important are not 
things, and that our Lord Christ will be with 
us no matter what the court decides. 
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THE COURT:  Thank you.  You mentioned you had 
an affidavit? 
UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN:  Yes.  
THE COURT:  If we cannot find it, I will get 
back to you.  Thank you.  Afternoon, sir.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  I am French speaker.  
THE COURT:  I will need assistance.  
THE INTERPRETER:  I understand this gentlemen 
may speak for about 20 minutes, and you have 
to double the time with translation. 
THE COURT:  Sir, are you able to attend 
tomorrow morning?  
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  It's going to be three 
days out of my pocket.  
THE COURT:  Well, we can do what we can for 
ten minutes.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  I will come tomorrow 
morning.  
THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.  
I don't think it's feasible to fit anyone else 
in this afternoon.  
Is there anyone that thinks they can 
accomplish ten minutes without being rushed? 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I would like to deposit 
articles that I spoke about.  Could I give it 
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to you?  
Everything he was supposed to say is in 
French.  
UNIDENTIFIED LAWYER:  Your Honour, if the 
court would prefer, we could assist in 
preparing a formal affidavit and attach that 
as an exhibit. 
THE COURT:  That would be a better way to 
submit it, and if I could prevail upon you to 
do that and hand it to me first thing in the 
morning.
For tomorrow, we have three hours available.  
-- Brief scheduling discussion.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  I will take two 
minutes and come back, and those that want to 
remain for the five minute side agreement 
motion, you may do so.  We don't need the 
reporter for that.  Thank you. 
-- Court adjourned to March 5, 2010.
March 5, 2010
--- Upon resuming March 5, 2010.
THE COURT:  Okay.  Good morning, counsel.  
Good morning, sir, we had two unreps that 
spoke yesterday, and we have two today.  We 
will continue with representations from those 
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groups.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  Good morning, Your 
Honour.  My name is Radulesco Sorin Gabriel, 
and I am 59 years of age.  I am married, and I 
live with my wife who is unemployed.  My 
language of communication is French.  
I immigrated in 1990 from (inaudible) country.  
I left with my wife and six year old son with 
two suitcases.  
I wanted to start my life over in a free and 
democratic country.  A country where human 
rights were respected.  I started everything 
up from scratch, and I am proud of what I have 
achieved.  Today I feel as though I am thrown 
to the trash bin like a society reject.  
I was happy to work for Nortel.  It was a 
proud accomplishment of my life.  
Today, Nortel has become the cadaver.  A warm 
body, where predators try to get the largest 
part of the meat available.  I can't imagine 
myself, but as a fly next to them.  I started 
working as a contract employee in 1993 and 
became permanent in 1999.  
In 2001, my health deteriorated considerably, 
and I started receiving salary replacement 
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benefits for short-term disability.  After six 
months, this became long-term disability.  
Presently, my benefits are 53 percent of my 
salary.  In other words, $36,000 a year.  
In 2003, following a continued deterioration 
of health, I was declared to be unable to 
continue with gainful employment and the 
medical commission of the government Quebec 
indicated that, and I receive a pension of 
approximately $60 a month from the Canadian 
pension plan, and this amount is not added to 
the amount from Nortel.  It's deducted from 
that amount.  
Please, don't be deceived by my appearance.  I 
am a big person.  I am tall.  
I have had quadruple bi pass surgery.  A heart 
attack and surgery.  I have five stents in my 
heart, and I also had back surgery.  
And this back surgery was because I was unable 
to walk, and I also have diabetes, and I am 
also starting to suffer from Alzheimer.  I am 
not trying draw pity but draw the context from 
which I come.  
I also receive benefits from the Nortel 
medical insurance of the average amount 38,000 
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for my wife and myself.  
I am also, I also receive benefits from the -- 
sorry.  
The 14th of January, 2009, after Nortel was 
put under the protection of the CCAA, I was 
surprised to find out that my income 
replacement was in fact self insured by 
Nortel, and that my benefits would be reduced 
because of the lack of funds in the HWT.  
In fact, because Sun Life is only the 
administrator of the Nortel funds, it is 
indicating that it has no obligations.  No 
contract obligations toward me.  
On the 8th of February, 2009, I was startled 
to find out that an agreement was signed by 
the controller acting for Nortel, and this 
signature in fact was done without my name 
being there, or my approval, by Ms. Susan 
Kennedy of the firm and the lawyers firm 
Koskie Minsky.  It's unacceptable to me for 
the following reasons:  
With my name, without consulting me prior to 
signing the agreement, I consider that my 
right and liberties have been tossed aside.  
Actually, the only right open to me is to 
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oppose this agreement before this court, 
although this creates a large expense of time 
and money.  The travel between Montreal and 
Toronto is a stress for me and effects my 
state of health.  Recently, my expenses have 
tripled because of the length of these 
hearings.  
In line with this behavior, a lack of 
transparency and communication, my 
representative has acted in my name and 
participated in a number of meetings and 
negotiations without telling me about that, or 
the extent of its effects.  
After having consulted only two members of her 
board, it doesn't give her a right to state 
that a decision has been taken in the best 
interest of all employees receiving long-term 
disability. 
THE COURT:  Could you stop a second and ask 
whether he at any time opted out of the 
representation provided by Koskie Minsky?  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  No, Your Honour.  I 
did not refuse the services, either of KM or 
Susan Kennedy.  Because from the start, I 
trusted this lawyer's firm, as well as Susan 
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Kennedy.  I had no other choice, because I did 
not know them.  I gave them the benefit of the 
doubt, and I trusted them.  
However, I believe that these things, these 
are things that I did not want to bring up 
today.  I don't want to proceed to a trial of 
my representatives.  I have information here, 
but I don't think it's relevant for the court 
today.  
THE COURT:  I agree.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  Everything that is 
in red in my document, I am skipping over.  
To make sure everything is clear, because I 
feel the French interpretation is a bit 
lacking.  I am sorry.
The steering committee, the legal committee is 
composed of only two individuals.  
Early on, there were five of them.  One of 
these five people was someone that did not 
have the right to sit on this committee, and 
two others gave their resignation, and I don't 
want to get into the details around that.  
This is why I want to stress the point that 
the fact there was consultation with only two 
members of her board, this doesn't give her 
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the right to state that a decision has been 
made in the best interest of the all employees 
receiving long-term disability.  
It would have been better to bring to the 
attention of the group a memorandum of 
understanding negotiations by Nortel and 
controller that could have been modified after 
in the best interest of the majority of the 
group.  
In fact, I understand that the role of the 
representation is to communicate with the 
group and to transmit to the lawyers, the 
grievances of the members.  
I am not confident that all employees 
receiving long-term disability have received 
information regarding this settlement, 
considering it's advantages and disadvantages 
that are implicit in it.  
In the explanations that were given KM, and 
it's representative focused on the 12.4 
million dollars that Nortel will spend of its 
own money, and they reduced the importance of 
the concessions that were imposed in exchange 
for this.  
To indicate what is said by the lawyers and 
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the firms that represent us, we will receive 
an amount of exactly 12.4 million dollars, 
which according to what my predecessors have 
said this would be given to the recipients of 
long-term disability in order to insure a 
transition.  
But the question is:  The transition to what? 
Because after the 31st of December, 2010, 
there will be nothingness.  
It will be like assisted suicide or palliative 
care for someone in the process of dying.  
Furthermore, the clarifications brought by 
Koskie Minsky cannot be accepted, because KM 
is the signatory to the understanding as a 
whole, the agreement as a whole, together with 
my representative, and without effecting their 
competence.  In my mind, one has to accept the 
fact that they cannot be neutral.  
The following is based on a statement made by 
Koskie Minsky.
THE FRENCH INTERPRETER:  And the person has 
asked me to read what is in English here.  

"As you are an adverse interest to 
the court appointed representative for 
the purposes of the March 3 motion, 
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neither she, Susan Kennedy, or our 
firm has an obligation to assist in 
preparing an affidavit to oppose our 
motion."

RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  And that is my 
lawyer's.  
I would like to speak briefly of the 
representative of our legal committee, and, 
more specifically, I would like to refer to 
the affidavit of Susan Kennedy in her 
affidavit dated the 23rd of March, 2010, and 
this is at page 72 of the responding motion 
record for former employees and disabled 
employees, specifically page 10. 
THE COURT:  Page 72? 
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  Yes, indeed, page 
72.  
That would be of the responding motion, not 
the affidavit. 
THE COURT:  The responding motion record from 
Koskie Minsky from February 24, that one?  
Page 72? 
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  Yes. 
THE COURT:  In that book, it looks like this.  
MR. ZIGLER:  Paragraph 10.  
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THE COURT:  Thank you, I have that.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  Sorry.  This 
paragraph, there is mention of the fact that 
there were 20 members.  At the end of 29, 
there were 84.  Those were the active members 
in our group; that is, members receiving 
long-term disability.  
In paragraph 10, there is mention of the fact 
there are now 130 members.  In actual fact, 
only 84 are active.  And of this number of 84, 
39 are opposed.  
The remaining members have neither given 
approval or disapproval, therefore, we assume 
in absence of a response they are in 
agreement.  
THE COURT:  One of the difficulties I have is 
a lack of evidence to substantiate what you 
are telling me right now.  
Have you filed an affidavit in these 
proceedings? 
INTERPRETER:  Sorry?  
THE COURT:  Has the gentlemen filed an 
affidavit with these numbers? 
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  No, Your Honour.  We 
didn't do it, but we didn't know the extent of 
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the ensuing damages, because we had no 
knowledge of the track of the negotiations 
that took place, but it's not something I wish 
to speak about today. 
THE COURT:  I am prepared to go as far as to 
accept the fact that there are certain LTD 
beneficiaries that are opposed to the 
settlement.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  That is already 
obvious.  
The lawyers that made submissions before me 
always referred to statistical groups.  
Everybody tried to minimize the extent of the 
opposition.  We were characterized as a group 
of, but we are not involved in politics.  
We have also been described as a minority that 
are opposing the agreement.  
I, Your Honour, am living proof that I am not 
a statistic.  I am a real person.  
I stand against disagreement, because it makes 
no sense for me.  
I can not use the lawyer's term, saying that I 
am not happy.  
I am disappointed.  I can not even find the 
words to express my state of mind.  My state 
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of mind is something I do not wish on someone 
else.  
I am one of those that took advantage of the 
opportunity and took up the courage to come 
before you.  I am not represented by the 
lawyer.  I wish to be self represented.  I am 
doing what others might have been -- might 
have done, except for the fact they did not 
have the opportunity, the means, or the 
resources to come before you or the health to 
do so.  
So, I am led to believe there are 406 
employees that are not happy.  I know three 
that are.  I can not come to an enlightened 
decision without getting firsthand knowledge 
of the complete contents of the documents 
regarding the HWT.  
All of the documents given to me are partial 
and to the annual report produced by Nortel in 
accordance with the contract signed by the 
parties.  
In order to come to an enlightened decision, I 
would like to have at my disposal, such as the 
clear stated amount of $12.4 dollars offered 
by Nortel, as well as the clear balance that 
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will be paid to me after the out of the HWT.  
The actuary in charge of the Nortel bankruptcy 
was unable to provide these numbers, 
indicating in summary that these projections 
are estimates, and that the actual results can 
differ widely.  
Up to this point in time, the dividing up of 
the funds for HWT has not been done, and as I 
see things it's an integral part of the 
understanding of the settlement.  
The beneficiaries of the HWT fund are added to 
those of the initial or original contract.  I 
don't have this in front of me, but I can 
state, I can affirm that this is the case.  
I can indicate to you that the life insurance 
for the pensioners was not a part of the HWT.  
This, we don't have information regarding 
that.  We have no documents.  We have no 
information.  
THE COURT:  Let me stop you for a moment, sir, 
and try to bring yourself back to what this 
hearing is about.  
It is a motion to approve the settlement 
agreement.  That is what I want to hear.  
You have described your background and given 
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me lots of personal examples and given me some 
reasons why I believe this settlement 
agreement not be approved.  
Now, I am just trying to focus the remainder 
of the argument on why the agreement should 
not be approved.  I am not here to -- one of 
the issues that is not here that you just 
identified is the life insurance.  That is 
outside of this settlement agreement today.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  Thank you.  
This was done with the purpose of indicating 
to you that there is a lot of confusion, and I 
can not get the information.  
To be clear:  I would like to understand the 
exact final amounts that I would be entitled 
to.  Guarantees from the parties to the 
agreement before considering the possibility 
of waving all of my rights of litigation 
relative to the HWT.  
Thirdly, I can not come to an enlightened 
decision without being able to read all of the 
documents in French.  
To this point in time, all of the documents 
before the court are in English, and all 
requests for translation has led nowhere.  



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

229

If you wish, Your Honour, I can submit 
evidence to that effect.  I asked for the 
translation from Ogilvy Renault of 101 pages.  
I made the request in French, and the answer 
came to me in English.  
MR. TAY:  Just to clarify, the settlement 
agreement and order was translated and 
provided to all parties. 
THE COURT:  Settlement agreement and?  
MR. TAY:  Order.  Draft order.  
UNIDENTIFIED LAWYER:  And the notice letter 
that was sent in accordance with your order 
was sent in French.  The Monitor also has a 
(inaudible) that is in French and English and 
provided answers to questions that were 
opposed in French as well.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  I consider myself 
unable to understand clearly the implication 
of settlement.  After I left on Tuesday, I was 
sent a text email of the text in French, and 
that was what was referred to a moment ago.  
All of the messages that were circulating 
within the group of pensioners were bilingual 
messages, and all the documents were in 
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English.  
Only after the signing of this settlement by 
the Koskie Minsky office and the Monitor for 
the group of employees receiving long-term 
disability, and they put some questions in 
French -- I can not be precise, but to my 
knowledge, more than 30 people receiving 
long-term disability are not French speakers.  
I am not the only person to request the 
information in the language they understand.  
I must tell you, Your Honour, to be a French 
person in the case before you is an extremely 
difficult thing.  
I was subjected to insults and bad language 
that I never expected to receive when I came 
here to Canada.  
I wish to stop here, but I would like to 
submit to the court a document indicating the 
extent of these damages.  I sent a letter to 
your representative regarding the health care.  
I sent that letter in French.  Someone was 
kind enough to translate it into English.  
Unfortunately, I had the bad experience of 
receiving the following reply.

"If you are unhappy with the level 
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of French, you should file a complaint 
with the "Office Quebecois de la 
langue francais" and have them 
dispatch a language policemen to the 
Koskie Minsky law officers and the 
bankruptcy courts in Toronto."

MR. ZIGLER:  That is not from our office.  
THE FRENCH INTERPRETER:  No. 
THE COURT:  You indicated that you wanted to 
hand up a copy of a document, and you can hand 
it, and we will make copies for all counsel 
that wish to have it.  
MR. ZIGLER:  All of our correspondence was 
translated into French.  He asked for certain 
documents to be translated, and we translated 
them.  
THE COURT:  I think it would be more 
appropriate when you are called upon to give 
response for it.  
I am not prepared to just accept this without 
copies and distributed to all counsel here, 
but once that has been done, I will take a 
look at a photocopy of it.  You can see how 
many you have to make.  
Thank you.  
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There are representatives that wish to address 
the court.  
THE FRENCH INTERPRETER:  I am asked to finish 
the comments here.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  Okay.  

"Perhaps you should also hold a 
referendum on the separation of the 
Quebecois LTD people from the LTD 
people in the rest of Canada."  

Signed "B. Grow."  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  I will stop here 
regarding the French language and the 
translation of French language documents.  
Mr. Zigler's document was given to me, and 
it's translation came four days later.  
So, this document I received in French from 
the lawyer for Nortel, as well as the 
agreement and the court's order, that was 
before I was on my way to Toronto.  In other 
words, the second, fourth day.  
I would never be able to accept to be fired 
from Nortel before Nortel disappears, after a 
bankruptcy.  
First of all, so long as I am an employee of 
Nortel, Nortel has an obligation to take into 
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consideration the years I have put in, after 
the years of my 65. 
THE COURT:  If you could bring it back to the 
points at issue before the court and 
considerable latitude is provided to all 
individual parties wishing to address the 
court, but I am concerned we are drifting away 
from what was before the court, which is a 
motion to approve the settlement agreement.  
There is no doubt that there is considerable 
evidence about the suffering that many 
employees and former employees have suffered 
at the hand of this insolvency, but the issue 
today is whether to approve the settlement 
agreement.  That is what I want to hear 
argument on.  
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  With all due 
respect, the fourth point touches that point.  
This indicates that I should wave my rights to 
Nortel, that I accept being fired as of the 
31st of December.  
And the reasons I can read to you, if you wish 
not to hear that information, simply bear in 
mind that I am opposed.  
The reasons I wish to present to you, I am not 
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speaking of millions or billions of dollars, I 
am speaking of hundreds of dollars.  
The fact is, after 65 years of age, I would be 
entitled to $900 from Nortel.  It's not even 
$1000 dollars.  We are talking about $900.  
That is what I was entitled to.  
If I were to wave this right, if I accepted 
being fired, all of these amounts would be 
dropped to $400.  And if I apply the 
calculation for the reduction of payment, that 
is a figure of 63 percent, then it would be 
reduced to $250 dollars.  
Secondly, if this company should turn into one 
that is an administrator of patent and 
royalties, I have to be taken on with those 
that are in my situation.  
We have contributed to the creation of this 
company's value.  Sometimes at the cost of our 
health, and it would be right for us to 
benefit from this as well.  
Last point, Your Honour.  
I refuse to accept this settlement, because I 
don't want to wave my rights to oppose myself 
to an order for all incentive payments, 
financial incentive payments to management and 
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directors to the Nortel corporation and 
affiliates.  
I consider that these payments by the courts 
are indecent, because they do not benefit 
those that created the value.  
This 92 million dollar in bonus and incentive 
asked by the court are much greater than that 
which we would be getting.  That which we 
would recover.  
If this 92 million dollars were put in the 
health and welfare fund or trust, there would 
be no one here before you.  
I have to admit to you that without this 
coverage that I am now receiving from the 
health and welfare trust, I would have to live 
on $600 dollars per month.  
In conclusion, I ask the court that this 
agreement be rejected as proposed.  
In the alternative, I ask this court to grant 
the intervenors a supplementary period of time 
to amend the terms in the best interest of the 
employees receiving long-term disability, of 
which I am one.  
I am asking the court -- I don't know if I 
have a right to do so or not -- I also ask the 
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court to order the parties to put at my 
disposal all of the documents I have 
mentioned.  More specifically with regard to 
the HWT and the actuary evaluations presented 
to date regarding the HWT with the proposal 
for the final divide of funds between the 
beneficiaries and all of that in French, 
please.  
I have the feeling we are part of a group, 
including the pensioners, but in effect, in 
fact, I have the feeling that we are trees 
lost for the forest.  
There are 17,900 pensioners that have total 
different demands from the 409 employees on 
long-term disability.  
With all due respect to the court, I find 
myself in the position of asking a stupid 
question.  Everybody seems to be in agreement 
that the health and welfare trust is not a 
part of the Nortel assets, and, therefore, 
will not be shared by the creditors.  
The consequences that it was not covered by 
the CCAA.  Meaning that the court has no 
jurisdiction over that.  
So, I am wondering why an inclusion from the 
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-- in the settlement agreement, proposed 
settlement agreement, should make reference to 
this health and welfare trust?  
I am not asking for an immediate answer.  I am 
sure Your Honour will be able to provide that 
in due course.  With Your Honour's permission, 
I would like to go on for a couple more 
minutes?  
THE COURT:  Two more. 
RADULESCO SORIN GABRIEL:  One more.  I would 
like to speak to you of what I have achieved 
and am proud of.  One of them being that I 
helped my son in preparing for his own future.  
He is now a lawyer.  He has attended and had 
studied in English and now working for a large 
firm in Montreal.  I don't want to indicate 
what field he is working in.  It happens to be 
bankruptcy.  
Would you like to know what my son asked of 
me?  He told me:  "As regard to the state of 
your health, I am advising you not to go.  But 
for you to be at ease with your conscience.  
If you go, what I can tell you is that I know 
of Mr. Morawetz.  I studied his books, and 
they are referenced in the field.  He is 
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considered one of the best.  If he cannot 
bring justice to your case, nobody else in 
Canada will be able to do so."  
I do trust in your good judgment, Your Honour, 
and I thank you.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  
Good morning, sir.
SYLVAIN DE MARGARIE:  I am Sylvain De 
Margarie.  My aim is to communicate to you in 
English.  I am a resident of Ottawa, and I 
representing my wife Doris, who is on 
long-term disability.  For a while, I was on 
the steering committee.  
So, that was pulled together by Susan Kennedy, 
so I know of the functioning of that 
organization and talking to many of the 
members, and I know of their plight.  
I am not an accountant, lawyer, or actuary.  
So, my reasoning in this matter will be based 
on common sense.  
Not being cognizant of the procedure to fill 
out an affidavit, because I didn't know that 
was part of the procedure.  I have a statement 
I will read to you.  Available here.  I wonder 
if it would be possible to receive that as an 
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affidavit?  Maybe after the proceedings or 
time you want ever?  
THE COURT:  I think we established this 
morning that if you do have something, the 
court services will copy it and make it 
available to all counsel and reps in the 
courtroom, and it will be considered on that 
basis.  
Depending on what is in the document, sir, I 
can not tell you right now how it will be 
considered, because it's important in 
something like this to at least establish a 
record.  If there are contentious factual 
statements in the document, that will cause me 
some concern.  
If it's just a general summary of the point 
and argument you want to make, that is another 
story and that document will be considered.  
SYLVAIN DE MARGARIE:  Thank you.  We will see, 
I am not sure.  
I think I will be brief.  The first point I 
want to make is the result of the settlement 
agreement is inequitable.  Simply in question, 
the results of the agreement and ensuing 
distribution of the Health and Welfare Trust 
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that the information we have, we are in a 
situation, for example, where the pensioners 
are guarantied 69 percent of their income from 
the get go from their pension funds.  LTD may 
get as little as 29 percent, so there is an 
inequity there.  
Another factor in the agreement is that in the 
release provided for the Health and Welfare 
trustees, the pensioners are abandoning 
perhaps 3 percent.  But, you know, a 
possibility of litigation for perhaps 
something that is 3 percent of what they are 
due.  
For LTD, we abandon litigation for an amount 
that is around 61 percent of our due.  So, 
there is a vast difference of what the 
agreement is between the pensioners which are 
the majority players and the minority, who are 
the LTD.  
My second point is that I believe, and my 
understanding is, the settlement agreement was 
negotiated in a conflict of interest.  The 
pensioners have a different interest in this, 
coming from the position of having 69 percent 
of their revenue assured, are coming into this 
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agreement with a different outlook on things.  
And, in particular, the release.  The impact 
of the release on them is minuscule.  It's 
probably less than 1 percent in their final 
return, while it's large for the LTD.  
So there is a divergence of interest there.  
Yet, we are represented in negotiations by 
counsel, Koskie Minsky, and there is from my 
point of view, and I think others, concern by 
many LTDs that that representation has not 
been to our best interest.  
I know maybe -- well, stop me if you feel you 
need to, but I would like to give or speak to 
the conflict of the interest and reasons we 
have to doubt that we have been properly 
represented.  
Two examples.  One of them regards, well, we 
will start with the release on the 32nd Report 
of the Health and Welfare Trust agreements, as 
soon as I read -- I read the information I 
get.  As soon as I read that document, I 
developed my own opinion.  I am not a lawyer, 
but I can read and make conclusions, and I had 
doubt as to Koskie Minsky's earlier opinion to 
us that there was nothing to go after.  
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I mean, there was no case against the trustee.  
So, reading the document, I had different 
opinions on that.  
The first thing I realized is there was a 
clause for amendment later, and, two, they 
were included in the package.  
Well, my first question is, is what I have 
here complete, or are there amendments not 
released to me and kept me from making an 
educated judgment?  And, also, if I don't have 
a complete document, I am in a bad position to 
seek counsel for someone else.  An opinion 
from someone else.  
So, days after the release of the report, I 
asked the court appointed representative to 
obtain confirmation, whether or not the 
agreement in the 32nd report was whole.  
The word "whole" we couldn't make it for 
conclusions.  
Insisting (sic) on getting that answer, which 
seems would be easy, and it seems that the 
counsel at Koskie Minsky, if they had looked 
at it, it would be simple:  Yes or no.  I 
didn't get it.  I asked repeatedly, and it was 
actually in the official records of the CNELTD 
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list of questions as recorded that they asked 
the questions and didn't get the answer.  It 
took more than two months to get the answer, 
and the answer was given to me by Mr. Zigler 
three days after the agreement was signed.  
So, I was refused access to information that 
would have allowed me to make a better 
judgment, and it seemed to be a self 
protecting tactic.  So, I couldn't go and do 
my own due diligence on the counsel that 
represents me. 
THE COURT:  I take it that you did not opt out 
of, or your wife did not opt out of the 
representation?  
SYLVAIN DE MARGARIE:  No.  We gave the benefit 
of the doubt to Koskie Minsky. 
THE COURT:  I will then just emphasize the 
same to the previous presenters, that the 
motion today is one to approve the settlement.  
It is not a motion to deal with the actions or 
the advice or representation provided by 
Koskie Minsky.  
SYLVAIN DE MARGARIE:  Agreed, sir.  What I am 
trying point out is the behavior that we have 
seen from Koskie Minsky. 
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THE COURT:  I take it that the point you are 
trying make is that you did not have complete 
information or adequate time to consider the 
implications of settlement agreement that is 
being put before the court today? 
SYLVAIN DE MARGARIE:  With all due respect, 
that is not what I intended.  What I intended 
is to show that we asked that we have an 
answer that would be available within days or 
minutes from Koskie Minsky, and they did not 
provide us the information we asked for, and 
in a prejudicial way that kept us from doing 
our due diligence.  
Yes.  I will go to my third point.  
The settlement agreement and the Health and 
Welfare Trust distributions, in my opinion, 
cannot be considered separately.  
The parties to the settlement agreement are 
also parties claiming interest in the Health 
and Welfare Trust.  These include LTD 
beneficiaries, survivor income beneficiaries, 
retirees through a life insurance claim, and 
current employees through a group of life 
insurance.  
So, what happens is, what is given, and in one 
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agreement can be taken from the other, and 
vice versa.  So, it's hard to consider both 
separately.  
For LTD, agreeing on a settlement agreement 
forfeits any leverage we would have in 
negotiations of a favorable distribution of 
the Health and Welfare Trust, and, therefore, 
to me, and it's common sense that the 
settlement agreement as it sits today ought to 
include terms for distribution of the Health 
and Welfare Trust.  It cannot separate the 
two, because one will have implications on the 
other.  
The fourth point:  There has been talk about 
quid pro quo.  I recognize the importance of 
quid pro quo.  We are in insolvency, and 
people have to put water in their wine, but I 
think here we have a case of unbalanced quid 
pro quo.  
Overall, I think what Nortel gives is 57 
million dollars that is distributed among 
parties, and what they get out of this is a 
release for, and this is just one number.  
This is pulled out of the Health and Welfare 
Trust financial statements.  They get a 
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release for liability to the trustee, which 
amounts to about 192 million dollars.  
If you now take the quid pro quo and bring it 
to the LTD, of that 57 million, Nortel gives 
us 14 million dollars, and that includes 
income benefits and medical benefits, and I 
have added the two and the value of the 
release that we get.  
So the quo Nortel gets is 80 million.  Making 
the ratio of these -- you will find that the 
quid and the quo do not balance, that LTD 
realize is not the same as the quid, and the 
pro quo that the pensioners realize.
So, there is the bias in the agreement, and in 
the balance of give and take in this 
agreement, and that is in favor of the LTD.  
My fifth point is equity is a nice thing to 
have, but admitted in some cases impossible to 
give.  
For example, a blind person cannot drive a 
car.  It's unfortunate for the blind person, 
but so be it.  I believe in the present 
context, a solution is possible.  
First, removal of the health -- of the release 
from the Health and Welfare Trust trustee 
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would potentially allow to recoup some of what 
is due to the LTD, and not only to the LTD but 
other folks too, but it would help to balance 
the quid pro quo.  
I don't think the Health and Welfare Trust can 
be completely separate from the agreement.  
The Health and Welfare Trust, the people 
identified in the Health and Welfare Trust 
income statement that it has dibs on those 
assets, including LTD, and the survivors who 
both have income claims with respect to the 
Health and Welfare Trust as set, and there are 
two other groups that have supposed claims 
based on life insurance.  
My friend spoke about that, and there are two 
groups.  I mean, the Health and Welfare Trust 
for LTD is equivalent to the pension.  This is 
basic revenue from which we survive, and we 
have two groups that are relative.  That go 
into that or pretend to have rights to that 
fund based on claims for life insurance.  
The LTD life insurance does not come from the 
assets of the Health and Welfare Trust.  So, I 
think there would be room there to equalize 
things, and perhaps let some of the people 
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that claim those amounts on the -- for the 
purpose of achieving equity and could abandon 
those claims.  
Simply stated, the settlement agreement offers 
little in exchange for giving up almost 
everything.  
The implication of the settlement agreement as 
it is now would be that it would be an 
inequitable solution.  
In terms of human rights, the capital 
difference between retirement pension and LTD 
income benefits is the criteria of qualifying 
event under which a future pension is agreed 
to be paid.  And they are both pensions under 
the common definition, the difference is the 
criteria between the -- for retirees the 
criteria is reaching age 65, which most of us 
will reach.  It applies to everyone.  For the 
LTD, it's becoming disabled.  By default, an 
agreement or that agreement that results in 
unequal treatment to a minority of disabled 
people is according to my understanding of 
human right legislation constitutes 
constructive discrimination.  
So, I believe behind this, we could see that 
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spectrum.  
My third point is that settling this 
agreement, and specifically allowing the 
release for the Health and Welfare Trustee, it 
blocks the possibility of establishing a 
precedent that could protect LTD beneficiaries 
in the future for a similar case to court, and 
perhaps establishing a precedent that could 
protect LTD not only for Nortel, but 
beneficiaries in the future.  
I read the trust agreement, and in that it 
says that the trustee agrees, at least yearly, 
to do actuary analysis, and Nortel is 
obligated to fund the trust according to that.  
The fund is underfunded by over 60 percent.  
So, something happened there.  Either the 
trustee did not do the analysis correctly or 
Nortel did not pay.  
The responsibility of the trustee could be 
looked at.  Has the trustee done everything he 
could and taken all the steps he could to 
force Nortel to respect the agreement and have 
it paid.  
So the question, in general cases, is whether 
a trustee in his fiduciary duty to 
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beneficiaries must exercise all feasible 
resources to compel the settlor to make 
payments as per a trust agreement.  
I am not an expert in law, and I looked to 
find something on that, but I couldn't but 
there are people here that could.  
Allowing this court to establish this 
precedent would once and for all resolve this 
uncertainty regarding the responsibility of 
Trustees through their participation in 
constructs such as Nortel Health and Welfare 
Trust, which are to the detriment of the 
Beneficiaries.  
That closes my statement.  Thank you for your 
time. 
THE COURT:  Thank you, and thank you for 
providing the statement that the court finds 
helpful and the other lawyers and in persons 
will find helpful as a good summary of your 
position.  Thank you.  
PETER BURNS:  Thank you for seeing me today, 
Your Honour.  I am here as one of the active 
of the LTD group. 
THE COURT:  If you could identify yourself?  
PETER BURNS:  Burns.  I call myself a typical 
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individual of those active representatives of 
those active people.  I am Peter Burns, and I 
am 54 years old.  I left my parents in 1976.  
I was 18 years old, and I have lived 
independent ever since.  I wish to make a 
statement that I oppose the settlement 
agreement absolutely.  
Furthermore, I ask that the court enforce 
Nortel's obligations to me, and furthermore I 
ask the court to level the financial playing 
field so that the disabled can recover the 
travel like the others in this court do.  
I proudly live in beautiful Ottawa.  
I have two Masters thesis with my name on 
them.  One Physics from Waterloo, and another 
from Queen's, and I have science publications 
in my name in astro physics and quantum 
mechanics.  There are machines around the 
world that I designed for GE, and some of the 
lights above your head, because they were in 
the nuclear station and for Nortel.  
I once developed a math theory that helped 
Nortel avoid $1 billion in penalties in a 
product they were nearly late completing.  I 
later extended that, and it developed into 
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material from a patent that was awarded to me 
from Nortel in 2007.  
I have also published papers in the "British 
Journal" and the "Journal of the Royal 
Society".  
Others know me from my children's stories and 
unusual painting in pen and ink.  I once made 
a mark in the world like many of the lawyers 
around me today.  But, in 2004, while working 
at Nortel, a tumor was found on my spinal 
cord, and after surgery, I was left paralyzed 
below the T9, and surgery partial corrected 
it, but some damage was permanent, and I 
suffered a post stroke, and I cope with memory 
loss, extreme hypersensitivity and chronic 
pain, too.  
I was earning 90,000 a year working at Nortel, 
and I was glad I topped up long-term 
disability up to 70 percent.  I did this to 
insure the support of my three daughters:  17, 
19 and 15.  
In 1990, I nearly went bankrupt before working 
with Nortel, because I didn't have coverage, 
and I wasn't going to do that again.  
After physio therapy and high doses of 
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painkillers, I have recovered enough to walk 
and function as you see me today.  Working 
legs come with a high price.  If my pain is 
not properly managed, it interferes with my 
instincts of self, and I do not have the 
option of stop taking the drugs or to stop 
paying for them.  
My drugs and other medical needs cost me 
approximately $3000 a month, and the court 
should know, like many others on LTD, my 
living and medical expenses compete with my 
paycheck each month.  
I hear in this court that I am unhappy with 
the settlement agreement.  Anyone that thinks 
so must have no understanding of the moral 
danger I would endure.  
The court needs to understand my issues cannot 
be managed by the types of compromise in the 
agreement.  Nortel does not wish to live up to 
its benefit obligation, and my situation is 
the nightmare of every disabled person in 
Canada.  Past, present, and future.  
I am unable to work.  Worse, my means of 
survival terminate on December 31.  Even 
though Nortel tells us there is no cash, they 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

254

somehow provide cash for ever larger bonuses 
and paid as a retention award in a sold out 
company as a gift to the management that 
killed my company.  
Today, I am ashamed to say I worked for 
Nortel.  Clearly, the directors belong to a 
lost Canadian company that pays its executive 
bonuses for losing money and customers and 
hurting disabled and sick employees.  This 
deal forced us, the disabled -- physically and 
financially -- to make our way to this 
courtroom alone at our own pain and expense.  
Many could not afford to do it.  
On Wednesday, it seemed we could only lose 
further by enduring the smiles of our own CCAA 
lawyers and reps.  The deal forced us to 
defend ourselves within a few weeks of notice.  
That Mr. Rochon could appear at all is a 
miracle.  
This legal defence was by a group of sick and 
disabled people at our own expense.  The 
agreement is cruel and has exhausted us.  
Yesterday, we saw financial information was 
available to us one year ago.  It seems to me, 
the intention to force the disabled into an 
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agreement without the proper information to do 
so.  We continue to ask for disclosure, which 
should have occurred -- to be fair -- one year 
ago.  At least.  
I heard Mr. Tay tell me we are merely unhappy.  
The court should know, if I were merely 
unhappy, I would have stayed home, because I 
am in too much pain to take this trip.  
We are not unhappy.  We are scared to death, 
because the agreement proposes to take away 
our lives.  
I can insure the court I am carrying in my 
cane drugs that criminals would slit my throat 
for.  The settlement agreement could not be 
placed for poor people who are trying to 
survive with their own untreated addictions.  
I do not speak without knowledge here.  I have 
lived with and assisted a few of these kinds 
but disadvantaged people, when not confronting 
Nortel.  The grinding poor have good reason 
for their street behavior, but I find them 
more trustworthy and honorable than Nortel.  
That does not mean I can live an among those 
souls with my drugs.  
This deal tells Canadians that even when you 
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buy from Sun Life and Nortel, for instance, it 
may not be insurance.  It may be a special 
joke by the company on the disabled.  
Self insurance is a special kind of insult 
whose deficits were protected until two weeks 
ago.  
I personally have no confidence in any party 
or legal committee that could allow the end of 
my drug plan and source of income.  This is a 
death sentence for several of us.  I know of 
at least two others with a similar concern to 
me.  
My 86 year old father on Vancouver Island has 
names for this.  He calls them Hopson's (ph) 
choice.  
The committee and lawyers at Koskie Minsky 
give me Hopson's choice as to when to be poor 
or dead.  March 31, otherwise December 31.  
My income once 90,000 a year will drop to 
18,000.  Hardly enough to buy one half of my 
medical needs.  
A year ago, I thought that a Health and 
Welfare Trust with a financial vehicle with 
rules.  I don't know what rules apply to be a 
flagrant breach of trust.  
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In summary, I oppose the agreement absolutely.  
Further, I ask the court to enforce Nortel's 
obligations to me.
Furthermore, I ask that the lawyers stop their 
mocking smiles, since life and death is not a 
laughing matter.  I thank the Court for 
listening to me today.  It's important to me.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  I have one question, 
and I think I know the answer, but for the 
record, I assume that you did not opt out of 
the Koskie Minsky representations?  
PETER BURNS:  I did not opt out.
THE COURT:  Thank you for coming.  
MR. ZIGLER:  Mr. Burns has filed an affidavit. 
THE COURT:  Any other in-person parties that 
wish to make representation?  So after the 
break, I expect Mr. Macfarlane and Mr. Swan 
and Ms. Huff as well.
Is there anyone else then that will make 
submissions prior to reply then?  Just those 
two. 
MR. MACFARLANE:  There is a lawyer who is 
going to be reading in a letter from the 
principle officer of NNI, and I understand 
there has been an agreement made with Monitor 
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counsel to read that letter into the record 
with Your Honour's permission. 
THE COURT:  Any estimate, as to the length of 
your submission?  
MR. MACFARLANE:  I was going to be an hour or 
more, perhaps.  Bu I have to accommodate the 
situation.  I understand. 
THE COURT:  Mr. Swan?  
Mr. Swan:  Half hour or less. 
THE COURT:  Mr. Swan, if I could also see you 
just outside for a moment.  For everyone in 
the room, the reason I want to see Mr. Swan is 
because he is scheduled on another matter to 
appear before me this afternoon, and we will 
have to make arrangements to deal with that.  
We will take a ten minute recess. 
-- Brief adjournment.  
-- Upon resuming.
THE COURT DEPUTY:  All phones must be off, 
please.  
THE COURT REGISTRAR:  Order all rise.  Court 
is resumed, please be seated.  
THE COURT:  Good afternoon.  
UNIDENTIFIED LAWYER:  I am here on behalf of 
Nortel or NNI, one of the U.S. debtors of 
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Chapter 11 in the U.S. 
Jim wishes he could be here today.  We thank 
you for the opportunity to make a statement 
today, which will be brief.  NNI's position is 
set forth in a letter from John Ray, NNI 
principle, and referred in the material 
submitted by the U.S. to this court.  
Let me emphasize, NNI recognizes the 
significant suffering from employees on both 
sides of the border.  
NNI is supportive of the economics of the 
agreement before you.  We have concern with 
the finality of the agreement.  
In particular, we have and has concluded H2 
under cut it is certainty that should be 
provided by the agreement.  As a result, NNI 
agrees that the agreement is prejudicial, 
other than those other than direct 
beneficiaries of the settlement agreement.  
NNI also believes it's also important no party 
to able to or be bound by the settlement 
agreement.  We thank you for the time, and 
opportunity to be heard today.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  Before I start, I will give 
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you housekeeping of the materials I will be 
referring to.  You have the list that has been 
provided, which is the affidavit and the 
supplementary record.  
THE COURT:  Start again. 
MR. MACFARLANE:  I will refer to the affidavit 
of Jarvis, and not to the supplementary motion 
record.  I will refer to the factum, and I 
will not be referring to our brief of 
authorities, but I will refer to the Monitor's 
39th report.  
The responding record of Koskie Minsky, and 
the Monitor's brief of authorities, and the 
Monitor's factum.  
THE COURT:  Factum and brief.  Okay.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  First off, Your Honour, I 
would like to address or take a moment to 
address an issue raised near the end of 
Mr. Tay's submission at the opening on 
Wednesday, and it was his comments concerning 
statements made in our factum and in the 
capacity of Monitor to the Canadian debtors.  
I want to advise the court that over the 
course of the evening, I reviewed the factum, 
and in hindsight there may have been comments 
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or words that caused the Monitor some 
discomfort, and I wish to state on the record, 
before this court, having also spoken with 
Mr. MacDonald, no disrespect was intended or 
with respect to it's independence or 
objectivity.  If Your Honour wishes further 
explanation, I am prepared to put more on the 
record.  
That said, the committee for whom I act is 
saying in its materials that the Monitor and 
Canadian debtor did not take the interest of 
NNI and the committee as one of Nortel's 
largest creditors into consideration in 
recommending that the court approve the 
settlement agreement in its current form, or 
if they did take it into consideration, they 
did not give it adequate weight or deference 
with respect to this case and the settlement.  
As Your Honour may also recall from the last 
time we attended on this before you, on the 
notice motion, the issues with respect to the 
settlement agreement and the sole contested 
provision from NNI and the committee's 
perspective, H2 is highly charged.  
In my submissions today, on behalf of the 
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committee, I will take issue of the analysis 
or lack thereof, and the conclusions and 
recommendations made by the Canadian debtors 
or Monitor with respect to H2 as set out in 
the materials of 39th report.  
That is the scope of my submissions in respect 
to our objections with respect to H2.  
Your Honour, we act for the appointed in the 
U.S. debtors, pursuant to Chapter 11, by the 
office of the U.S. trustee for the district of 
Delaware.  
We are a creature of statute and appointed to 
represent the interest of all general 
unsecured creditors of the U.S. debtors, in 
which includes, former Nortel U.S. employees 
pensioners, who have unsecured claims, and all 
unsecured generally, including the pension 
benefits guaranty corporation in the U.S.
As part of that mandate, the committee seeks 
to maximize for all general and protect and 
promote their interest of general unsecured 
creditor and that effectively means being 
charged with the responsibility to minimize 
risk and to insure certainty, where 
applicable.  
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Charged with that mandate, the committee, of 
course, understands and is sensitive to the 
hardship that has fallen on the employees 
former and pensioners of Nortel Canada and is 
saddened by what they have experienced in 
these proceedings on account of the failure of 
Nortel, and I hope that what is before, Your 
Honour with tweaking will bring a measure of 
comfort to the employee stakeholder group and 
provide assistance and provide continue 
medical health and pension benefits for a 
period of time, and thereby eliminating risk 
and responding costs.  
Just to frame my argument, before we move into 
the provision, I want to take Your Honour, if 
I may, and I will be referring to two 
principle documents, which is our factum in 
the green and the 39th report of the Monitor. 
And I ask that you really turn to our factum 
and paragraphs 39, 30, and to Monitor's 
Report, page 18, and it's really paragraphs 42 
to 43, 54 and 55.  
And the benefit of what is before you is, and 
it's essentially a mirror, but it's a chart 
which allows Your Honour to understand exactly 
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what the give is by Nortel to the employee 
stakeholders, and it's summarized there, but 
amounts to 57 million of real money of which 
44.2 million is a new unplanned expenditure, 
And I will not take you to this necessary low, 
but it's in the Monitor's report at 91 to 29, 
and it's section G4 of the settlement 
agreement, which we will go to.  Which is at 
tab B.  
In order to give the employee stakeholders 
comfort, they are afforded the benefit of the 
payments charge, which will give them in the 
event of any un bankruptcy.  That is the 
economic package for the employees, money, 
including new money and a charge going 
forward.  
What the employees gave up or asked to give up 
was a release of priority claim.  They are not 
releasing claims against Nortel or any 
entities on unsecured basis or ability to 
share in any future distribution, but they are 
giving up certain priority claims, and they 
are captured in C2 of the settlement 
agreement, which is tab 2.  That is the 
ranking of the HWT claims.  And the essence 
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means it's a waiver to advance or a 
certificate or to make any claim that any HWT 
claims are entitled to any special treatment 
over ordinary unsecured claim, and as such 
shall rank with the claims of ordinary 
unsecured creditors.  That is the give.  
Again, with respect to the pension claims, 
it's found at E1 of the settlement agreement, 
essentially the same concept, and I will 
summarize.  Unsecured creditors -- 
THE COURT:  The reporter has signaled that if 
you could slow down a bit.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  I am conscious of time, and I 
can be a fast talker.  
THE COURT:  You may want to talk fast, but 
with the translation, the reporter wants to 
make sure we have a record that is understood 
at the end.  Cutting through it, as I read 
your factum and having heard what the 
Superintendent's position as confirmed the 
other day, is it fair to say that the UCC is 
supportive of the settlement agreement with 
the exception of H2?  
MR. MACFARLANE:  That is precise. 
THE COURT:  So, really, that is where I think 
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your time could be best spent.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  Okay.  I will move to that 
then.  So let's before --
THE COURT:  Not to say anything other than the 
arguments with respect to the settlement have 
been heard.  
Anything that is new with respect to why the 
settlement should be approved, other than what 
I have heard from the applicants or from the 
Monitor.  Feel free to zero in on that, 
otherwise I take it you support their 
position. 
MR. MACFARLANE:  I am.  I wanted to give you 
the give and get on the agreement.  
So, then the other give by the employees is 
found at the releases of G1 and G2 of the 
settlement agreement, and the last give by the 
employees found at B4 of the settlement is the 
agreement to withdrawal the leave to appeal 
from Your Honour's decision on the respect of 
the severance and termination.  
Now, I am going to take you next to the -- 
THE COURT:  I think it's the leave to from the 
Court of Appeal. 
MR. MACFARLANE:  Yes, correct.  To the 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

267

respondent's record.  I want to draw to your 
attention, that everyone in this agreement 
with respect are striving for certain things, 
which is certainty and minimization of risk, 
except when it comes to H2. 
And the affidavit evidence, and I am going to 
take you to selected paragraphs and the 
affidavit of Mr. Sproule and Susan Kennedy are 
mirrors in the parts that I want to refer to.  
So I will not refer to all of them, but I will 
start if I may, and I may move through this.  
I will try to as quick as possible.  
On page 16 of Mr. Koskie Minsky record, the 
affidavit of Mr. Sproule, and it's under 
heading of the settlement.  
The first reference is to paragraph 66 the 
last line.  Mr. Sproule states the fact that 
the company's payment of the medical benefits 
and transfer of the administration is 
inevitable.  Flipping over, he states:

"The Settlement Agreement provides 
certainty and security for Former 
Employees for the next year." 

Dropping down to paragraph 71:  
"Our success in achieving 
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additional nine months of payments not 
only provides our constituency with an 
additional nine months of coverage, it 
also provides us with additional time 
to seek an alternative for basic 
replacement benefit coverage going 
forward, perhaps funded by 
distributions from the Nortel estate."

So, it increases and lessens risk.  
Again, paragraph 72.  I will not read it, but 
the theme of that paragraph is, again, for the 
retiree life benefit and creates certainty 
with the benefits going forward.  
Paragraph 73, starting on the second line, 
this is under pension plan as the heading.  
Page 18 of the record.

"...and special payments will 
continue to be paid until March 31, 
2010.  More importantly, the 
Settlement Agreement provides 
certainty that Nortel will continue to 
administer the Pension Plans until 
September 30, 2010, and that neither 
Nortel nor the Monitor will take steps 
to initiate a wind up of the Pension 
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Plans before that date."
Paragraph 74:  

"These are major benefits for our 
group.  It provides our group with 
certainty that their pensions will 
continue until at least September 30, 
2010."  

And dropping down in the paragraph with a 
sentence that starts:  

"In addition, the extra time that 
we have been guaranteed before a 
potential plan wind-up, that is until 
September 30, 2010, allows more time 
for market recovery, which could 
minimize our pension reductions and 
losses in the future."

I.e., reduce risk.  
Paragraph 76, the same theme is priority, and 
certainty and lessens risk.  
Paragraph 77:  

"In exchange for the payments from 
the Termination Fund, the Former 
Employees will be required to release 
the application for leave to appeal to 
the Supreme Court of Canada.  I have 
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been advised by my legal counsel that 
in order to appeal to the Supreme 
Court of Canada, we are required to 
seek permission from the Court, and 
that leave is difficult to obtain.  
Thus, by releasing the leave 
application to the Supreme Court, we 
are avoiding uncertain, risky and 
costly litigation in favour of a 
payment of funds that is certain and 
payable in a reasonable period of 
time."  

Paragraph 80 speaks for itself about 
certainty.  
The paragraph under section quid pro quo, 
Mr. Sproule summarizes, and Susan Kennedy in a 
similar paragraph in her affidavit, but 
Mr. Sproule indicates:  

"Based on everything I have seen, 
it is my understanding that the 
Settlement Agreement can essentially 
be distilled down to this:  in 
exchange for security and certainty of 
our benefits through 2010, we were 
required to give up rights to future, 
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risky and uncertain litigation."
And he goes through in more detail on 
paragraph 82 of what the give was by the 
employees in respect of the settlement 
agreement.  
Most of the paragraphs that follow as the 
gives by employees represent that they 
understand what they are giving up is not that 
much in respect of immediate rights and 
benefits, and I refer you to paragraph 84, 
which I just did, to paragraph 87.  Paragraph 
88, paragraph 89, paragraph 94.  
Lastly, in the conclusion, at page 23:  

"To put it simply, the settlement 
agreement provides the former 
employees and Nortel's disabled 
employees with an interim benefit 
funding solution that provides 
short-term security and certainty for 
the next year.  While we are releasing 
certain litigation claims, we are 
exchanging this risk and uncertainty 
with real benefits, more time to find 
alternative solutions and real cash, 
in the range of $44.2 million."
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As I say, Susan Kennedy affidavit, I will not 
take you that that affidavit, but it's the 
same theme:  Minimization of risk.  
Now, in the context of certainty and 
minimization of risk, which this is to provide 
to all parties, including non employee 
stakeholders, and I will now refer to the 
Monitor's 39th report.  
We come to H2 or, in our view, what we have 
termed "the take back provision".  The Monitor 
calls it the no preclusion, but that is a 
neutral term.  It's meant to benefit one 
group.  So H2, tab b.  Page 10.
THE COURT:  For some reason it already has a 
yellow sticky. 
MR. MACFARLANE:  If you want to read it one 
more time. 
THE COURT:  I don't have to read H2.  I think 
I get it.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  Okay.  Now, the employee 
stakeholders have been candid in materials 
before Your Honour, and in the press reports 
that are amended to the affidavit, and we see 
with the strategic aims with respect to H2.  
And we can find reference, again, I will take 
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you to the responding record to Mr. Sproule's 
affidavit.  Paragraph 85 of his affidavit.  
Page 21 of the record.  

Clause H2 of the agreement caused 
concern for the NRPC.  It was very 
important to the Representatives and 
NRPC to limit this clause to provide 
that in the event there is ever an 
amendment to the BIA giving former 
employees preferred status under the 
BIA, and that Nortel at the time of 
the distribution has moved into 
proceedings under the BIA, we 
maintained our right to argue that any 
amendment providing priority should 
apply to us.  We were successful at 
achieving the inclusion of Clause H2 
in the Settlement Agreement."  

There is a similar paragraph I will not take 
you to, but in paragraph 59 of Susan Kennedy 
affidavit.  
In Mr. (Inaudible) affidavit, we appended 
copies of three articles:  Exhibits G, H, and 
I.  
Those articles are articles found in the 
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"Globe and Mail" and "Ottawa Citizen", and 
dated February 8, February 9, and there is a 
third article dated February 19th.  
But if we go to Exhibit G of the affidavit, 
this is the "Globe and Mail" article.  
The ultimate paragraph provides:  

"Susan Kennedy an employee on 
long-term disability .... said the 
deal buys workers almost a year to 
adjust to potential loss of income 
they face."

It goes on to say:  
The deal gives Nortel employees 

time to find solutions for workers, 
including providing a new benefit plan 
and get (inaudible)."

On page 2 of that article, 101 of the record, 
I am quoting Susan Kennedy:  

"The extension provides more time 
to ...."

So Nortel gets a greater piece of Nortel 
assets.  
Now, in most cases I am sure you would say, 
legislation changes, that is remote, but it's 
not fancy in this case, because it's also 
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appended at exhibits K and J.  Copies of what 
we dub the Nortel bills, which were two bills, 
private member bills pending before 
parliament, which was to give priority status 
and HWT.  And reading the bill and speaking 
with the pension people, Nortel bills insert 
the deficit and LTD into the Bankruptcy and 
Insolvency Act that give supper priority -- 
{reading too fast - inaudible). 
So, these bills are active, granted, but given 
the fact that we are in a minority government 
situation, and these bills have been before 
the House, there is a risk that this 
legislation can come to pass and be 
implemented and elevate the claims which the 
Nortel employees have agreed will be ranked 
and including the $1.1 deficit that is over 
hanging could rank on a priority basis of all 
ordinary unsecured creditors, leaves out the 
option to argue that that would reverse the 
priorities.  
So, let's from the UCC perspective, what does 
it say?  
THE COURT:  Let me ask a question, and any 
party is more than welcome to respond.  



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

276

In a quick review of what was in the throne 
speech and the budget bill, I am not aware 
that this issue has been addressed.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  No, but I am aware that the 
NDP did. 
MR. ZIGLER:  There is one line in the speech.  
It says our government will explore ways to 
better protect ways to protect when go 
bankrupt. 
MR. MACFARLANE:  But we have heard they're 
willing and certainly able to form a minority 
government, should the chance availed itself.  
That pension priority legislation is indeed a 
priority.  
So, what does the committee and NNI say about 
H2?  
Well, you have heard from Ms. Weaver and 
Mr. Ray's letter.  The letter is found at tab 
-- or Exhibit l to Mr. Hotu's (ph.) affidavit.  
But in the committee's view, its position is 
that the take back provision is designed to 
reserve rights of the employee stakeholders to 
compromise what is contained in the settlement 
agreement.  
After substantial consideration would have 
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been paid to them and that by reserving the 
rights stakeholders have reserved that the 
releases they provided in accordance with G1 
and G2 will no longer apply.  
The committee is of the view that undercuts 
the certainty and imposes an unfair and 
unaccepted risk on the creditors of Nortel.  
Specifically, the take back provision if 
successful, there could be a pension claim.  
In particular, the 1.1 billion, unfair 
prejudice Nortel non creditors.  
Now, as I mentioned to you at the outset, the 
UCC supports the economics.  It was to the UCC 
and it was provided, however, that its 
stakeholders, i.e., the committee 
stakeholders, agreed to consideration provided 
for in the settlement agreement, and that the 
settlement agreement resulted in finality and 
certainty.  That is all we ask for, finality 
and certainty of the claim settled, and as 
part of our duty, we are obligated to strive 
to have that where possible.  
Now, it's the view of the committee, and I 
think the support of Mr. Tay, that H2 is not 
an essential component of the settlement 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

278

agreement, and this I will take you to.  There 
was no quid pro quo pro.  H2 stands on its own 
and put in the agreement after the impetus of 
one group negotiating, and it can be removed 
or ordered to be removed, and it would not 
effect the economics of settlement agreement.  
I have Mr. Ray's letter available, Your 
Honour.  I will take it to you, because he 
probably says or phrases the objection better 
than I can, but the operative section of the 
letter I would like to take you to is on page 
127.  It sorts of third of the way down on the 
first paragraph, starting with:  

"In reviewing the settlement 
agreement." 

MR. MACFARLANE:  Both the Monitor and Nortel 
have downplayed the risk associated with H2, 
and in both the materials of the company and 
the Monitor is a passing reference to H2, and 
it's found in paragraph 19 of Ms. King's 
affidavit, and you will find a verbatim 
recital.  Same in the paragraph 97.  
Yes, which is page 38.  It's a reference to 
the H2 clause.  Verbatim reference, no 
comments.  
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"As far as the Monitor 
provides..."

The next paragraph:  
"The Monitor states:  It's the 

Monitor's view ... including the 
provisions of the HWT claim and 
pension claims ... and the various 
releases represent an important state 
and potential claims which will assist 
in the development of the plan."

There are no comments on H2.  
Now, yesterday, everyone that went before Your 
Honour, except Mr. Rochon, had something to 
say about H2, and I wanted to review their 
comments, and Mr. Tay was candid.  He said, we 
tried everything to bring parties together for 
settlement, and H2 remains the central issue.  
And to his credit, Mr. Tay in submissions 
stated Nortel is content if H2 comes out.  
What is important is the economics of the 
benefit package.  H2 is not an essential part 
of the settlement.  
Now, we heard from Mr. Zarnett on behalf of 
the Monitor.  
A couple of different submission.  One 
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clarified by Ms. Rubenstein, and the first 
submission Mr. Zarnett made was that H2 was 
linked to H1 of the settlement agreement, and 
that is the first time I have ever heard that.  
It took me by surprise, and when I went back 
and reviewed the entire record, there is no 
evidence before the court from any stakeholder 
that there is any linkage between H1 and H2.  
It stands alone.  
There is a trade off in H1, but no linkage 
between H1 and H2.  There is no give/get.  
That is a new theory of the case, and a 
submission made by Mr. Zarnett that is not 
supported by the record.  
Now, Mr. Zarnett also stated that H2 leaves 
the door open to both parties in the event 
that there is a change of law.  I was 
surprised by this.  We only know one party 
that is the employee stakeholder, because the 
bonds at NNI don't want to change the law, and 
they would minimization of risk.  
And then Mr. Zarnett went on to state further 
that it changes the law in the other direction 
of the stakeholders.  That will not happen.  
If the law changes, it's one direction to 
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benefit the certain group of that with a 
priority that would not otherwise be afforded 
in bankruptcy, which is prejudicial to the 
group of unsecured creditors.  
Mr. Zarnett also made a submission that it's 
an accepted reservation of rights and part of 
a package.  
Again, in my submission, Your Honour, it's a 
submission that is not supported by the record 
before Your Honour.  There is no analysis or 
evidence before Your Honour that that is in 
fact the case.  
Mr. Zarnett also went on to state that the 
amount of uncertainty associated is minor.  
Again, Your Honour, there is no evidence on 
the record to support that statement.  
Mr. Zarnett went on to cite the Grace case, in 
which Your Honour provided a statement that 
that was not appropriate in the court to do a 
line by line settlement agreement entered by, 
and that this is not a line by line analysis 
of the settlement agreement that we ask for 
NNI.  It's the removal. 
THE COURT:  You are asking for?  
MR. MACFARLANE:  I am asking for the removal 
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of a tumor, and, in your view, a tumor.  
THE COURT:  The question I have for you is 
whether or not it's your position that H2 can 
be removed, or whether it results in a 
declaration or settlement agreement that 
cannot be approved if I am not favorable to 
H2?  
MR. MACFARLANE:  Mr. Zarnett provided a 
helpful solution, as did Mr. Rochon and 
Ms. Rubenstein, and although I don't agree 
with the timing, it will not stop today if 
it's not approved in the form.  
There is a practical solution the court has 
used in the past, is to allow the parties to 
further negotiate if there is a view that 
certain issues may or may not be accepted, and 
what Mr. Zarnett throughout, and I found 
helpful, and I agree with him in the approach, 
is there is the practical -- as there is 
always in these cases.  A practical solution 
to this particular profession is that it 
should not be in the agreement, and, in my 
respectful submission, Your Honour should not 
be approving the agreement within a dangerous 
precedent in cases such as this.  
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I have never in my years and consulting, I 
have never seen an agreement that contains a 
similar clause, and as we know in these cases, 
there is always one up.  The next case that 
comes before you will have a similar clause 
with more breathe, and it will be that you 
approved it in this case.  
It doesn't have a place here and should not be 
approved by the court, and parties should be 
given time to work out a practical solution 
with respect to that paragraph.  
I am not saying Mr. Tay has not tried to do 
it, but sometimes it takes the effect of a 
courtroom and officer ruling from the bench or 
giving his or her views with respect to 
matters that motivate parties to do something 
one way or the other, and I think the parties, 
the committee were hopeful that that might 
break the log jam and cause some movement.  
Now, I will not go through all of Mr. Zigler's 
submission on page 2, but I want to jump to a 
submission made by Mr. Barns, because I found 
that to be incongruent and what the Monitor 
was saying.  
And I also want to state, or it's my 
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submission that Mr. Barns's submission should 
be given less weight than the other of the 
economic players.  Particularly, the effected 
creditors.  
Mr. Barns acts for directors who sit from a 
position of comfort in regard of having a 
directors charge, and they don't, in my view, 
have any necessary skin in the game as to NNI 
and the other creditors.
So his submissions, I would submit, although 
eloquent and good, be given less weight in no 
weight with respect to this issue.  
What I note as interesting is that Mr. Rochon 
made no reference to H2.  He focussed on the 
economics of the agreement.
Mr. Zigler did make the comments with respect 
to H2.  It's a key provision, because if 
Parliament changes the law, they want to make 
sure no rights have been released.  
Opposite of what, minimizing risk and 
maximizing certainty for our client group.  
Went on to say H2 was bargained for, in the 
event there is a change in law.  
They tried to make the argument that there is 
no certainty in life, and Your Honour is 
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approving settlement agreements or purchase 
and sale agreements that have an element of 
risk, and I distinguish that this is a 
settlement agreement and is meant to bring 
finality to disputes and bring certainty to 
the parties.  It's not an agreement negotiated 
and incorporating remedies and resources.  
I don't think this is an issue, but I will 
clarify it so that I have satisfied myself.  
Mr. Zigler took the position that this letter 
from Mr. Ray should not be accepted by the 
court and that there was a contrived way we 
put it before Your Honour, and I think, one, 
my understanding of evidence 101, the evidence 
attached was a copy to a member of my firm and 
addressed to the Monitor and to the company --  
the company itself -- as proper evidence 
before the court, and even if not presented in 
the proper form, it's a letter from the 
principal officer of Nortel approved by the 
U.S. Bankruptcy Court.  
Essentially, Mr. MacDonald's equivalent with 
respect to being wind-up with the U.S. estate.  
So, if Your Honour has concerns with that 
letter, I think on the basis --
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MR. TAY:  The letter has not been approved by 
the U.S. Court.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  Sorry, the -- 
THE COURT:  Let's move on.  I am aware of the 
letter, and I will consider the letter.  I 
have heard on that subject and from others.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  Next is with respect to -- we 
have dealt with certainty, and we will deal 
with risk.  Who bears the risk of H2?  
NNI is the largest secure creditor.  It's one 
of the most significant of the Canadian 
debtors.  And it's claims arise by certain pre 
filing amounts, post filing amounts. 
On account of the recent approval of the 
Canadian funding agreement, it now has a 
confirmed 2 billion U.S. dollars unsecured 
claim against NNL.  
In accordance with the CFA, it also has 6.27 
unsecured claims with respect to the remaining 
amounts owing.  So, a claim of $62.7 million, 
and also advanced 75 U.S. million to NNI, 
through the NNI loan agreement at the outset 
of the case. 
Moreover, NNI has acted as a dip financier 
from the outset.  One, it paid under the 
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interm fund and settlement agreement, U.S. 57 
million in funds from the period January 
through to September 13, 2009, and it's 
recently paid another 190.8 million, subject 
to certain adjustments for the period October 
1, 2009 to the end of the case.  
And, in fact, as confirmed in the affidavit of 
Mr. Tertigas, financial advisor to 
stakeholders, part of the money is being used 
to fund the settlement from NNI.  
The sale of the business is a growing concern, 
and by the end of second quarter, Nortel will 
probably not be in existence, and there will 
be two other companies set up to help 
transition agreements to purchaser, and with 
respect to other matters relating to assets, 
and that is set out in detail in the 39th 
report.  
We have also just for your assistance, Your 
Honour, set out in our factum, paragraphs 23 
to 24, the summary of the sales that have 
occurred to date.  
Those are the business lines.  Paragraph 24 of 
the factum states there is approximately $2 
billion of proceeds. 
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I think we expect upwards to be shared by 3 
principle estates, the U.S., Canadian, the 
EMEA estate, and we have now, essentially, by 
March -- this month -- all the principle 
business lines will have been sold off.  
What remains are some assets.  The IP assets 
and the cash proceeds, which will be 
distributed amongst the various estates.  
Against those proceeds, the Monitor has 
reported there is U.S. 27.9 billion dollars of 
claims, and those do not include claims by 
directors and officers, or employees. 
And that is summarized in paragraph 25 of the 
factum.  
What this means, at this stage, is that there 
is no continuing Nortel.  The business and 
assets have been sold, and the cash proceeds, 
which one claim, one claim is the potential 
claim of 1.1 billion of a pension deficit, 
which in a nonbankruptcy situation, will be 
treated on a basis of the general unsecured 
creditors.  
That means that if the take back provision 
were to be implemented in the event of change 
in law, and the sole bearer of the risk of 
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that clause are the creditor, the non employed 
holding 27.9 against the global proceeds up 
toward the 3 million of which NNI and the 
bonds happen to be $2 of the larger creditors 
groups.  
It's our submission, as Nortel moves along 
this restructures, the views of it's 
creditors, the economic stakeholders of this 
should be given more weight and relevance, and 
it's our submission with respect to this 
settlement agreement, two of the largest 
stakeholders, and I can only speak for NNI, 
Mr. Swan will speak to them, and the funder of 
this settlement. 
It's view should be taken into consideration 
and be given significant weight.  
Now, Mr. Zigler made the comments yesterday.  
We are not here to renegotiate the deal.  
Fine.  
The problem with that is that the committee on 
behalf of NNI was negotiating a deal up until 
the time the agreement would go forward 
without H2 in.  It's easy when the parties 
objecting are not at the table, but that is 
unfair.  Two to two principle stakeholders and 
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it's unfair to NNI, its committee and to the 
bondholders.  
Settlement agreement is not entered into with 
the intention to -- it's intention to bring 
finality.  
As a settlement agreement, it's meant to bring 
certainty and eliminate risk as stated by the 
responding employee stakeholders.  That is all 
we ask for.  We want the same things out of 
the agreement.  
Regrettably, from the UCC perspective, the 
stakeholders, requested negotiated optionally 
through H2.  
Optionally to actually pursue a change in the 
law and preserve the right to argue that the 
responding release and waivers that they 
provided under, relating only to the priority 
claims, not to giving up any claims, in 
respect of the HWT and pension claims will no 
longer and apply, and, in my view, that is not 
fair.  
Now, Mr. Swan was kind enough to provide Your 
Honour with a case.  The data case, and I will 
let him speak to it.  It's the Data General 
Case, and it provides a good definition of the 
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dictionary meaning of settlement, and it's a 
decision of the Ontario Court of Appeal.  And 
I will just read what I have taken out of the 
case, but basically, the Associate Chief 
Justice states, and it's part of their written 
authority, and I am sure Mr. Swan will bring 
it up.  He states:  

"As for the dictionary meaning of 
settle, the word means to bring a 
dispute to an end by an arrangement of 
the parties, as opposed to a judgment 
of the court."  

And I would say, i.e, to bring finality to the 
dispute.  
Your Honour, the next is just to review the 
test to be applied by Your Honour.  
THE COURT:  46 in your factum?  
MR. MACFARLANE:  That's correct.  
THE COURT:  Again, in this area, I assume that 
with the exception with the points related to 
H2 that you will see no need to repeat what 
has been provided by counsel before.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  I will not.  Just a couple of 
different perspectives, Your Honour, with 
respect to the test.  
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The test is set out in paragraph 46 of the 
factum, and further on in paragraph 50.  We 
refer you to what we think Your Honour should 
examine when conducting the analysis.  The 
four points, A through D.  
We see the test should be the more expansive 
test.  The test of:  Is this settlement 
agreement fair, reasonable and beneficial to 
the creditors as a whole, taking into 
consideration the views of the objecting 
creditors?  
And I will refer, Your Honour, I know you have 
knowledge of the cases, but I refer you to the 
Calpine case, paragraph 62, 75 and 82.  I also 
refer to you the decision of Justice Farley, 
as in Air Canada, found at tab 7 of the 
Monitor's brief of authorities.  He sets out 
the test, and I refer to paragraph 10, where 
he conducted a detail analysis between the 
parties, Air Canada, and his conclusion in 
paragraph 15.  
It's my submission that that particular form 
of test has been applied in complex settlement 
negotiated in respect of CCAA cases, where the 
terms are contentious, and there were serious 
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objections by significant stakeholders.  
It's our submission that that test should be 
applied in respect of analyzing the settlement 
agreement in its entirety and inclusive of H2.  
If Your Honour can determine if it's fair and 
reasonable and taking into consideration the 
objections of the creditors in respect of H2.  
Now, a variant of this test has been applied 
by Your Honour in two cases I am aware of.  
One is in this case, and the other is in the 
Grace case.  
It's my submission, the test applied in the 
Grace case and Nortel case, essentially, the 
fair and reasonable test is limited upon the 
facts of those particular cases.  
In the Grace case, as I understand it from 
reading the case, and if I am wrong Mr. Tay 
will correct me, or Your Honour will, but as I 
understand the Grace case, and I am dealing 
with Grace one, that it was really a limited 
objection by a third party release.  Dealing 
with the terms of an order, it's not an 
objection to the entire or provisions or an 
objection by a major stakeholder.  In that 
case, it was appropriate to apply a less 
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onerous test.  
Again, in respect of the case found at tab 1, 
when the approval of the Canadian funding 
agreement was approved by Your Honour, earlier 
this year, the test of fair and reasonable was 
applied, and, again, in that case, there was 
no opposition except for a creditor that had a 
contingent claim, and Your Honour did a 
detailed analysis of the settlement agreement, 
and, in my view, the more limited test was 
applicable to that case, because of the 
limited form of the -- well, the objection 
didn't really stand the test based upon which 
was at stake, and the fact that almost every 
party had agreed to the terms of the 
settlement agreement and had been involved in 
the extensive negotiations, and including the 
committee, NNI, NNL, the Monitor, and in this 
case Your Honour applied the less and onerous 
test, but in the facts of this case, the wider 
test should be applied, and by the positions 
of the stakeholders as a whole.  
Just quickly, the Monitor in paragraph 77 
applies a hybrid test.  
It's my respectful view, Your Honour, that 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

295

that test is not applicable to this case.  
It's somewhat different, but I don't think 
it's been applied to Your Honour or any other 
court, and I would take you back to the 
Calpine decision, and the Air Canada decision.  
In the Calpine decision, Your Honour 
considered when you approved the Canadian 
funding agreement.  
Your Honour, in this case, when Your Honour 
looked at the settlement agreement, including 
H2, and conducts the analysis, we asked Your 
Honour to undertake it's your view the 
settlement agreement does not provide a full 
and final release of the agreement settled 
and, on the contrary, leaves open all issues 
relating to one quantification of the claims, 
which is fine, as long as the settlement goes 
ahead, and, three, through the preservation of 
H2 and preserves the right to assert priority 
for the treatment of H2, HWT claims, and 
pension claims, in the event of a change in 
the law.  
And it also goes through the take back 
provision provides the right of the 
stakeholders to take back their releases, and 
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those -- that analysis is provided as part of 
paragraph 52, 53, through 54 of our factum.  
Based on the record that is before Your 
Honour, neither the Monitor nor Nortel has 
provided this court or non stakeholders to 
make a determination, including H2 is fair and 
beneficial to them.  
There is analysis on the sections but not with 
respect to H2.  There is a statement in the 
39th report, and there is a statement in the 
affidavit evidence.  There is no analysis.  
There is no evidence that has been preferred 
to give any analysis of how that clause 
effects the economic interest of the 
stakeholders.  
And again, to cut time off here, I will take 
Your Honour to paragraph 59 of our factum 
where we summarize at the top:  

"Neither the Monitor nor Nortel 
have provided with the inclusion of 
the take back provision ... " 

Points A through F.  Three more points.  
In the affidavit evidence put before the court 
by the Canadian debtors, there is a simple 
conclusion.  The settlement represents a fair 
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and reasonable conclusion for the benefits to 
a large group of individuals, who for the most 
part do not have any other source of income 
ready to replace the benefits that they would 
have received from the applicant and exclusion 
of H2.  That is a fair and accurate statement, 
and that is what the goal of the settlement 
is.  Minimization of risk.  
The Monitor in its report at paragraph 43 
states that the settlement agreement 
represents a fair and reasonable conclusion 
among the set and parties and counsel to the 
committee and bondholders.  Yes, excluding H2.  
Again, in paragraph 109, the Monitor states:

The Monitor believes that, 
overall, the Settlement Agreement and 
Settlement Approval Order represents a 
fair balancing of the interests of the 
Applicants' stakeholders."  

Again, although the statements stress that 
there is a fair balancing, the statements and 
the record before Your Honour do not provide 
Your Honour with the proper evidence basis to 
conduct the analysis that is necessary in 
accordance with the test that are annunciated 
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by Justice Romaine in Calpine, and Farley in 
Air Canada to reach the conclusion that the 
settlement agreement, as a whole, including 
H2, is fair, reasonable and beneficial as a 
whole taking into account the views of the 
objecting creditors.  
The specter of H2 -- the HWT and pension 
claims, especially on account of the $1.1 
billion.  It unfairly prejudices all Nortel 
employees.  
Your Honour, I will just refer you to a last 
part of the factum and having read paragraph 
63 and 64.  64, in particular, our view of the 
take back provision.  It's the committee's 
view that it would terminate potential for 
litigation.

"While the total amount of claims 
would not be known, other creditors 
would be insured there was no..."

Except to the extent they have a payment of 
which $12 million was budgeted.  
Our request is that you decline to approve the 
settlement agreement in its current form on 
account of the unacceptability of H2 to the 
descending creditors, unnecessary risk and 
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prejudice, and that Your Honour take up 
Mr. Zarnett on its practical resolution and 
allow the parties to report before Your Honour 
on a short timetable.  Those are my 
submissions.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  Mr. Swan, we will 
start with you after lunch.  I do want to get 
this matter completed today.  
So, our lunch facilities is right down stairs, 
and I can not say they are that good.  We will 
start as close to two as possible.  If counsel 
are not back, we will wait.  
-- Lunch adjournment.
-- Upon resuming.
THE COURT REGISTRAR:  Court has resumed.
THE COURT:  Okay.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  I just have one last -- 
THE COURT:  There is more?  You did not 
reserve your rights.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  I forgot to mention this, and 
it's quite important.  It's the affidavit of 
Gus Tertigas.  I would encourage Your Honour 
to read Gus Tertigas's affidavit.  It's at tab 
3 of the Respondent's motion record.  He is 
the financial advisor.  He provides a 
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comprehensive, detailed, and balanced view of 
the settlement agreement, and in the 17 
paragraphs in his affidavit, without exhibits, 
there is no mention of the importance -- the 
necessity, the criticalness of H2.  It's a 
balanced view of the economics, and there is 
no reference of the necessity of H2 being part 
of that.  Those are my submissions.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  Mr. Swan? 
MR. SWAN:  I will be referring to my factum, 
and I will also hand it up now.  I have given 
it to other counsel.  A copy of Your Honour's 
hardship order made 30th of July, 2009.  
Your Honour, as you know, I act for the 
informal Nortel Noteholder Group, and let me 
begin by making four preliminary observations.  
The first is, there is little real 
disagreement, and certainly -- I will wait.  
So, I will begin by making four preliminary 
observations, and the first is this:  There is 
little real disagreement and certainly no 
disagreement that all of the potential claims 
addressed in the settlement agreement are 
ordinary, unsecured claims.  
The second is this:  That absent the proposed 
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settlement agreement, and given the initial 
order made in this case, the company has and 
had no continuing legal obligation to make all 
or almost all payments in issue.  
Your order, of course, provides that the 
company is entitled to but has no obligation 
to make the payments.  
The third is this:  The effect of the proposed 
settlement agreement is to elevate the claims, 
those that are to be paid over the course of 
the year 2010 into preference claims to the 
extent of approximately 57 million dollars, 
with near term distribution over the next 10 
months.  
The fourth observation is this:  That it is 
important to note that the claims of the 
employees beyond this approximate $57 million 
amount, those claims are not released at all.  
They remain as they were before.  Ordinary, 
unsecured claims.  
The Noteholders are not opposed to a 
settlement in principle of these matters, 
provided that the settlement agreement, and 
the order implementing it definitively 
resolves the matters addressed in that 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

302

settlement agreement, and it's in that respect 
that the Noteholders submit that the proposed 
settlement fall short in one important 
respect, and that relates to clause H2, and 
paragraph 19 of the proposed order, which 
would implement clause H2.
I have two ancillary concerns that I will take 
up a bit litter, but dealing first with the 
issue of H2.  
There are really two fundamental touchstones 
of any settlement.  The first is that there be 
an element of real compromise on the part of 
both or various sides.  
The second element is that the settlement 
brings about a resolution of the matters in 
issue -- to use Justice Romaine's words.  Or 
in other words, brings about a definitive 
conclusion to the dispute over those subject 
issues, and everyone who has stood before you 
over the last three days has referred to 
certainty.  
The objective is indeed to bring about 
certainty in terms of resolution of the 
issues, and you need not turn it up, but at 
paragraph 17 of my factum, I have summarized 
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some of the evidence of various employee 
representatives, and the thrust of the 
evidence is that the agreement is favorable 
for the employees, because it provides 
certainty for them.  And it does.  
It locks in their floor, but it does not lock 
in their ceiling, because of the inclusion of 
H2.  
H2 preserves the possibility of a much higher 
ceiling and in converse and responding, H2 
therefore does not lock in the floor for the 
other unsecured creditors.  
Indeed, if the BIA were amended, it is likely 
that the floor for the other unsecured would 
be different.  
So, from that perspective, the proposed 
settlement fails to provide certainty for the 
other unsecured creditors.  
A release of the preference or priority claims 
is given under the settlement, but it is 
potentially taken away.  
Mr. Tay noted that in the circumstances of 
this case, the employees will have received 
approximately two years of benefits in a 
liquidating CCAA proceeding.  
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Now, there is no question that that is far 
less than they may have expected before a 
bankruptcy was on the horizon.  
However, that is, as he noted, essentially 
unprecedented in a liquidating CCAA 
proceeding, to a continuing benefit for that 
period of time.  
I think it's also important to note that what 
is being released, the preference or priority 
claims are by the employees own admission, 
claims with a limited chance of success.  
And that's paragraph 22 of my written 
submissions.  I noted what was said at Exhibit 
A of Laura Johnson's affidavit, which 
provides, we have not really given up anything 
except for the possibilities of locking up 
this matter in litigation.  
And if the releases -- the release of the 
priority or preference claims are overridden 
by a future amendment to the BIA, and those 
preference claims are revived or potentially 
revived, then the other unsecured creditors 
have lost all of the consideration that they 
were to have received under this agreement.  
It is also important to note that both the 
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applicant and the Monitor have said that they 
support the proposed settlement with or 
without H2.  
They have both said, and I think this is 
particularly significant in respect of the 
Monitor -- who is an independent court 
appointed officer -- they have both said they 
support the settlement agreement, even if H2 
is not included.  
So, in summary, regarding this clause, the 
Notelholders have two fundamental problems 
with clause H2 in paragraph 19 of the order.  
First, it leaves open the possibility that the 
entire consideration obtained by the non 
employees under the settlement could be lost.  
And the second concern, and this concern goes 
beyond its impact of unsecured creditors, but 
to the proceeding as a whole.  The second 
concern is that the inclusion of that cause 
leaves open the prospect of future litigation 
over the claims that are supposedly settled by 
this settlement agreement.  
If there were an amendment to the BIA, which 
as we know, some of the employee groups are 
active for, if there were such an amendment, 
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we may well have complex litigation that would 
examine not only the impact of that statutory 
or those statutory provisions, but examine the 
impact of that with the overlay of the 
importance of this settlement agreement.  What 
does H2 mean, measured against some future 
amendment to the BIA? 
What of the releases in that event, because H2 
is arguably a bit ambiguous in terms of just 
what it is that is preserved.  
But, quite apart from that, there is no doubt 
that if there were such an amendment to the 
BIA, there would be extensive litigation in 
this court over the interplay between H2 and 
those amendments.  How it effected other 
creditors.  How it effected the releases, and 
how it effected the releasees.  And we would 
all be back before you again, and it would go 
up another level and potentially for another 
level at some point down the road, and it 
would threaten to bog down this process and 
hold up the closure of this entire estate.  
That outcome is avoided by providing 
certainty.  
That the settlement definitively resolves the 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

307

issues, in the event that H2 were not part of 
that.  
So I ask you on behalf of the Notelholders, 
that any approval of this proposed settlement 
be conditional upon clause H2 and paragraph 19 
of the order being removed.  
And how might you do that practically?  I 
think the answer has been suggested, that in 
an endorsement you could indicate that 
Your Honour was prepared to approve the 
settlement if H2 were not part of the 
settlement.  
Leave the party as period of time to come back 
to you, and we would then know the outcome.  
Let me turn to the second issue that is raised 
in my written submission, and that is a 
concern about paragraph 7(2) of the order 
itself.  
And I would ask Your Honour to turn up 
schedule 2 to my factum.  
THE COURT:  All right.  
MR. SWAN:  Schedule 2, paragraph 7, provides 
that the releases on behalf of the 
Superintendent or administrator in paragraphs 
4, 5, 6 shall only apply if no bankruptcy 
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order is made with respect to Nortel on or 
before September 30, 2010.  
And the releases are releases of a preference 
or priority status claim in relation to the 
pension claim in this proceeding or in any 
subsequent proceeding, but those would 
disappear.  Those four paragraphs of the 
releases, if the bankruptcy order were made 
before September 30.  
The applicants and do not wish to seek an 
order before that time.  However, 7(2) in 
current form creates an incentive for another 
person, perhaps a disaffected person, wanting 
to upset the apple cart as it were from 
seeking a bankruptcy order before that day.  
The court has a discretion to refuse a 
bankruptcy order, but there is no certainty 
that that would be done.  
And the risk of such a bankruptcy order after 
most of the settlement payments have been made 
is not a reasonable outcome.  
So, on behalf of the Notelholders, I ask that 
either paragraph 7(2) be deleted from the 
order, or I seek a direction that as a 
condition of the approval of the settlement, 
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that the court direct that no bankruptcy order 
be made before September 30, 2010.  
In the least, I would ask that Your Honour in 
your endorsement indicate the particular 
undesired order before that date.  
THE COURT:  I don't suppose you could point to 
precedent where any type of binding order 
appears that would -- I am questioning whether 
the jurisdiction is there to make such an 
order?  
MR. SWAN:  That is why I propose in the first 
instance that the settlement agreement be 
approved, subject to that condition, that 
there be no bankruptcy order prior to that 
date, which I think you do have jurisdiction 
to make.  
The third issue that the Notelholders wish to 
draw to the court's attention is the crediting 
of payments made pursuant to the settlement 
order in the event that it is approved and the 
settlement agreement and order are almost 
silent on the question of the credit of 
payments.  
We noted only one reference, and that appears 
in Schedule 3 to my written submissions, 
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paragraph "B" 3 of the settlement agreement, 
and it relates only to the $4.3 million 
termination fund.  
In the highlighted language, any payments made 
shall be credited against allowed claims.  
Not as against distributions, but against 
allowed claim, and aside from that reference, 
the agreement and order appear to be silent on 
the subject of crediting.  
The Notelholders submit that these are actual 
payments that will be made, and they should be 
treated as distributions and credited as such.  
In the hardship order that Your Honour made 
last July, that I handed up a moment ago, Your 
Honour will see in the notice that is attached 
under the fifth paragraph.  Turn through the 
order to notice, the second page of the 
notice, paragraph 5:  

Miscellaneous, hardship payments 
are advances against distributions on, 
are advances on claims.

According to the Monitor's most recent report 
in the order of $100 million will have been 
made in payments from the commencement of the 
CCAA proceeding to December 31, 2010.  
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Those are preferences on claims, and they 
should be treated as distribution and your 
order, it is submitted, should provide that 
all such payments be credited against ultimate 
distributions.  
If Your Honour does not accept that argument, 
I would at least ask that that matter be left 
open for future argument and not foreclose.
THE COURT:  How would it be left open for 
further argument?  Is it not part of the 
settlement agreement now?  
MR. SWAN:  It's silent.  
MR. ZIGLER:  There is no agreement if these 
are. 
THE COURT:  My understanding is it's a 
definite term of the agreement that the 
payments -- it does not have that credit 
language of payments.  
MR. SWAN:  It's silent on that.  
MR. TAY:  It was never contemplated, and for 
the 4.3 it be credited.  That was the deal.  
THE COURT:  Okay.  So, from your standpoint 
the deal is as set out in paragraph 3 of the 
draft?  
MR. TAY:  Yes.  Paragraph 3 of the agreement. 
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THE COURT:  Of Mr. Swan's material?  
MR. SWAN:  But that is restricted.  The other 
is left silent.  So, subject to any questions, 
Your Honour, those were my submissions.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  Yes.  
UNIDENTIFIED LAWYER:  Yes.  Your Honour, I 
represent the Superintendent in its capacity 
of the administrator of the guarantee fund.  I 
wasn't going to say anything, but in light of 
Mr. Swan's submission, I wanted to point out 
that the Superintendent is not opposing the 
relief that is sought here today, and we don't 
have any submissions to make on the various 
issues one way or the other that have been 
consuming the court's time, but I would point 
out with respect to Mr. Swan's issue he raised 
on 7.2, the Superintendent is supporting this 
order or not opposing the relief sought on the 
basis of the order as presented.  
In the comfort level at tab b of the Monitor's 
39th report, you don't have to go to it.  You 
have to dig a bit, but referred to this order. 
THE COURT:  So there is no opposition from the 
Superintendent provided the order goes as it 
is?  
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UNIDENTIFIED LAWYER:  As long as it is.  If 
there were a change, that comfort level 
obviously, well, it speaks for itself.  It 
would not be binding.  
So, I think it's important to appreciate the 
positions of the parties.  If the deal 
changes, that is a matter for negotiations, 
and I don't know what my client's position 
would be. 
THE COURT:  Your position is that if this deal 
is approved, it has to be approved as is, with 
no exception, and we will leave it at that.  I 
understand.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  If I could ask him to 
clarify.  Does that apply with respect to H2 
with respect to the order? 
UNIDENTIFIED LAWYER:  Again, as I said, I 
think I was clear.  I have instructions to 
approve "this" order.  
THE COURT:  I will give my take to have 
guidance.  In the hypothetical world, if the 
settlement is approved, and I don't like H2, 
the settlement will not be approved, and then 
you are into other combinations and that is 
how I take it.  Okay.  
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The Superintendent'S position of no opposition 
is on approving the deal and order as 
submitted.  
Ms. Huff?  
MS. HUFF:  Your Honour, it was somewhat 
unclear when I should speak in the order. 
THE COURT:  Sometime between now and 4:30.  
MS. HUFF:  My objective is sooner rather than 
later.  I represent the Northern Trust company 
Canada, that took over in December 2005.  
Northern Trust was also appointed trustee of 
the two pension plans in December 2005, as 
well, and in its capacity of the trustee of 
HWT and the pension plans, Northern Trust 
takes instruction and has as mentioned in 
earlier submissions from Nortel in all of 
those capacities, Northern Trust was not 
involved in the negotiations of settlement 
agreement.  It received a copy of the 
agreement when it was publically disclosed and 
takes no position on the approval of it.  It 
would not be its role to do so.  
The parties represented had beneficiaries by 
representative counsel, and Nortel was at the 
table, and the trustee would have no role in 
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that, and takes no position on the approval of 
the settlement agreement.  However, you have 
in the submissions earlier and on this 
hearing, particularly from Mr. Zigler, you 
have been taken through the terms of Northern 
Trust's agreement with respect to the HWT.  
Mr. Zigler has indicated that in negotiations 
it assesses the cause of action against 
Northern Trust as trustee of HWT and 
determined risk and problematic.  
So to the extent it is not obvious, Your 
Honour, I will make the statement that Nortel 
Trust disputes any alleged breach of duty or 
any alleged liability for unfunded benefits, 
and if any such cause of action brought 
against it, I would rely on its indemnities 
from Nortel.  
My comments today were intended to be directed 
to the form of order, if granted.  The form of 
draft order is directed to Northern Trust.  It 
directs it to do and not to do certain things, 
and we reviewed when circulated.  We noted 
drafting that we raised with counsel for 
Nortel and with the Monitor, and we sent a 
letter to the service list indicating the 
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small changes we proposed to the form of 
order.  
But we also noted that the release in the 
draft order included the trustee of the HWT, 
but not the trustees of the pension plans; 
although, Northern Trust of the trustee of 
both HWT has indemnities for Nortel.  
So, we raised what we assumed were drafting 
glitches, and they agreed it was inadvertent 
of the trustee of the pension plans from the 
release and Nortel and the Monitor have agreed 
to the changes we have proposed to order.  At 
the right stage, I understand they will take 
you through the draft order and the requested 
changes proposed by Northern Trust and agreed 
by Nortel and the Monitor.  
Mr. Tay said in opening submission that one of 
the objectives is certainty, and these 
releases were intended to cover the parties 
that had indemnities so that there was no back 
door litigation.  
So, while the releases were intended and do 
cover the trustee of HWT, members of pension 
committees and directors, it was apparent 
there was a gap.  That the release did not 
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include the trustee of the pension plans that 
also holds the indemnities. 
Mr. Zigler has advised that while the 
exclusion of this was not deliberate or 
intended, he cannot agree to the changes.  We 
propose the changes are reasonable to include 
the trustees of the pension plan, and counsel 
has an obligation in settling the form of 
order as contemplated by the settlement 
agreement.  
Your Honour, it doesn't appear to us that 
there is any substantive change to the deal as 
a result of the changes that we propose to the 
order.  
Again, my friends will take you through it at 
the time, and I add it's consistent with the 
material filed by representative counsel.  I 
will, if I can give you the cite, or if you 
wish to call it up.  In the responding motion 
record filed by Koskie Minsky, there is an 
affidavit of Susan Kennedy, Exhibit G to that 
affidavit summarizes the various rights of the 
employees that were examined by representative 
counsel.  
You will see down, second from the bottom, on 
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the third page.  Counsel considered the right 
to sue the trustees of the pension plan and 
determined that if the agreement was rejected 
it would be available.  If the agreement is 
court approved, they understand the claim is 
not available, and not a viable claim.
And so, Your Honour, it is the submission of 
Northern Trust that the expressed inclusion of 
Northern Trust as a trustee of the pension 
plan in the release, in the draft order, is a 
reasonable request and not a substantive 
change.  Rather clarification.  
There is a paragraph of the order that 
prevents of a claim over Nortel, and it would 
appear that the trustees of the pension plan 
would fall under that as well, but the 
trustees of HWT are provided for in the 
release, and it's the submission that if this 
court were disposed to grant the order 
approving the settlement, that the trustees of 
the pension plan for certainty and clarity 
also be included in the paragraph of the order 
providing releases.  
So, Your Honour, I will leave it to my friends 
at that time, as you wish to review the terms 
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of the order with you, and the proposed 
changes.  Unless there are questions, those 
are my submissions.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  I believe that 
concludes, subject to reply.  Going once, 
twice.  Three times?  Okay.  Reply.  
MR. TAY:  Thank you, Your Honour.  If I could 
just start with replying to Mr. Rochon's 
submission.  
Let me start with things we agree with.  
Settlement is not a perfect solution.  The 
settlement will not give the LTDs what they 
had when Nortel was solvent.  Even if you 
bless the settlement, in light of the LTD, it 
will be harsh.  You've heard the stories.  We 
understand the pain, and we understand that is 
the reality these people live with, and we 
sympathize.  But the comparer here is not 
whether you should approve this settlement 
versus maintaining the benefits forever.  
As much as we all from a human level would 
like to be able to maintain benefits forever, 
we cannot do it.  
There are legal realities and practical 
realities that face us.  
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Now, Mr. Rochon has repeated numerous times, 
somewhat bold statements and statements which 
I have to put under the category of repeating 
something doesn't make it so.  He has said, 
there is no prejudice if you don't approve the 
settlement.  
He said settlement is not in keeping with the 
purpose of the CCAA.  He said, there is more 
than enough money to continue the benefits 
without the settlement agreement.  
He said the court can simply order that the 
benefits continue.  He said you don't need 
releases.  He said the releases are too broad.  
He said there are sound basis for litigation, 
that should not be waived, and he said you 
don't need to waive priority of the deficiency 
claims.  
What is common with respect to all of these 
statements is that there is no evidence 
supporting the truth of any of them.  
In fact, all the evidence points to the 
contrary.  As you yourself noted up front when 
you saw that the evidence has been presented 
by the company, the Monitor, representative 
counsel, representative counsel 's financial 



5

10

15

20

25

Nortel Hearing

321

advisors.  All speak of this in the same way.  
And I am not talking H2, but in terms of 
settlement.  It's clear where the facts are.  
Now, the affidavit of Ms. Urquart is not 
evidence.  It's opinion.  It's guess work, 
designed to support Mr. Rochon's argument, and 
I honestly have to question the utility or 
wisdom of putting out numbers about possible 
distributions and about possible fraud, 
possible claims without any factual basis, and 
the effect that that has on the people that 
have to live this, and whether or not it 
really helps or hurts that cause, and that is 
all I will say about that.  
As emotional and personal as these issues may 
be, as I have said, we are bound by legal 
constraints, and the practical realities that 
we find ourselves in.  
Now, Mr. Rochon spoke about, well, you are 
taking the rights of the LTD members.  
No, it's a settlement.  
But what he is suggesting to you, however, 
what he says, just order that the payments 
continue.  
Let's think about that.  What does that mean?  
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In order to do that, the court is being asked 
to grant unilateral priority to these payments 
at the expense of all the other unsecured 
creditors, including the employees themselves 
for severance and everything else.  
In other words, what he is asking you to do by 
saying keep continuing, he is asking you to 
take the rights of the other creditors, 
because it won't be as a result of 
negotiations.  It will not be as a result of 
give and take.  It will not be the result of 
quid pro quo.  It's a declaration of making 
these payments, but not respecting or seeing 
the reality that in order to do that, you have 
to take it from somebody else.  
That is what I mean by, we have legal 
realities that we have to live with.  
We also have practical realities that we have 
to live with, and that is why when you have 
heard in the affidavit, "Of course, you have 
lots of money to pay this.  You have $2.3 
billion in the Nortel estate."  It's ignoring 
or choosing not to see the practical 
realities.  If she has been following these 
proceedings that she says she has, we all know 
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that Canada has spent the last year and a 
little bit just trying to survive getting the 
funding.  
You know the travels we have had tried to get 
the other Nortel estate to pay their share so 
we have enough money to fund this.  
There is no question we have had to question 
dipping into the pot, and no question about 
the 800 million sitting in Nortel U.K.  
They are saying, my pensioners have a $4 
billion deficiency, and we want you -- Canada 
-- to pay for it, and that was the subject of 
a whole day motion in terms of support 
direction you heard.  
These are realities, and as much as we would 
like to help people, we are bound by law and 
we are bound by practical and commercial 
realities.  
This is why you saw the wisdom of appointing a 
rep counsel earlier on in the case, because 
the other reality, Your Honour, is that when 
you are dealing with 12,000 pensioners, and 
400 LTD, there is no way you can negotiate 
with every one of them.  There is no practical 
way of getting every one happy.  That is the 
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reality as well.  
It's not a process whereby every member needs 
to be satisfied.  That is impossible.  It's 
not a process whereby every member is entitled 
to see every piece of paper and come to a 
conclusion they are agreed with representative 
counsel.  
It's not part of the process, nor is it 
possible for every member to have full access 
to all books and records and documents of the 
company, and another practical reality, 
whether we like it or not, and that is why you 
have representative counsel, and that is why 
rep counsel has financial advisors, that is 
why rep counsel was given full access to the 
documents, the book and the records, and that 
it's why you charge with a duty and 
obligation.  
After looking at all that, and having all that 
support to come to reason, decisions, 
opinions, views, not based on speculation, not 
based on what we would like the world to be, 
but based on actual facts.  Based on fully 
analysis and full financial analysis.  That 
conclusion is clear.  
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This is a balance.  This is A fair settlement.  
It's not perfect.  It will not help to the 
extent that we would like to help everyone.  
It will not do that, but it's the best we can 
do in these circumstances.  
They have been clear that the alternative, if 
we don't do this deal, the results will be 
harsher, and the hardship greater.  
Now, we have heard from the 37 people, either 
through Mr. Rochon or individually, and, 
again, as I say, we all feel and sympathize.  
But let me ask you, what about the other 
12,000 pensioners not here?  What about the 
360 LTD's that are not here?  
Do we ignore their wishes, because they didn't 
show up and tell their hardship stories?  Do 
we ignore their wishes because they are 
counting on representative counsel to deliver 
a settlement agreement that helps them to buy 
the time and runway that will allow them the 
certainty knowing they will have benefits for 
the rest of the year and give them time to 
organize their life? 
How can that be fair? 
How can that be right?  
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Even if this was a CCAA plan, and you had a 
class of 400 people and 360 that vote in favor 
of the plan and 37 against the plan, how would 
the CCAA function? 
It would approve the plan, and the plan would 
be binding upon those who were not satisfied 
with it, because the nature of the process is 
that there will be people that will not be 
satisfied and for understandable reasons.  But 
that is the nature of the process, and that is 
another reality that we have to live with.  
Let me just touch in conclusion in dealing 
with Mr. Rochon's points.  His interpretation 
of the Grace case, in terms of who should be 
released, and basically he used it for the 
proposition that unless someone provides 
value, they should not be released.  And, 
again, Mr. Rochon was not involved in the case 
and may not appreciate some of what actually 
happened there, but you may recall, Your 
Honour, that in Grace, we argued before you.  
We were trying to get as part of the Canadian 
settlement, a release of sealed Canada.  And 
they did not contribute a single cent to the 
Canadian release.  
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It had participated in the U.S. release, but 
the reason we needed that released was because 
Sealed Air had an indemnity from Grace.  So, 
paragraph 36 of Grace one.  I will read it to 
you.  

"With respect to relief in favour 
of Sealed Air, Grace has agreed to 
indemnify Sealed Air Canada for 
certain liabilities in connection with 
ZAI."

The release of the claim includes the benefit 
of Sealed Air Canada, and he went on.  We, as 
counsel, submitted such release is not only 
necessary and essential, but also fair given 
they had contributed money in the U.S., but 
that was just another reason.  
That was not the sole reason for why they get 
the release.  
Our submission was that the principle reason 
for giving them the release was because Grace 
had indemnification, and if you don't give the 
release, you allow the claim to come back 
through the back door.  
Then if you go on, you talk about the minutes 
and claims for against Grace are release.
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"Counsel submits that such a 
release of the Crown is necessary."

But then in paragraph 49, counsel to Grace 
submits that such release of the Crown is 
necessary, otherwise Grace could be 
compellable.  
So that comes back again and again and again, 
and that goes to Ms. Huff's client.  It was an 
inadvertent but necessary to clean all this 
up, that we include them in the release, 
otherwise they will just rely on the 
indemnities, and this would come back to the 
company.  
It's not only about the bother and time of 
litigation, but it's about double dipping.  
You make a claim and sue someone else, and 
they seek, and now you have two sources for 
the same debt, and that is the objection part 
as to why you want to close them off.  That is 
all I will say about the releases there, and 
that is all I need to say about Mr. Rochon's 
submission.  
Let me come to the bondholder, and let me deal 
with it in reverse order that Mr. Swan raised.  
On his third point, it's simple.  That is the 
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deal, that is part of the economics of the 
deal, that the 4.3 million is on account of 
the claims that were negotiated.  They asked 
for it to be part of the distribution, and
Mr. Zigler held his ground, and we ended up, 
no, it would be counted against the claim.  No 
contribution or accounting for the other 
benefits given.  
So, that is three.  It's just part of the 
deal.  That is the third.  
On the second argument that Mr. Swan made, and 
this is about the bankruptcy before September 
30, don't get me wrong, I am all for -- as I 
said from the start -- certainty, so that 
people get what they bargain for in this deal, 
and I will suggest to you an approach that 
will deal with certainty both in this issue 
and with the H2 issue.  Because there is a 
danger, Your Honour, when lawyers start to 
take positions and taking legal analysis.
We fall in love with our own arguments and 
lose sight of the practical.  The reality.  
What is important, and it's more than 
important.  What is critical is that we need 
to get the financial blessing.  
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I am indifferent as to whether H2 is or is not 
there.  You heard how you can get to the point 
where you can put people to the test and say, 
I am willing to bless this other than H2, and 
if you want to go that route, I am content.  
If you are inclined to take the approach of, I 
can only bless this or not, so I will bless 
this because the deal is too important, then I 
have a suggestion for you.  
The attack or potential attack can come in 
only one of two ways.  The first is that 
someone comes along and tries to vary the 
order down the road.  It may not be 
Mr. Rochon, because he know the context of 
this now, but someone like Mr. Rochon that 
comes late in the day be told by someone to 
look at the order and says, "This looks weird.  
Let's get it changed and varied."  And I would 
suggest to Your Honour, it would be important 
that either as part of your endorsement or 
reasons, that you state that this order should 
not be varied without taking into account the 
interest of the parties who have bargained for 
and continue to rely on the terms of this 
order.  
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You had difficulty from a legal perspective 
with Mr. Swan's suggestion, and I understand 
that in terms of, you cannot say -- you cannot 
issue a bankruptcy order, or you cannot bind 
the hands of court in the future.  
But I think it's perfectly within your ability 
to state the importance of this order and how 
people are relying on this, and how this order 
should not be varied or changed without taking 
into serious account the interest of the 
parties that have bargained for and continue 
to rely on the terms of the order.  
So, someone coming down the road and trying to 
vary, and it turns out you are not around, and 
there is another judge listening, and I am not 
around, it gives context of the importance.  
The second potential avenue of uncertainty is 
bankruptcy.  
Bankruptcy will effect this in one of two ways 
if it happens before September 30.  It will do 
serious damage to this deal.  No question 
about that.  Nobody wants that.  Nobody is 
expecting that.  
But there is only two ways bankruptcy can 
happen.  
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I can make a voluntary assignment, and I am 
willing to commit right now and to have the 
court order it, if it be necessary that we 
will not make an assignment in bankruptcy 
without first seeking the position of this 
CCAA court.  And that puts it into the second 
way that people can try to bring bankruptcy 
proceedings.  They have to lift the stay.  
Right now, nobody can do anything until you 
decide to lift the stay.  
I have subjected myself to the same condition 
in what I suggest would be highly important if 
your reasons or endorsement would again say 
that the stay should not be lifted to allow a 
filing of the bankruptcy or application of 
bankruptcy order.  
Again, I would say, without taking into 
account the interest of the parties that 
bargain for and continue to rely on the terms 
of this order, and borrowing some 
circumstances, I can not even imagine.  There 
is no judge in the world, in this court at 
least, that would look at that and not take it 
seriously, and it would set the stage for 
someone to say, "No, should not be lifted 
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because here are the consequences of what 
would happen."  
I make no distinction in those submissions 
between a bankruptcy order filed before 
September 30 or after September 30, because 
all of these evils that we have been killing a 
lot of trees and brain cells on about changes, 
etcetera, what ever may happen to the BIA does 
not touch the case, unless we go into 
bankruptcy.  
H2 has no effect unless we -- either we are 
put into formal bankruptcy proceedings under 
the BIA.  
And so my suggestion is, if you are intending 
to go down the route of just blessing as is, 
have a safe guard of making this court the 
gate keeper so that before anyone can put -- 
before anyone can put this company into 
bankruptcy, the fight first has to be about 
whether or not it's appropriate for the stay 
to be lifted and that avoided all the huge 
litigation that Mr. Swan is talking about 
where it's in bankruptcy and now we fight 
about whether H2 applies or not.  
You at least have an initial step, a hurdle 
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before it comes to play and in all likelihood, 
Your Honour, there will not be a change in the 
Bankruptcy Act that will be retro active or 
that will undo the world as we know it in a 
significant way, and, hopefully, we will not 
have to have this argument again, but other 
than jeopardize a deal that we need now about 
something that may or may never happen.  
I suggest if you put these safe guards in 
there, that would at least now allow all of us 
to derive comfort from the fact that nobody 
can interfere unknowingly, unthinking and 
without due consideration to the huge reliance 
that we are all putting on what this order 
says. 
I have nothing to add.  
THE COURT:  Anybody else? 
MR. MACFARLANE:  With respect to Mr. Tay's 
last proposal, I am not sure with respect to 
H2 if that works.  You still have the 
provision and order, which is offensive and as 
Mr. Swan said, you have the other layer of 
litigation of people trying to interpret the 
agreement, and then with your endorsement.
So, my respectful submission is that it's 
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either in or out with respect to H2.  
THE COURT:  I think that submission was 
already made.  
MR. SWAN:  I wanted to clarify.  The 
submission I made with respect to credit of 
payment is not restricted to the termination 
fund.  It's at larger issue.  
I think Mr. Tay's response that it's in the 
deal was with respect to the termination of 
the fund, but there is nothing else in the 
deal on crediting one way or the other.
So, in that respect, that is not part of the 
deal.  
MR. TAY:  My understanding of the deal is that 
the other payments are just payments. 
THE COURT:  The 4.3, my understanding of the 
proposed settlement is the 4.3 is credited 
against the allowed claims, and everything is 
else is not.  It's just a payment.  
MR. SWAN:  Therefore it's an open question. 
MR. ZIGLER:  It's no difficult from any 
pension payment ever made.  
THE COURT:  Or the payments made in the past 
year.  That is how I am taking it.  
MR. ZIGLER:  He can argue otherwise, I will 
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tell you it's no deal.  
THE COURT:  I take it from paragraph 4, or 
paragraph 9.4(c) of the factum.  I think that 
is where you listed out the four things, as I 
made a note, and take it from there, but my 
understanding of the proposal is that with the 
exception of 4.3 they be treated like all 
payments that have been made since January 10.  
January 14, how could I forget the date?  
January 14, '09, but I have your point.  
MR. SWAN:  You do, and we may wish to make a 
submission to you on whether, and how that be 
credited, and I think I will have to say as 
well, and I support what Mr. MacFarlane said 
on the gatekeeper step.  I don't think that 
adds anything in terms of what H2 does.  It's 
there, and it adds a further layer of 
uncertainty that there is another step.  Thank 
you.  
THE COURT:  If anyone else has anything to 
say, I have a point for Mr. Zigler to clarify, 
and that is the issue regarding the Northern 
Trust, and what Ms. Huff thinks is 
inadvertently, and what is the position of 
your group?  
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MR. ZIGLER:  If I find that to be an 
inadvertent omission, Mr. Zigler, it's open 
for you to find, and it's our position they 
are a third party of an agreement and the 
company among others, if I am not asked to 
give something in order to get the benefits of 
agreement after signed, inadvertent or 
advertent, I can not say I will give somebody 
something for nothing, and that is my client's 
position.  
If Your Honour wishes to release them, fine, 
but I can not agree to release somebody who, a 
third party where the release was not signed.  
My clients can't.  
UNIDENTIFIED LAWYER:  I must rise on that 
point.  He said a trustee, which is not the 
case.  If you look at the defined term of who 
is a third party beneficiary, the trustee of 
the pension plan does not fall within the 
definition of "release".  My view is that 
these are issues with the defined terms used, 
so I am not sure that Mr. Zigler's answer is 
the complete answer.  
MR. WADSWORTH:  I just had two brief comments, 
Your Honour.  The first had to do with the 
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submissions of Mr. Rochon, and he said he 
didn't disagree with the CAW exclusive 
bargaining rights, but didn't preclude the due 
process right to representation; that is, I 
have no idea based upon what, but certainly 
through these proceeding we have given notice.  
We have not yet formally objected to the 
representation of the members in these 
proceeding, but we will do so if necessary, 
and the last is simply, he asked you to look 
at the harm to his clients from the 
settlement, and the last thing we can say is, 
the effect of not having this agreement is 
going to be even more harmful to the vast 
majority of our members that are needed and 
who want the continuation of the benefits.  
Thank you.  
MR. ZIGLER:  I was answering the question 
earlier.  I do intend to reply.  I don't know 
the order.  
THE COURT:  I have no idea.  It's an unusual.  
The one thing I am hesitant to do is cut 
people off.  So, if you have something to say, 
I rather you say it than wait until after I 
put time into rendering a decision.  
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MR. ZIGLER:  I think in keeping to the 
practice of rely, I think maybe the Monitor 
would go last.  Is that the intention?  I 
don't want to upset the procedure.  
THE COURT:  Being a "Z", you usually go last.  
MR. ZIGLER:  All right.  And, Your Honour, 
with respect to the individuals who spoke and 
Mr. Rochon, and I think one of the affidavits 
was one of the witnesses that says she weeps 
every day. 
THE COURT:  One thing I note from yesterday, 
the reporter was having difficulty with the 
acoustics.  You tend to talk to the side. 
MR. ZIGLER:  I will speak right into the 
microphone.  
One said she weeps every day.  My clients are 
disabled, and they were weeping yesterday, and 
I think all of them were on some level, not 
just with respect to the disabled, and there 
are pensioners, and one can feel that way as 
well.  And Mr. Tay said, we all feel that way, 
and that is why this issue is broader than the 
court, and that is why the matter of lobbying 
at the political level, the court should be 
aware of, although the court cannot do 
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anything about it.  The one concern I have 
with -- 
MR. MACFARLANE:  If I may rise.  I think we 
are both respondents to the motion. 
THE COURT:  I want to make sure everyone has 
the right.  Let's give Mr. Zigler that, and if 
there is a problem we will. 
MR. ZIGLER:  It would be unfair if I could 
not. 
THE COURT:  I don't want to see a series of 
rolling -- 
MR. ZIGLER:  Okay.  But the ability to try to 
influence legislation is important, that is 
why my client asked for H2, and what 
Mr. MacFarlane asks you to do is, in fact, 
join them from exercising the right every 
citizen has to speak to their political leader 
and try to get a change in law.  
If it never come to pass, as what Mr. Tay 
said, I have no difficulty with respect to the 
suggestion of the endorsement, but it would be 
contrary to public policy to effect an 
endorsement.  They made it a critical 
provision of their negotiations, and you need 
not turn up Susan Kennedy's affidavit, but you 
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were taken to it.  
They indicated H2 was critical, and they would 
not have signed the agreement without it, and 
there is good reason.  
It's important to them, and I think you saw 
that as to why it's important, and that is why 
it's part of the agreement.  
Now, I would love to have an agreement without 
H1 or H2, or without releases, but we are not 
here to do that.  It's all or nothing.  Unlike 
Mr. Rochon, you can order -- if you look at 
your January 21st order, you can say, we can 
continue with these for any reason, but with 
all due respect, we came before you on January 
21 to say we were bargaining on good faith to 
reach an agreement, and that January 21st 
order was predicated on that.  
It's a package, as Mr. Barns said, and it's a 
carefully calibrated package.  Every part of 
that agreement.  And it cannot be tampered 
with, without effecting or creating all sorts 
of impact on other people, which is what you 
say from the various objectors.  Mr. Rochon or 
the UCC in the bond, and that is where we come 
from.  
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With respect to what Mr. Rochon had to say, I 
don't want to spend a lot of time on the 
allegation that my clients interface with only 
a few.  I think you heard about that this 
morning.  Susan Kennedy's affidavit, and I 
think you were taken to it.  
She speaks to people that are not here.  There 
is 100 of them that she has email contact 
with.  They are disabled.  It's not for people 
making an agreement.  
Even though there are other opposed for, it's 
not people making an agreement, and we 
communicate with all of them, and you have 
evidence from Mr. Rue (ph.) about that before 
you.  
I think at the end of the day, the reply to 
Mr. Rochon comes to this:  The alternative to 
this agreement is litigation, and, in some 
respect, for many of these people, litigation 
creates hope.
But it is in my respectful submission, and we 
went through all of the reasons, we think a 
false hope or certainly a hope they receive 
sufficient compensation for in the settlement, 
and that is why this is not about taking away 
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the rights.  It's a compromise where 
consideration is being received in exchange 
from releasing litigation.  
I want to correct one matter raised by some of 
the disabled people.  One particularly.  
The first is this:  That their employment 
terminates at the end of the year, and that 
that somehow effects their rights.  
You need not turn up article 5, but you can 
make note of the settlement agreement.  It 
actually specifies that although the company 
can terminate any of the people under the 
initial order and the job would be gone.  
If a disabled person becomes healthy, the 
practical reality and the real reality is that 
there is no job to go back to.  
The company that employs 6000, and they work 
themselves out of a job shortly thereafter.  
So, if any of the disabled become healthy 
again, there is no job to go back to, and that 
is the reason they are kept on employment 
status, but the document makes it clear that 
none of their rights with respect to 
collective agreement or common law against 
Nortel arising out of their employment or 
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termination of it or any claims for lost 
long-term disability.  Pension benefits are 
not effected in anyway as a result of a 
termination of their employment.  
So, all their rights, with respect to the 
Health and Welfare Trust remain.  
The other point I want to address is the 
concern that some individuals raised that 
without knowing what they get out of the 
Health and Welfare Trust and without knowing 
the Northern Estate distribution they have 
difficulty dealing with this agreement.  
I appreciate the concern that we all -- these 
people live with great uncertainty, but this 
agreement is for the former employees and is 
really another form of interm funding 
agreement.  This is for them.  
It allows funding in the interim, so that we 
can figure out the uncertainty of what they 
get out of the HWT.  Otherwise, they would be 
eroding that trust by being paid today.  
The alternative to not granting the order 
before you for them would mean payments 
continue out of that trust and erode it's 
asset.  
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The objective is to put money in their pocket 
from Northern so the money is not eroded.  
So, that should be clearly understood as to 
the way we are dealing with that uncertainty.  
I wish I could tell them how much on the 
Northern Estate.  
It seems many like to speculate and put it 
before you in evidence, but our financial 
advisor cannot put that forward.  Our actuary 
based on presumptions could deal with matters, 
but he too cannot give a definite answer.  
That has to be approved by Your Honour.  That 
is all I can say about that.  
I want to say a few things about what 
Mr. MacFarlane and Swan put before you.  
The UCC and bondholders are in effect third 
party beneficiaries of this contract.  It's 
only before Your Honour because the CCAA 
requires you to approve contracts to which the 
company enters.  
The company has entered into a contract with 
former employees and disabled and that is the 
contract before you.  
Other times the company enters into with the 
UCC and bondholders about assets or interm 
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funding, but they are not parties to the 
agreement and would not be, but were given a 
seat at the table.  
So, any provisions in this agreement in terms 
of what is before Your Honour is approving an 
agreement between the company and its former 
employees, as well as the Monitor and 
directors, and that has to be in the best 
interest of the creditors as a whole and of my 
client, and it is in the best interest of the 
creditors as a whole in terms of release of 
litigation.  
If you look at H2, and maybe Mr. Swan said 
there was confusion, but there is not in my 
mind, and certainly it would be dealt with in 
your endorsement.  They are all part of H1.  
In the paragraph sharing on a CCAA 
distribution, and then there is if there is a 
change in the bankruptcy, and we are in 
bankruptcy, and a change of priorities in the 
Bankruptcy Act, we are free to argue that we 
rely on that status change.  
The two are connected and not about litigation 
of third parties.  All beneficiaries benefit 
from the release of litigation against third 
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parties, and that includes the people.
Mr. Swan and Mr. Tay made it clear that the 
benefit of such a release, the claims for 
indemnities or against the directors charge, 
third parties like the trustee has.  That is 
for the benefit of everyone and also for 
everyone, because it allows things to move 
forward in terms of obligations for pension 
and benefits that have to be dealt with, and 
it provides a method for dealing it so the 
estate is not hung up on how we deal with this 
and matters of deemed trust on pension cases.  
That is for the benefit of everyone.  
It doesn't give certainty on every area, no 
agreement does, but there is enough benefit 
for everyone here that we would submit 
Your Honour should approve this agreement.  
The alternative what was put to you: Send 
everyone back to negotiations.  
With all due respect, I think that will cause 
more trouble than worth.  It will cause more 
trouble, because everyone before you today 
will have something to say about a 
renegotiation agreement.  Everyone was -- even 
people not before you today.  
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It will cause more trouble, because if H2 was 
critical for my clients as sworn, and it's not 
about pro quo.  It's a critical provision, and 
that is what Susan Kennedy says, and you can 
see why. 
THE COURT:  The position of your clients and 
the integral part of H2 has been made clear.  
MR. ZIGLER:  It would be futile to send people 
back.  Either we have an agreement or we 
don't.  Thank you, Your Honour.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  I don't want to take your 
time.  
THE COURT:  But you will.  
MR. MACFARLANE:  Two minutes.  One thing I 
want to clarify.  What Mr. Zigler said about 
the lobby and public policy argument.  I am 
sure you took the same view as we did.  We are 
not stopping them to create legislation that 
would help them.  We would welcome that, if 
they were successful in that regard, and as 
long as it doesn't effect the certainty. 
Also, once again, the link between H1 and 2.  
Mr. Zigler never mentioned in the argument, 
and it's not in the material, there is no 
linkage.  I have dealt with that before.  
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Those are my only points.  
MR. ROCHON:  I don't want to interrupt, but I 
heard my name several times, and I do want to 
make a brief reply.  
THE COURT:  Mr. Barns, and then you will get 
your couple of minutes.  
MR. BARNS:  I want to make a point, and it's 
more of an observation, and it's okay that I 
go in front of Mr. Rochon, because it's when 
Mr. Rochon was putting his position to you 
yesterday, and his first position was that you 
shouldn't approve the settlement agreement, 
and then he said, well, if you are inclined 
then you should strike certain paragraphs, and 
he spoke at length about the pari passu, and 
second about releases.
Now, I adopt what has been said by my friend 
with respect to the benefits that the 
stakeholders achieve from receiving both of 
those.  The uncertainty that was not clarified 
with respect to the priorities and, second, 
the releases provide no call on the indemnity, 
but the only observation I make is that one of 
the reasons that you cannot pull something out 
it is because even though they are recognized 
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as benefits, it's those benefits that drive 
the consideration that is being paid to
Mr. Zigler's clients.  
So, if you pull something out that he 
recognizes as a trade off, yes, the company 
has benefitted from the trade off, and that 
has effected how much they were prepared to 
contribute.  
So, once you pull one part out, you pull from 
the other side.  That is all I wanted to say.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  Mr. Rochon? 
MR. ROCHON:  Thank you, Your Honour.  I just 
wanted to mention a couple of things in reply 
if I can, and that is the overwhelming theme 
that we hear, that if the plan is not approved 
or if the settlement is not approved, the sky 
will fall.  
Just on that point, and Mr. Tay made the 
submission.  There is just no evidence here, 
but in my respectful submission, Your Honour, 
there is evidence.  There is evidence from our 
expert who was the manager director at -- 
THE COURT:  I think you went through this 
already.  
MR. ROCHON:  I didn't touch on her 
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credentials, but she was also appointed by 
Justice Campbell in the ABC case on behalf of 
the ad hoc retail committee.  So, she is 
qualified to review financial statements.  
In fact, that is what she has done for the 
past 30 years of her life, and in her 
conclusion made analysis about the loan.  
Second, evidence on this point with respect to 
cash available and the loan and so forth.  Of 
course, there is the -- and I have not been 
part of these proceedings, and so I am coming 
at this with a slight disadvantage, but there 
are cash flow projections in the material, 
including the 35th report.  So adding to what 
I said earlier and replying to Mr. Tay's 
evidence that there is no evidence, there is 
evidence.  There is 134 to cash flow to the 
company on an ongoing basis.  
And the time that I was suggesting to have the 
parties reflect on what is going on, reflect 
on perhaps a letter or direction from Your 
Honour, was not up to the end of the year.  It 
was for a short breather period of time for 
approximately two months so parties reconvene 
and come up with something.  That is not as 
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Mr. Tay suggested something that is designed 
to -- well, he says what is critical is to get 
the financial elements in place.  A deal on 
these points.  Economics rather.  
I would say to that, what is important here, 
as Mr. Justice Farley has said and Justice 
Campbell and the leading judges in this area, 
in addition to your self.  
What is important is to get a proper balance 
and do what is fair for the parties, and 
special emphasis on those directly effected; 
namely, the objectors.  Those are my 
submissions.  Thank you.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  
UNIDENTIFIED LAWYER:  We will not repeat the 
submissions of Mr. Tay that we support and 
including the possible approach to deal with 
the concerns raised by Notelholders and UCC, 
and also to point out so there is no confusion 
of any of the people here, that the cash flows 
have been approved to March 31.  There is no 
certainty about the use of the cash post March 
31, or the continuation of the benefits, which 
would be a matter brought back to the court in 
the presence of all stakeholders here today, 
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and those are our submissions.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  
UNIDENTIFIED LAWYER:  Good afternoon.  This is 
just a housekeeping matter in the event all 
replies are complete.  If you recall, there 
was an objector yesterday relating to a media 
article and that one of the previous objectors 
was referring to, and I do have that here and 
showed it to the Monitor, and she accepted the 
paragraph of the affidavit in introducing that 
material.  
THE COURT:  Thank you.  There will be no 
disposition of this matter today.  I am aware 
of the serious issues that have been raised 
and argued over the past three days and some 
of the timelines in place.
So, this is not a question that there is going 
to be a lengthy reserve on this matter.  
Having said that, I am not in Toronto next 
week, and I have not made the great 
determination as to whether the computer is 
going with me or not, but I will do my best to 
deal with this.  
It may come in a form that is abbreviated with 
more detailed reasons to follow, but I will 
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endeavor to get something out as soon as 
possible.  
With respect to the carry over motion of the 
incentive fees or the incentive plans, I 
gather Judge Gross ruled on that yesterday.  
He sent me a copy of the ruling, which I have 
not seen, but that one also will be dealt with 
sooner as opposed to later.  
Ms. Huff? 
MS. HUFF:  Just a question of the proposed 
disposition.  Will there be an opportunity for 
counsel to agree, if you were disposed to 
grant an order?  
THE COURT:  There will be some order that 
flows from it, and I think it's premature to 
comment on as to what will happen, but the 
form of order has to reflect what the 
endorsement says.  
MS. HUFF:  On that point, a draft order had 
been proposed, and I had some noncontroversial 
changes, and as well, a form of endorsement to 
one of paragraphs.  I am in your hands as to 
when you would like to deal with that.  
THE COURT:  If those are on consent, email 
them through to the commercial list office, 
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and they will know where to find me.  The rest 
of you will not know where to find me, but I 
do thank all of the counsel, and those who 
provided their in-person representations.  
Have a nice weekend. 
-- Matter adjourned.
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